Link-Asia
International
MedTech

“® LAIW

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited
RUBERBEERSREERERAA

(formerly known as Link-Asia International Co. Ltd.)

(AIEREEREXARAT)

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability RIS SZMBIER D =)
(Stock Code BRADLSE : 1143)

" © 0 0 0 oo 8
/ f
° y b o

©® o000 00°

1

® o

©e0000 0 0
]

Annual Report

F #H




CONTENTS B $%

Corporate Information 2 &l &%}

Financial Highlights B1 #5482

Chairman’s Statement = F 3R &=

Management Discussion and Analysis & ¥ [& 51 & &2 5 #7
Corporate Governance Report (B2 E /AR S
Biographical Details of Directors 2 % EF 15

Environmental Social and Governance Report

g RERWE
Report of the Directors & &R &
Independent Auditor’s Report Y837 #Z Al ¥Rk &
Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss 47 & B ik

Consolidated Statement of Profit or
Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

mAaBmMEMEERER

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

AR R

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
BAREEDE

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

MAERERER

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

RE SRR T
Five-Year Financial Summary BF 8§ =
Information for Investors % &% &}

N o s

25
40
44

111

128

137

139

140

142

143

147

282
284



CORPORATE INFORMATION
G

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Guozhen (re-designated on 3 April 2020)
Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Mr. Xia Xiaobing

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Yang Weidong

Dr. Sun Xiaohu

Mr. Baojingiao (resigned on 19 October 2020)

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Li Huiwu (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Weidong

Dr. Sun Xiaohu

Mr. Baojingiao (resigned on 19 October 2020)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Mr. Yang Weidong

Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Bao Jingiao (resigned on 19 October 2020)

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Yang Weidong (Chairman)

Mr. Lin Dailian

Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Bao Jingiao (resigned on 19 October 2020)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Gao Keying (appointment with effective from 30 April 2020)
Ms. Yeung Josephine Yan (resignation with effective from 30 April 2020)

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

WITESR
RACHS ?EE(IF)
TERELE(R=ZF=

BT
B/RAE

FFEIH=HFE)

BIUIFRITES

BERLE
BiRRE L
WENEE(R-ZFE_FF+ATAABE)

ij2)3

BEZLRBE
FRERELE(ZE)
BERELE

FIREE L
WEMELE(R_F_FF+AH/AFHE)

RRBELET

7F7MJ<H§ ST (FE)
$**3t5‘5$
WENEE(R-ZE_FF+HTNLEHFE)

FTMEE=

BREREE(EE)

MRAECH ST

FEREE

WENEE (R -F_FF+ATNHGE)

NEME

BRAKL(ZEEE - F_FFMAA=1HELH)
B Rt (FFE — T _FFNA=1HELEX)

At sE

Clifton House

75 Fort Street

PO Box 1350

Grand Cayman KY1-1108
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG OFFICE BERER
16th Floor BEPIR
Three Exchange Square R &5 8 5%
8 Connaught Place RGBS IE
Central, Hong Kong 1618

2 Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 235 B B2 BRI EEE B R A



CORPORATE INFORMATION
G

MAINLAND OFFICE

No. 15 North Guangcong Commercial Street
First Industrial Zone

Zhuliao Town, Baiyun District

Guangzhou

Guangdong Province

PRC

STOCK CODE
Nn43

HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR AND
TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Investor Services Limited
54th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Standard Chartered Bank (Hong Kong) Limited
Nanyang Commercial Bank, Ltd.
The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

AUDITORS

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants

Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor
29th Floor

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

LEGAL ADVISORS AS TO HONG KONG LAWS

Fangda Partners

26th Floor

One Exchange Square
8 Connaught Place
Central, Hong Kong

Wbt =
H
BRE
=
HERTEHE
F—T#RE

NS ES I AL

i gviKawid
143

BEBMBFPERL DR

PEBHFERLERAF
BE
SRRNER8IHR
AL

S41E

T BERERIT

BITRTT (BFR) BRAR
MFEERITERAQR
FELSEGRITERAR

23l

REPAES RSB

B EEEED

T2 3R 7 B RE 1% LA
B

i

B FiE285R

A 2 HA

291%

BT B AR ARRER

FEEMEBA
BERIR

AL RES 8 5R
R 5 B —H
261%

Annual Report %k 2020



FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 755 47 22

HK$ Million, except otherwise stated
BEBIT  BRRBEEBEEN

Revenue

Loss for the year

Loss attributable to owners of the Company
Loss per share (HK cents)

Average inventory turnover day (days)
Average trade receivable turnover day (days)
Average trade payable turnover day (days)
Total assets

Total liabilities

Financial position
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90.9 83.1
58.8 48.3
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361.5 323.8
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREMES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”), |
hereby present the audited consolidated financial results of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2020 (“the Year”).

During the Year, the global economy had been devastated by
COVID-19 pandemic lockdowns, disruptions of supply chains and
fallout from the Sino-US trade friction. China’s economic growth of
2.3% was the lowest the country had ever recorded in the past 40
years. Amid this operating environment, most business enterprises in
Hong Kong and around the world were negatively impacted and the
Group was no exception.

Following the outbreak of COVID-19 in early 2020, the factories in
mainland China were ordered to shut down by the authorities as part
of the country’s lockdown measures, putting immense pressure on the
Group’s production schedules and delivery commitments. As a result,
both our core segments — EMS and the Distribution of Communication
Products businesses — were adversely affected. However, with better
pandemic control implemented by the government in the second half
of the year, profit from our EMS business increased to approximately
HK$33.7 million for the entire 2020. In contrast, the losses incurred by
our communication products business have also risen to
approximately HK$18.5 million during the Year.

Our Real Estate Supply Chain Services business contributed to the
Group’s revenue for the first half of the year, thanks to the hard work
of the company’s sales team. But due to the global air travel
restrictions, lockdowns and border control measures imposed
subsequently, our customers were unable to view the projects in
Southeast Asia. As a result, the sales earnings from this sector were
adversely affected and fell short of company targets.

The Group’s Securities and Other Assets Investment business reports
decreased losses in the past year. This is attributable to the disposal of
the Group’s entire stakes in a loss-making catering business in 2019.
Another non-core business we currently own is a rental property that
has started generating profits recently again.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
TREMES

Faced with challenges, the Board and management echelon of our
company strive to continue developing our existing core businesses
and have started to actively explore and find new business growth
spots. Following investigations, our corporate team concluded that
the high-end medical and healthcare services, including assisted
reproduction and stem cell treatments, are in high demand from the
large middle-class population. The Board believe that medical and
healthcare products related to assisted reproduction and stem cell
treatments have enormous market potential and a promising outlook.
To better reflect our business nature and future direction, the Group’s
name has officially changed from “Link-Asia International Co. Ltd” to
“Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited” with effect from 8
January 2021. In this connection, the Group has appointed Dr. Sun
Xiaohu (who has a wealth of medical and biotechnology expertise and
senior management experience from pharmaceutical manufacturing
companies, research institutes and hospitals) as Independent Non-
Executive Director.

Looking ahead, the Group anticipates a slow, uneven and uncertain
recovery on the horizon. A slower-than-expected rollout of vaccines,
coupled with fresh surges in COVID-19 infections, can delay the
rebound of global trade this year. Given the challenging business
prospects, the Group will continue to embrace a prudent approach,
with stable operation, financial steadfastness and steady management
among its top priorities.

Despite the various challenges and difficulties, the Group remains
confident of its ability to ride out the crisis with skill and resilience,
while being ready to seize any possibilities for growth and
enhancement of shareholder value.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt
gratitude to our staff for their diligence and dedication during the
year. | wish to also thank all our shareholders, stakeholders, customers
and business partners for their unfailing support and trust for the
Group.

Lin Dailian
Chairman

12 April 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MrEE HTQHH& Tﬁ

BUSINESS OVERVIEW

The COVID-19 pandemic has sent the global economy into one of its
worst recessions ever, forcing countries and cities into months of
lockdowns in 2020 that markedly reduced economic activity. During
the Year, China’s economy grew 2.3% at the slowest pace it had
experienced in decades.

Given the grim operating environment, the Group saw its EMS and
Distribution of Communication Products segment recording a
declining performance with a decrease in revenue of approximately
6.3%.

The Group has embraced a dual approach to drive faster and steadier
revenue growth in the future. As part of this strategy, the Group
changed its name officially from “Link-Asia International Co. Ltd” to
“Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited” in early 2021 to
pursue the vision of becoming a medical technology group to offer
assisted reproductive technology, including both related products and
services, to meet the fertility needs of high-end customers in the
region especially mainland China.

Concurrently, the Group has stepped into the lucrative real-estate
market in Southeast Asia with its enormous housing needs. To this
end, the Group has leveraged on its business network to source high-
quality real estate projects in the region since the second half of 2019.
These efforts will intensify when the current pandemic, which restricts
air travel and upends supply chains, shows signs of easing in 2021.

For the Year, the Group generated total revenue from continuing
operations of approximately HK$595.0 million (2019: HK$629.9
million). Gross profit from continuing operations amounted to
approximately HK$154.7 million (2019: HK$135.8 million), and loss
attributable to owners of the Company amounted to approximately
HK$173.1 million (2019: HK$171.7 million).

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had bank and cash balances
totalling approximately HK$167.7 million (2019: HK$241.4 million) with
efforts made to maintain a healthy financial position.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MvEE nTﬂFFH& Tﬁ

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
The EMS and Distribution of Communications Products Businesses

The EMS and Distribution of Communication Products businesses
contributed revenue of approximately HK$544.3 million (2019:
HK$582.5 million) and HK$35.9 million (2019: HK$36.5 million),
respectively, to the Group. This segment was hardest hit following the
outbreak of the pandemic in the early part of 2020, when factories in
mainland China were forced to close and market demand remained
weak in the face of economic uncertainty.

Overall, the segment generated a relatively stable performance in
turnover to register a mild decrease of approximately 6.3% in 2020.

Real Estate Supply Chain Services

Real Estate Supply Chain Services business started its contribution to
the Group’s revenue in the Year. Revenue from the Real Estate Supply
Chain Services operation provides two types of services, comprising
the real estate advisory service and real estate purchase service
related to investment opportunities in Southeast Asia and Pan Asia
markets on behalf of customers. Revenue is recognised at a point in
time upon completion of each service. This segment has contributed
approximately HK$14.2 million (2019: Nil) for the Year.

Even though the Real Estate Supply Chain Services business has
brought in a new revenue stream to the Group, it is heavily and
adversely affected by the border control and quarantine measures due
to COVID-19. Normal business travelling is suspended between the
PRC and Southeast Asian and Pan Asian countries. The Board
expected that this business sector will improve with the coming break-
through in vaccine and medication of COVID-19.

Securities and Other Assets Investment

The losses accrued from this segment declined with the disposal of the
Group’s catering business, which had been underperforming through
the years, coupled with revenue generated from the rental property it
owns. As a result, the Securities and Other Assets Investment business
contributed revenue of approximately HK$0.7 million (2019: HK$11.0
million) to the Group during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MvEE nTﬂFHﬂ& Tﬁ

Geographical Analysis

Revenue from the major European countries (the United Kingdom,
Switzerland, Poland and France) totalled approximately HK$330.1
million (2019: HK$328.5 million), and accounted for approximately
55.5% (2019: 52.2%) of the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations for the Year. The U.S.A. market contributed approximately
HK$40.6 million (2019: HK$52.8 million) in revenue and accounted for
approximately 6.8% (2019: 8.4%) of the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations. The PRC (including Hong Kong) and other
countries accounted for approximately HK$87.6 million (2019: HK$113.5
million) and HK$136.7 million (2019: HK$135.1 million), respectively,
representing approximately 14.7% (2019: 18.0%) and 23.0% (2019:
21.4%) of the Group’s revenue from continuing operations.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

For the Year, the Group recorded total revenue from continuing
operations of approximately HK$595.0 million (2019: HK$629.9
million).

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales from continuing operations decreased by approximately
10.9% from approximately HK$494.1 million in 2019 to HK$440.3
million in 2020 in line with the decrease of the revenue.

Gross Profit

Gross profit from continuing operations increased by approximately
13.9% from approximately HK$135.8 million in 2019 to HK$154.7 million
in 2020, as a result of a gross profit contribution from the new
segment, the Real Estate Supply Chain Services business, with a higher
gross profit margin.

Other income

Other income from continuing operations remained stable in 2020 of
approximately HK$12.3 million (2019: HK$12.4 million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BIRE R wm Mo

Other gains and losses

Other net losses of approximately HK$2.3 million in 2020 (2019: net
gain of approximately HK$3.9 million) were due to net foreign
exchange losses during the Year while a net gain in 2019.

Impairment losses

The Group made overall impairment losses of approximately HK$68.1
million on certain assets for the Year, representing an increase by
approximately HK$10.2 million (2019: HK$57.9 million). The increase
was mainly due to the increase in impairment losses for other
receivables of approximately HK$16.4 million, impairment losses on
investments in associates by approximately HK$10.3 million and
impairment losses on intangible assets by approximately HK$14.1
million, offsetting by a decrease in impairment losses for loans to other
parties by approximately HK$31.1 million.

Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses from continuing operations of
approximately HK$56.3 million (2019: HK$28.8 million) accounted for
approximately 9.5% in 2020 and 4.6% in 2019 of the Group’s revenue
from continuing operations, respectively. The increase was mainly due
to the increase in expenses, including advertising and promotion,
employment expenses, travelling expenses, business development and
other expenses, for the Real Estate Supply Chain Services business of
approximately HK$26.6 million for the Year.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses from continuing operations of approximately
HK$178.2 million (2019: HK$179.4 million) accounted for approximately
29.9% in 2020 and approximately 28.5% in 2019 of the Group’s
revenue from continuing operations, respectively. The administrative
expenses remained stable as compared to last year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MvEE nTﬂFHﬂ& Tﬁ

Other expenses

Other operating expenses from continuing operations decreased by
approximately HK$28.2 million from approximately HK$42.5 million in
2019 to approximately HK$14.3 million in 2020. The decrease in other
operating expenses was mainly due to no bad debts written off and
bad debts provision of approximately HK$5.4 million, no loss of
disposal of subsidiary (2019: approximately HK$19.2 million) and no
reinstatement provision (2019: approximately HK$1.5 million) during
the Year.

Finance costs

The Group’s finance costs from continuing operations were
approximately HK$4.9 million in 2020 and HK$6.8 million in 2019,
represented approximately 0.8% and 1.1% of the Group’s revenue from
continuing operations in 2020 and 2019, respectively. The decrease in
finance costs during the Year was mainly due to the decrease in
interest on lease liabilities by approximately HK$1.1 million.

Income tax expense

Income tax expense from continuing operations during the Year
included approximately HK$1.4 million of current tax charge (2019:
HK$1.3 million) and approximately HK$1.9 million of deferred tax
charge (2019: Nil). The tax charges mainly represented the income tax
provision at the applicable tax rate in accordance with the relevant
laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the PRC and the U.S.A..

Loss attributable to owners of the Company

The loss attributed to owners of the Company was approximately
HK$173.1 million for the Year (2019: HK$171.7 million). The Group’s net
loss margin attributable to owners of the Company for the Year was
approximately -29.1% (2019: -27.3%).

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests

Loss for the year attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to
approximately HK$18,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020
(2019: HK$7.6 million). The decrease was mainly due to no loss
attributable to the non-controlling interests mainly contributed by the
sales of medical equipments in the PRC for the Year as it was disposed
in 2019. For details of the Group’s discontinued operations in 2019,
please refer to note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Hih &

FHEREEB 2 EMEEBRE —T—NF8
#942,500,000 7% 7T 8 4> 928,200,000 Jt =
—E-TFEMHI43000008 T c EELE
BRLEZERREBAFERLHE ZRME &E
%%1%2@54000005%57@ CME S E A A

B8 (=T — N £919,200,000387T) RIEE
%éﬁ(_;—ni : 491,500,000 7T) °

EhE A
—ECEFRCE-NFAREEFELLES

Z B E KK 2 Rl 4 &49000008 T K&
6,800,000 T _FFR_FT—NF
REERBERKEER 2 WAL08% K11% o &
FERMENTEIHFERESHEBENE
L #91100,000 T ©

FTSBiAX

RFEERBELEEB ZMEHAS BB
18 B X #91,400,000% T( = T — K F -
1,300,000 7% 7T ) K3 JE 7% 18 A 2 491,900,000
BT(ZT—NF:T) BHERAIIERES
B REREBRNEBERRERIZERRE
FHRAIPTIS TR -

RAREE AEREE
KEERNE B ARG EER 173,100,000

BT (ZZE— N5 171,700,000 7)) - KEE
Z!S’AW&%AJEWKE@@E%E %45 -291%
T—NF 1 -273%) °

IR RS FEEE

BE_Z_ZTHFET_A=1+—RHILFE  IFE
BEREHFEBIENR/BOOET(ZF
— L% : 7,600,000/87T) « R FERAR
AEEYETIBERENTENBRERBEHER
BH TR R B8 - IR ERHCR =
T-NFHE - AUAKE_ZT-NAFOKL
REXBOFE  F2HREMBRERME
(A

Annual Report &3 2020 11



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MvEE nTﬂFHﬂ& Tﬁ

LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES

The Group generally finances its operations and capital expenditure by
internally generated cashflows.

As at 31 December 2020, the bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$167.7 million (2019: HK$241.4 million), representing
an decrease of approximately HK$73.7 million from 2019. Respective
sum of approximately 7.9%, 48.7% and 43.2% of the bank and cash
balances was denominated in RMB, USD and HKD, respectively.

The Group’s current ratio remains in a healthy position at 1.5 times
(2019: 1.9 times). The gearing ratio of the Group was 55.0% as at 31
December 2020 (2019: 44.1%), which is calculated based on the
Group’s total liabilities divided by its total assets. Taking into account
of the amount of liquid assets on hand, the Group has sufficient
financial resources to meet its ongoing operational requirements.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amounts of the loan from bank
and loan from an independent third party were approximately HK$18.0
million and HK$0.6 million, respectively. As at 31 December 2019, the
borrowings represented the loan from a related company and loan
from an independent third party of approximately HK$0.6 million and
HK$20 million, respectively.

Cash flow

In 2020, approximately HK$16.0 million was used in the operating
activities. Net cash used in investing activities was approximately
HK$95.2 million and net cash generated from financing activities was
approximately HK$35.2 million for the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MrEE HTQHH& Tﬁ

Exchange risk exposure

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such exposures arise
from the business operations in the PRC and Hong Kong denominated
in RMB and USD, respectively. As at 31 December 2020, the Group had
minimal exposure to foreign currency risk as most of its business
transactions, assets and liabilities were principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies, i.e. RMB and USD, used by the
respective group entities, or in USD for the respective group entities
with HKD being the functional currency. As HKD is pegged to USD, the
Group considers the risk of movements in exchange rates between
HKD and USD to be insignificant for transactions denominated in USD.
The RMB is not freely convertible into other foreign currencies and
conversion of the RMB into foreign currencies is subject to rules and
regulations of foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC
government. As at 31 December 2020, the Group does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group had no investment in any financial
derivatives, foreign exchange contracts, interest or currency swaps,
hedging or other financial arrangements for hedging purposes to
reduce any currency risk nor made any over-the-counter contingent
forward transactions. The Group will closely monitor its foreign
currency exposure and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure as and when
appropriate.

Capital expenditure

Capital expenditure for 2020 amounted to approximately HK$55.3
million and capital commitments as at 31 December 2020 amounted
to approximately HK$0.9 million. Both the capital expenditure and
capital commitments were mainly related to the acquisition of plant
and machinery to replace retired ones.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2020, an investment property of approximately
HK$30.0 million was pledged to an independent third party to secure
a loan facility available to the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MrEE HTQHH& Tﬁ

Financial guarantee contract

As at 31 December 2019 and 2020, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) to one of the suppliers of an overseas
subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was disposed on 7
October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of US$2.6 million
(equivalent to approximately HK$20.3 million), representing a trade
balance under dispute between the Disposed Subsidiary and the
supplier. The supplier subsequently sold the trade balance to a third
party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary had agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$5.1 million). In this regards as at 31 December 2020,
the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the sum limited to
US$650,000, subject to the full payment of the final settlement
effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued counter guarantee to the
Company to indemnify the Company for any loss in relation to the
Guarantee.

Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2020, the Group and the Company did not have
any significant contingent liabilities.

Significant investments, acquisition and disposal

As at 31 December 2020, the Group did not hold any listed equity
investments. As at 31 December 2019, the Group held at fair value of
approximately HK$13.4 million, which were classified as equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
(“FVTOCI”). The fair value change in respect of such investments of
approximately HK$12.2 million (2019: upward movement of HK$9.4
million) was recorded in other comprehensive income. No dividend
income was received during the year ended 31 December 2020 in
respect of these investments.

Apart from the aforesaid transactions, there were no significant
investment held, material acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures by the Group during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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Future plans for material investments or capital assets

There was no specific plan for material investments or capital assets as
at 31 December 2020.

Use of proceeds from subscription

On 13 October 2017, the Group entered into share subscription
agreement (“Subscription Agreement”) with Keywan Global Limited
("Keywan”). All conditions precedent of the Subscription Agreement
have been fulfilled and completion took place on 1 November 2017.
Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, an aggregate of
990,000,000 shares of the Company were allotted and issued to
Keywan at a subscription price of HK$0.3 per share. The net proceeds
received by the Group was approximately HK$297 million. Upon
completion of the share subscriptions, Keywan has 16.65%
shareholding in the Company. The intended use of the net proceeds
from the Subscription was to finance the proposed acquisition of a
polyurethane condom business (the “Proposed Acquisition”) as
detailed in the circular dated 15 February 2018 and/or the general
working capital of the Group. As at 31 December 2019, the Proposed
Acquisition was not materialized.

As at the date of 2018 Annual Report, the net proceeds of
approximately HK$159 million was utilised for the Group’s general
working capital, of which approximately 39% for staff costs, 27% for
office rental and management fee and 34% for other administrative
and operating expenses.

Up to 31 December 2019, additionally approximately HK$88 million
was used as the Group’s general working capital, of which
approximately 25% for staff costs, 24% for office rental and
management fee and 51% for other administrative and operating
expenses.

On 6 March 2020, in order to better deploy the resources of the Group,
the Board has resolved to assign the unutilised net proceeds of
approximately HK$21 million as at 6 March 2020 to the development
of business in Pan Asia, including the establishment of the real estate
sale channel system in Southeast Asia, and the upgrade and
development of the digital economy cloud service business in
Southeast Asia, which has leveraged on its electronic products and
telecommunications services, while the unutilised net proceeds of
approximately HK$10 million as general working capital of the Group.
For further details, please refer to the announcement of the Company
dated 6 March 2020.
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Subsequently from 1 January 2020 up to the date of 2020 Annual
Report, additionally approximately HK$50.0 million was used, of which
approximately HK$21.0 million for the development of business in Pan
Asia and approximately HK$29.0 million for the general working
capital. The proceeds were fully utilised as at 31 December 2020.

2020 Placing of new shares

On 29 January 2020, the Company and the placing agent entered into
a placing agreement whereby the Company agreed to place, through
the placing agent, a maximum of 1,189,060,000 new ordinary shares
of the Company of nominal value of HK$0.001 per share to not less
than six placees at the placing price of HK$0.035 per placing Share
(the “Placing”™). The maximum aggregate nominal value of the placing
shares under the Placing is HK$1,189,060.00. On 29 January 2020,
being the date of placing agreement entered into between the
Company and the placing agent, the closing price of the shares of the
Company was HK$0.036 per share as quoted on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited ( “Stock Exchange ). Placees are independent
third parties and whose ultimate beneficial owners are independent
and not connected with any directors, chief executive or substantial
shareholder (if any) of the Company or its subsidiaries and their
respective associates. The completion of the Placing took place on 19
February 2020. Please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 29 January 2020, 3 February 2020 and 19 February 2020.

The Directors consider that the Placing can strengthen the financial
position of the Group and provide additional funding to the Group in
order to facilitate the business operation and future development. The
Placing also represents a good opportunity to broaden the
shareholders’ base and the capital base of the Company.

The net proceeds from the Placing (after deduction of commission and
other expenses of the Placing) are approximately HK$41.4 million. The
net placing price is approximately HK$0.0348 per share. The Company
intended to use the net proceeds arising from the Placing as to (i)
approximately HK$18 million for developing the Group’s existing
electronic products and the related supply chain service business; (ii)
approximately HK$17 million for establishing a leading real estate sale
supply chain service business system in Southeast Asia and Pan Asia
markets, and (iii) remaining balance of approximately HK$6.4 million
for general working capital of the Group.
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As at 31 December 2020, approximately HK$17.7 million was utilised,
of which:

(i)  approximately HK$4.8 million for developing the Group’s existing
electronic products and the related supply chain service
business;

(i approximately HK$6.5 million for establishing a leading real
estate sale supply chain service business system in Southeast
Asia and Pan Asia markets; and

(iiiy  approximately HK$6.4 million for general working capital of the
Group.

On 1 January 2021, in order to better deploy the resources of the
Group, the Board has resolved to assign the unutilised net proceeds of
approximately HK$10.5 million as at 11 January 2021 from the
development of real estate sale supply chain service business in
Southeast Asia and Pan Asia to the general working capital of the
Group. For further details, please refer to the announcement of the
Company dated 11 January 2021.

Subsequently from 1 January 2021 up to the date of 2020 Annual
Report, additionally approximately HK$10.5 million was used for the
general working capital. The remaining unutilised net proceeds of
approximately HK$13.2 million is estimated to be fully utilised in the
next six months.

Environmental, social and corporate responsibility

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The
Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation
and contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers
and other stakeholders to participate in environmental and social
activities which benefit the community as a whole. The Group maintains
strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced cooperation with
its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services to its
customers so as to ensure sustainable development.
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The details of such are set out in the Environmental, Social and
Governance report on pages 44 to 110 of this annual report. During the
Year, the Group has complied with the relevant environmental laws
and regulations in all material respects. The Group will review its
environmental practices from time to time and will implement further
eco-friendly measures and practices closely enhancing environmental
sustainability. For further details, please refer to pages 44 to 110 of this
annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the Company’s
subsidiaries in the mainland China while the Company itself is listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Our establishment and operations accordingly shall comply with
applicable laws and regulations in the mainland China and Hong Kong.
The Group has seeked professional legal advice from its legal advisers
to ensure its transactions and business are in compliance with the
applicable laws and regulations. During the Year, the Group was not
aware of any noncompliance with any relevant laws and regulations
that had a significant impact on it.

Key risks and uncertainties

Our Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s businesses. The
followings are the key risks and uncertainties identified by our Group.
There may be other risks and uncertainties in addition to those shown
below which are not known to our Group or which may not be material
now but could turn out to be material in the future.

Market Risks

Market risk is the risk that deteriorates profitability or affects ability to
meet business objectives arising from the movement in market prices,
like foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices. The
management of our Group manages and monitors these exposures to
ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and
effective manner.
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Foreign Exchange Rates Risk

As our Group’s transactions were mainly conducted in HKD, USD, RMB
and Euro (“EUR”), exposing to the potential RMB and EUR exchange
rate fluctuations. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of other foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. However, the Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider hedging significant
foreign currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest Rate Risk

For interest-sensitive products and investments, our Group analyses
its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis and considers managing
this risk in a cost-effective manner when appropriate, through variety
of means.

Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the potential that our Group will be unable to meet its
obligations when they fall due because of an inability to obtain
adequate funding or liquidate assets. In managing liquidity risk, our
Group monitors cash flows and maintains an adequate level of cash
and cash equivalent to ensure the ability to finance the Group’s
operations and reduce the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.

Operational Risk

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed
internal processes, people and systems or from external events.
Responsibility for managing operational risks basically rests with every
function at divisional and departmental levels. Key functions in our
Group are guided by their standard operating procedures, limits of
authority and reporting framework. Our management will identify and
assess key operational exposures regularly so that appropriate risk
response can be taken.

Manpower and Retention Risk

Our Group may face the risk of not being able to attract and retain key
personnel and talents with appropriate and required skills, experience
and competence which would meet the business objectives of our
Group. Our Group will provide attractive remuneration package to
suitable candidates and personnel.
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Human resources

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had approximately 1,050
employees in various operating units located in Hong Kong, U.S.A. and
the PRC. In order to attract and retain high quality talents to ensure
smooth operation and cater for the Group’s constant expansion, it
offers competitive remuneration packages, with reference to market
conditions, individual qualifications and experience.

There is no outstanding share option as at 31 December 2020 and
2019. In addition, no share option was granted, cancelled or lapsed
during the year ended 31 December 2020.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS DURING THE YEAR ENDED 31
DECEMBER 2020

Placing of new shares

On 19 February 2020, an aggregate of 1,189,060,000 shares of the
Company with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each has been
successfully placed at HK$0.035 per share. The net proceeds from the
placing shares (after deduction of commission and other expenses of
said placing of new shares) amounted to approximately HK$41.4
million. For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 29 January 2020, 3 February 2020 and 19 February 2020.

Share Option Schemes

On 17 February 2020, the Company proposed to the shareholders of
the Company at the extraordinary general meeting to be held on 10
March 2020 (the “EGM”) to terminate the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 31 December 2010 (the “2010 Share
Option Scheme”) and to approve and adopt a new share option
scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”). Details of the New Share
Option Scheme are set out in the circular of the Company dated 17
February 2020.

On 10 March 2020, at the EGM, the proposed adoption of the New
Share Option Scheme and the termination of the 2010 Share Option
Scheme were duly passed by the Shareholders by way of poll.
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Settlement of litigation and assignment of loans

On 21 October 2019, the Company was served a writ of summons
issued by the Court of First Instance of the High Court of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region by Bright Mark Enterprises
Limited (the “Assignee”) as the plaintiff against the Company as the
defendant (the “Legal Proceedings”) in relation to a sum of
HK$20,000,000, being the loan principal under a facility agreement,
plus interest (the “Debt”).

On 24 March 2020, the Company and the Assignee entered into a
settlement agreement in respect of the Legal Proceedings, pursuant
to which, amongst others, (i) Wise State Investment Limited, a wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company (“Wise State”), agreed to assign all
rights, titles and benefits in the Loans to the Assignee, (ii) the Assignee
unconditionally and irrevocably agreed in writing to waive its right to
claim against the Company and/or the Group under the Debt and be
responsible for any cost or liability under the settlement for the Debt,
and (iii) the Assignee agreed to release and discharge the charged
securities pursuant to a deed of release, and release and wholly
extinguish all rights and obligations arising or capable of arising out of
a deed of charge. The Company has been released from any liabilities
and obligations borne under the Debt as at 24 March 2020. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 23 October
2019 and 24 March 2020.

Share Consolidation

On 29 May 2020, the Company implemented a share consolidation on
the basis that every 20 issued and unissued ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each to be consolidated into 1 consolidated share of
HK$0.02 each. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 27 April 2020 and 27 May 2020 and the circular of the
Company dated 8 May 2020. The share consolidation has become
effective on 29 May 2020.
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Disclosable Transaction in Relation to Transfer of Exclusive Agency
Rights Involving the Issue of Consideration Shares under General
Mandate

On 28 July 2020, Natural Perseverance Limited (the “Purchaser”), a
direct wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, the Company and
Ratchaphruek Global Group Co., Ltd (the “Vendor™) entered into a
transfer of exclusive agency rights agreement (the “Transfer
Agreement’), pursuant to which, the Purchaser has conditionally
agreed to accept the transfer of and the Vendor has conditionally
agreed to transfer certain rights to be the exclusive agent for the sale
of target properties (the “Exclusive Agency Rights™) by way of
novation at the consideration of HK$27 million (the “Consideration™),
which will be satisfied by the issue and allotment of the new Shares to
be issued to the Vendor (the “Consideration Shares”) at the issue
price of HK$0.379 per Consideration Share by the Company upon
completion of Transfer Agreement (the “Completion™).

The Completion took place on 18 August 2020. 71,240,000
Consideration Shares were allotted and issued at the issue price of
HK$0.379 each by the Company to the Vendor to satisfy the
Consideration. The Consideration Shares represent approximately
20.0% of the number of issued Shares immediately before the
Completion and represent approximately 16.6% of the number of
issued Shares as enlarged by the allotment and issue of the
Consideration Shares.

For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated
28 July 2020, 12 August 2020 and 18 August 2020.

Change of Company Name

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 2 December 2020, it is approved
that the English name of the Company be changed from “Link-Asia
International Co. Ltd.” to “Link-Asia International MedTech Group
Limited” and its dual foreign name in Chinese be changed from “3zgp
BEREXBERAR o RLBHEERMZER AR AR For
details, please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 2
November 2020 and the circular of the Company dated 10 November
2020.
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The company name, stock short name and company logo have been
subsequently changed. For details, please refer to the announcement
of the Company dated 8 January 2021.

Saved as disclosed in this report, the Directors are not aware of any
significant event requiring disclosure that has taken place during the
year ended 31 December 2020.

PROSPECTS

The International Monetary Fund (IMF) recently expects that the
global economy to grow by approximately of 5.5% in 2021,
representing a slight increase of 0.3% from its earlier estimate in
October 2020, citing expectations of a vaccine-driven uptick in the
coming months. China’s economy is expected to expand by
approximately 8.1% in 2021 and approximately 5.6% in 2022, according
to the information from the IMF. In addition, the new Biden
administration in the United States is likely to affect international trade
and geopolitics with a return to a more multilateralist foreign policy.

However, analysts caution that it will be a long and uneven recovery,
due to the pandemic’s lingering impact and uncertainties. Facing an
uncertain future, the Group considers it is imperative to maintain a
healthy financial position and ensure our business continuity. The
current situation also gives us the opportunity to improve and invest
in our business model. We will therefore focus on diversifying our
revenue streams and proceed with plans to develop high-end medical
and health services.

Meanwhile, we will consolidate our core EMS and the Distribution of
Communication Products businesses. Based on our experience in the
electronics sector and insights of the industry trends, both the
segments will experience a strong market recovery from the pent-up
demand of consumers when the pandemic begins to abate.

With the implementation of the vaccination programmes, most
countries are expected to experience a relatively strong recovery in
the second half of this year. In this best-case scenario, the Group will
resume its plans of setting foot in the Real Estate Supply Chain
Services business, in order to capture the strong housing demand of
young homebuyers in Southeast Asia.
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The prospects for the Group’s proposed entry into the industry are
equally bright. With a large and expanding stock of immediate
demand in the assisted reproductive industry and a scarcity of quality
medical services providers, the Group closely focused on this industry
chain and our service preparations, in search of opportunities to
provide us with the right entry points into the market. Following this,
we will undertake strategic layout of the assisted reproduction
industry chain in an in-depth manner. The Group aims to be the
leading medium-and-high-end assisted reproductive technologies
medical group in Asia Pacific, leveraging on its core medical
technologies and proven capabilities to acquire customers and provide
internationalised, integrated and professional assisted reproductive
services to meet the medical needs of the reproduction, as well as
provides customers with a comprehensive and systematic prenatal
and postnatal care solutions to their fertility needs.

The Group will adopt a sound business strategy that combines a
diversified approach to business to drive the growth in profits.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining high standards of
corporate governance to protect the interests of the shareholders of
the Company.

The Directors are of the opinion that the Company has complied with
the code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“Code”) under Appendix 14 of the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities (the “Listing Rules”) throughout the year ended 31
December 2020, except for the deviation from code provision A.2.1 of
the Code as described below.

Code Provision A.2.1

Under code provision A.2.1 of the Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive officer should be separated and should not be performed by
the same individual. The Company does not have any officer with the
title of “chief executive officer” and this is deviated from the code
provision A.2.1 of the Code.

Mr. Lin Dailian, who acts as the Chairman and an executive Director of
the Company since 12 July 2019, is also responsible for overseeing the
general operations of the Group. The Board will meet regularly to
consider major matters affecting the operations of the Group. The
Board considers that this structure will not impair the balance of
power and authority between the Board and the management of the
Group. The roles of the respective executive directors and senior
management, who are in charge of different functions complement
the role of the chairman and chief executive officer. The Board
believes that this structure is conducive to strong and consistent
leadership enabling the Group to operate efficiently.
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The Company understands the importance to comply with the code
provision A.2.1 and will continue to consider the feasibility to comply
with the said code provision. If compliance with the said provision is
determined, appropriate persons will be nominated to assume the
different roles of chairman and chief executive officer.

On 19 October 2020, Mr. Bao Jingiao resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, the chairman of the audit committee of the
Company and the chairman of the remuneration committee and
nomination committee of the Company. Following the resignation of
Mr. Bao Jingiao, the number of independent non-executive Directors
of the Company fell below the minimum number required under Rule
3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and the Company failed to meet the
requirement set out in Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules. Further, the
Company fails to meet the requirements set out in Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules in respect of the constitution of the Audit Committee.
According to Rule 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing Rules, the Company is
required to meet the requirements set out in Rule 3.10 and 3.21 of the
Listing Rules within three months after failing to meet the
requirements. On 6 January 2021, Dr. Sun Xiaohu was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director and a member of the Audit
Committee.

Following the appointment of Dr. Sun Xiaohu on 6 January 2021 as an
independent non-executive Director and the member of the Audit
Committee, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules in relation to the composition of the Board and Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules with regard to the composition of the Audit
Committee.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the required standard for securities
transactions by the directors. The Company has made specific
enquiries of all Directors and all Directors confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code and
its code of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions
throughout the year ended 31 December 2020 and up to the date of
this annual report.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises four executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors. The three independent non-
executive Directors account for more than one-third of the Board. The
composition of the Board is set out as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)
Mr. Wang Guozhen

Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Mr. Xia Xiaobing

Independent non-executive Directors:
Mr. Li Huiwu

Mr. Yang Weidong

Dr. Sun Xiaochu

The biographical details of the Directors are disclosed in the section
headed "“Biographical Details of Directors” on pages 40 to 43 in this
annual report. The composition of the Board ensures a balance of skills
and experiences appropriate to the requirements of the businesses of
the Group and to exercise of independence and is well balanced. Each
of the Directors has relevant expertise and extensive corporate and
strategic planning experiences that may contribute to the business of
the Group. The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other. All independent
non-executive Directors also meet the guidelines for assessment of
their independence as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Functions of the Board

The Board supervises the management of the business and affairs of
the Company. The Board’s primary duty is to ensure the viability of the
Company and to ensure that it is managed in the best interests of the
shareholders as a whole while taking into account the interests of
other stakeholders. The Group has adopted internal guidelines in
setting forth matters that require the Board’s approval. Apart from its
statutory responsibilities, the Board approves the Group’s strategic
plans, key operational initiatives, major investments and funding
decisions. It also reviews the Group’s financial performance, identifies
principal risks of the Group’s business and ensures implementation of
appropriate systems to manage these risks. Daily business operations
and administrative functions of the Group are delegated to the
management.
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Board Meetings, Annual General Meeting and Procedures

Board members were provided with complete, adequate and timely
information to allow them to fulfill their duties properly. In compliance
with code provision A.1.3 of the Code, at least 14 days’ notice has been
given for a regular Board meeting to give all Directors an opportunity
to attend. Notice, agenda and board papers of regular Board meetings
are sent to all Directors within reasonable time and at least 3 days
prior to the meetings. Directors are free to contribute and share their
views at meetings and major decisions will only be taken after
deliberation at Board meetings. Directors who are considered having
conflict of interests or material interests in the proposed transactions
or issues to be discussed will not be counted in the quorum of meeting
and will abstain from voting on the relevant resolutions. Full minutes
are prepared after the meetings and the draft minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment on the final version of which are endorsed
in the subsequent Board meeting.

All independent non-executive Directors have been appointed for a
fixed term. Every Director is subject to re-election on retirement by
rotation in accordance with the Articles of Association of the
Company. The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of his independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers the
independent non-executive Directors to be independent as at the date
of this annual report.
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Number of

meetings attended/held
HEEZ RS BRI

Shareholder Board
meeting meeting
Name of member BEHE RERAXE Exges
Executive Directors: HITEE -
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) MAREE SR (/%) 3/4 34/34
Mr. Wang Guozhen? TEELE! 3/4 34/34
Mr. Duan Chuanhong BT A 0/4 32/34
Mr. Xia Xiaobing BREE 0/4 34/34
Independent Non-executive Directors: BIHNITEE
Mr. Li Huiwu FEREE 0/4 33/34
Mr. Yang Weidong? TH{E R I 2 0/4 13/34
Mr. Bao Jingiao* ST AES 0/4 29/34
Dr. Sun Xiaohu* R g 0/4 0/34
! Re-designated from independent non-executive director to be an executive Director on R —_TFNA=ZAAEB N TEETAERNTE
3 April 2020 ES

2 Appointed on 24 April 2020 RZZ_TFMA-_+NARET
3 Resigned on 19 October 2020 RZZ-_ZTF+A+HARHE
4 Appointed on 6 January 2021 R —F—A BEZE
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

Newly appointed Directors are provided with necessary induction and
information to ensure that they have a proper understanding of the
Company’s business and operations, as well as awareness of Director’s
responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and relevant
regulatory requirements.

Pursuant to code provision A.6.5 of the Code, the Directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills, so as to ensure that their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant. The
Directors committed to participating in appropriate continuous
professional development activities by way of attending training or
reading materials relevant to the Company’s business or to the
Directors’ duties and responsibilities. During the year ended 31
December 2020, the Directors have been provided with regular
updates on the Company’s performance, position and prospects to
enable the Board as a whole and each Director to discharge their
duties. The Directors are also briefed on the latest development and
changes in the Listing Rules and other relevant regulatory
requirements from time to time. All directors are encouraged to
participate in continuous professional development programs to
develop and refresh their professional knowledge and skills. All the
existing Directors confirmed that they have had suitable directors’
training through attendance of training courses or reading materials to
refresh their knowledge and skills during the Year.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (“Dividend Policy”),
pursuant to which the Company may declare and distribute dividends
to the shareholders of the Company to allow shareholders of the
Company to share the Company’s profits and for the Company to
retain adequate reserves for future growth.

The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserves the
right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend and/or
modify the Dividend Policy at any time, and the Dividend Policy shall
in no way constitute a legally binding commitment by the Company
that dividends will be paid in any particular amount and/or in no way
obligate the Company to declare a dividend at any time or from time
to time.
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APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors of the Company are appointed for a
specific term of three years, subject to retirement by rotation and re-
election at the annual general meeting of the Company.

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company, at each annual general meeting, at least one third of the
Directors are required to retire from office by rotation. Each Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years and shall include
those who have been longest in office since their last election or re-
election.

In accordance with Article 112 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, new Directors appointed by the Board during the year shall
retire and submit themselves for re-election at the annual general
meeting immediately following their appointments.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established specific committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee,
with written terms of reference to assist them in the efficient
implementation of their functions. Specific responsibilities have been
delegated to the above committees.

The Board committees are provided with sufficient resources to
discharge their duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek
independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the
Company’s expenses.

The Board shall establish other committees for specific purposes from
time to time to facilitate the Company’s operations.
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Audit Committee

The Company established the Audit Committee on 31 December 2010
As at 31 December 2020, the Audit Committee had two members
comprising two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li
Huiwu (Chairman) and Mr. Yang Weidong.

On 19 October 2020, Mr. Bao Jingiao resigned as an independent non-
executive Director, member of the Audit Committee, the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee of the
Company. Following the resignation of Mr. Bao Jingiao, the number of
independent non-executive Directors of the Company fell below the
minimum number required under Rule 3.10(1) of the Listing Rules and
the Company failed to meet the requirement set out in Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. Further, the Company fails to meet the requirements
set out in Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules in respect of the constitution of
the Audit Committee. According to Rule 3.11 and 3.23 of the Listing
Rules, the Company is required to meet the requirements set out in
Rule 3.10 and 3.21 of the Listing Rules within three months after failing
to meet the requirements. On 6 January 2021, Dr. Sun Xiaohu was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director and a member of
the Audit Committee.

Following the appointment of Dr. Sun Xiaohu on 6 January 2021 as an
independent non-executive Director and the member of the Audit
Committee, the Company has complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of
the Listing Rules in relation to the composition of the Board and Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules with regard to the composition of the Audit
Committee.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are mainly to review and
supervise the financial reporting process and internal control system
of the Group. The written terms of reference which describes the
authority and duties of the Audit Committee have been revised by the
Board on 24 February 2016 to conform to the provisions of the
Revised Code, a copy of which is posted to the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The works performed by the Audit Committee in 2020 included the
following:

. to review the financial results and reports of the Company;

. to review the reports from external auditor, management letters
and management response;

. to review the matters in relation to internal audit and the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management

system;

. to review the Group’s compliance with statutory and regulatory
requirements;

. to review corporate governance matters; and

. to review the re-appointment of the external auditor.
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Three meetings of the Audit Committee were held during the year BEZRZE8eWNHE_ET-_ZEF+_-_A=+—H
ended 31 December 2020 and the individual attendance of each IFFEERITT ZASHLRSKENERHE X
member is set out below: ;IO -

Number of meetings

attended/held

Name of member REHE HESEIE " BITERRH
Mr. Li Huiwu (Chairman) =EREE(EE) 3/3
Mr. Bao Jingiao' & A 3/3
Mr. Yang Weidong? SRR A 1/3
Mr. Wang Guozhen? TEE LA 2/3
! Resigned on 19 October 2020 ! RZZ=_ZTF+A+IAFTE
2 Appointed on 24 April 2020 2 N-_TE_TFMNA_+NBEERT
3 Re-designated to be an executive Director on 3 April 2020 B R-ZZ-_ZFEMA=-ARATARNITES

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 December 2020
have been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

ARRABE_T_TF+_A=+—HILFE
MERRECKHERZBSETEN -
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 31 December 2010.
The Remuneration Committee had three members comprising two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yang Weidong
(Chairman), Mr. Li Huiwu and one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin
Dailian.

The Remuneration Committee is governed by its terms of reference,
which have been revised by the Board on 30 March 2012 pursuant to
the Revised Code. The terms of reference are currently available on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are mainly to
review and determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses
and other compensation payable to the Directors and senior
management and to make recommendation to the Board on the
Group’s policy and structure for all remuneration of the Directors and
senior management. No Director shall participate in any discussion
about his or her own remuneration. The remuneration of the Directors
was determined with reference to their respective experience,
responsibilities with the Group and general market conditions.
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Three meetings of the Remuneration Committee were held duringthe BE-Z-_ZF+_-A=+—HItFEFMNE
year ended 31 December 2020 to review the remuneration package of B& B TZXAE€:3%E  UEHNEER SR EIE
the Directors and senior management. The individual attendance of EBHFHMEFS - SKENERIEFERLT -
each member is set out below.

Number of meetings

attended/held

Name of member REEH HESBERE RITEBRH
Mr. Yang Weidong (Chairman)' BEREA (FE) 0/3
Mr. Lin Dailian MAHESEE 3/3
Mr. Li Huiwu? ER kA2 /3
Mr. Bao Jingiao® O it o 3/3
Mr. Wang Guozhen* TR A 2/3
1 Appointed on 19 October 2020 ! RZZ-ZZTF+A+HAEZE
2 Appointed on 3 April 2020 2 i SEN A= BERE
3 Resigned on 19 October 2020 3 w= =FE+ A+ A BEHMT
4 Re-designated to be an executive Director on 3 April 2020 ¢ R-B-_TENA=ARFTELANTES
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Nomination Committee

The Company established the Nomination Committee on 31 December
2010 with written terms of reference which are in compliance with the
code provision of the Code. The primary duties of the Nomination
Committee include the making of recommendations to the Board on
appointment of Directors and succession planning for the Directors.
The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are
currently available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The following is a summary of the work of the Nomination Committee
during the year ended 31 December 2020:

. review the structure, size and composition (including but without
limitation, the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board;

. review the retirement of Directors by rotation and the re-
appointment of the retiring Directors at the 2020 Annual General
Meeting;

. review the re-appointment of Directors during the year; and

. assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Nomination Committee consisted of three members, comprising
one executive Director, namely Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) and two
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Li Huiwu and Mr.
Yang Weidong.

Four meetings of the Nomination Committee were held during the

REEES®
$ATE": —TF+-A=t—BKIREA
ZE®  WEMAIUME TR TR 2B

EHE - REZECTERECRERESTEMA
LREEEAMERNESSRIES - RRE8
) EL RS B M 0 ) IR T B R AR B 48 A R B AR
Fr 4Bk -

BE-_Z-_TF+_A=+—HILHFE &%
ZEETIRELENT

. R EEENRE  ABLEX (BHEE
TBEE’\\& RE - MM ERRTE) |
BAR_Z_TFRRBFAS L

¥ E Efi&i%ﬁiﬁz RESF

. R EFLERER R

« APEREMIEITEEMELL -

RAZEBEH-FKEMN - BRE—RWITE
EMRBEELE(XFE) MBBULIFNTESS
BREERGEREL -

RAZEBENHE_T-_TF+-_A=1+—H

year ended 31 December 2020 and the individual attendance of each  [FFERT TR &% - Sk EN@ER HE X
member is set out below. s e

Number of meetings

attended/held

Name of member REMHE HESHR 8 BITEERK
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)* WREG & () 4/4
Mr. Bao Jingiao? P IE? 4/4
Mr. Yang Weidong? HERTE? 0/4
Mr. Li Huiwu® FER LA 2/4
Mr. Wang Guozhen* FEELAE 2/4
! Appointed as chairman on 19 October 2020 / R-Z-_TFE+ATNBREZERERE
2 Resigned on 19 October 2020 2 b TFE+ATIARE
3 Appointed on 19 October 2020 3 R-ZT-_ZTF+A+HAEZE
4 Re-designated from independent non-executive director to be an executive Director on 4 R-T—_TFNA=AHBLIFNTEEATRNTE

3 April 2020
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Board diversity policy

The Company recognises that the Board with a reasonable balance of
skills and experience and sufficient diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the business and operation of the Group would be
beneficial to the Company and its shareholders as a whole and
enhance the quality of its performance.

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (“Board Diversity
Policy”) which sets out the approach to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board.

Pursuant to the Board Diversity Policy, the Company seeks to achieve
Board diversity through the consideration of a number of factors,
including but not limited to gender, age, educational background,
professional experience and qualifications, relevant industry
experience, skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate
decision will be made according to the merits of candidates and their
contribution to the Board.

As at the date of this report, the Board comprises seven Directors.
Three of them are independent non-executive Directors, thereby
promoting critical review and control of the management process. The
Board is also characterised by significant diversity, whether considered
in terms of age, educational background, professional experience,
skills, and knowledge.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flows for that period.

The statement by the auditor of the Company about its responsibilities
for the financial statements is set out in the independent auditor’s
report contained in the Annual Report. There are no material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
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AUDITOR'S REMUNERATION

The Company engaged RSM Hong Kong as its external auditor for the
Year. Analysis of the remuneration in respect of audit services
provided by the external auditor is included in note 14 to the financial
statements in the Annual Report. For the Year, the total fee paid in
respect of the non-audit services is approximately HK$0.27 million.
The non-audit services mainly consisted of the interim report review
service.

COMPANY SECRETARY

During the Year, Ms. Yeung Josephine Yan resigned as the Company's
company secretary and Ms. Gao Keying (“Ms. Gao”) is appointed as
the Company’s company secretary on 29 April 2020, with effective
from 30 April 2020. Ms. Gao joined the Company in 2019. For the year
ended 31 December 2020, Ms. Gao had complied with Rule 3.29 of the
Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training. Ms. Gao is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries and a member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators in the United Kingdom.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of system of internal controls and risk management
within the Group. The system is set up to address key business risks of
failure to meet corporate objectives and to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss. The
purpose of such system is to manage and control risks properly, but
not eliminate it.

The Board has through the Audit Committee reviewed the
effectiveness of the Group’s system of internal controls, internal audit
and risk management, including financial, operational and compliance
controls on annual basis. The Board considered the system is effective
and adequate. The review has also considered the adequacy of
resources, qualifications and experience of staff in respect of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function, and their
training programmes and budget. The Board ensures the existing
resources, qualifications and experience of staff and their training
programmes and budget should be adequate in respect of the Group’s
accounting and financial reporting function.

A% BRI % B
ARREEERESFMEEIRARFEREDI

FEAZ AT - A BE NS i SAT 3t T IR IR B A% AR 75
WS ER B 35 BN 0 AT BN AN G TR A A TR BT 514 o
RAFE  RIERERBIANBEROR
270,000 %7 « IEEZRBEEBIEF HmE
EH R o

NRIWE

RAFE  ZEZTFMAZ+NA  BHLK
TREAFMEMSREAX T (BT HE
TARRARNARAME  BZZ_TFWA
ZTFHEER - BLXETR T AFMALR
Al - HE_T-_TF+-_A=+—HILEFE"

BZTEEST EMRAEINEN BT LR
S/NERNEEREEE - s LT AT B EFTFW

ERERRBARFWERTRABAEEE -

MEREHE M Rk B T2

EERRRAR RS AREREEHE R
[R\Be E IR IR - RILZ R A E RS SR

FEFARBRZEIEEBAR  WRHAE

MIFBERE - URBRBARHERR A KB
K ZEGHDRAENZZEEREERR
i SEMER LR o

i%AELﬂ%V§,\@Tﬁﬁfgfﬂﬁﬁﬁ’%

B R e e *W*B% [ B B IR I E 2 Th
M BIER - $)§Z/\%EE*T“ CEEERR

ZHIEBEMLTED - M MEZEBAREE
ﬁyr&ﬁﬁ&li%ﬂ%i“ﬁﬁﬁiZ%ﬁﬁ - NBZEE
SEES 7S W AR B TS 2 BRI
&*ﬁ‘%ﬁi‘ﬁﬁ%é}fi c BEESMRIPBITALE
B et kM EEERBENS - BRZER
BTERNER  ARBTIAEXZEIIRE
rERBEERBESN -

Annual Report &3 2020 37



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

_\LI/_/\—/‘\—\
1FE 3= /D#&m

In view of the size, nature and complexity of the business of the Group,
the Board has appointed external independent professionals to
perform internal control review. As approved by the Audit Committee,
the external independent professionals made assessment on various
business and operation risks of the Group. Internal control review of
business and operation cycles is conducted under rotation basis every
year. The Audit Committee reviewed the findings from the external
independent professionals periodically and discussed the
recommended actions needed to be taken to develop and improve the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control system. The Board will
continue to improve the Group’s internal control and risk management
systems through periodic reviews and recommendations from the
external auditors during their audit and external independent
professionals during their internal control review.

Regarding the procedures and internal control for the handling and
dissemination of inside information, the Company is aware of its
disclosure obligations under the Listing Rules and Part XIVA of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“Inside Information Provisions”),
and any information required to be disclosed under Rule 13.09 of the
Listing Rules or any inside information required to be disclosed under
the Inside Information Provisions should be announced immediately.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Convening of extraordinary general meeting on requisition by
shareholders

The general meetings of the Company provide an opportunity for
communication between the shareholders and the Board. An annual
general meeting of the Company shall be held in each year. Each
general meeting, other than an annual general meeting is referred to
as an extraordinary general meeting.

According to article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
the Board may, whenever it thinks fit, convene an extraordinary
general meeting. Extraordinary general meetings shall also be
convened on the requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than one tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company having the right of voting at general
meetings. Such requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the
Secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held within 2
months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such
deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the same manner,
and all reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result
of the failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s)
by the Company.
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Shareholders who wish to move a resolution at general meetings may
follow the procedures set out in the preceding paragraph.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Board recognised that effective communication to shareholders
and potential investors is very important to gain their confidence and
attract new investors.

The Group has taken following measures to enhance the
communication with shareholders and investors of the Group:

(M Annual and interim reports are prepared and issued to all
shareholders within the prescribed period stipulated by the
Stock Exchange. All results announcements and reports are
posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the Company’s
website www.link-asia.com.hk.

(2) The Group releases business update through voluntary
announcement posted on the Stock Exchange’s website and the
Company’s website to keep all shareholders updated about the
business development of the Group.

(3) The Group has provided enquiry mailbox (enquiry@1143.com.hk)
and phone number on the Company’s website. Shareholders,
investors and interested parties are welcome to make their
enquiries through email and phone and the management will
provide their timely response.

Constitutional Documents

During 2020, the Company has not made any changes to its
Memorandum and Articles of Association.
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DIRECTORS
Executive Directors

Mr. Lin Dailian (“Mr. Lin”), aged 40, joined the Group in July 2019. Mr.
Lin graduated from Anhui University of Finance and Economics and
later studied at Fudan University. He is a well-known venture capitalist
in China. Mr. Lin has over 17 years of experience in entrepreneurship
and investment, successfully led or participated in the equity
investment and listing of nearly 30 projects. Mr. Lin has been adhering
to the concept of value investment, real estate finance, corporate
strategic planning and business model shaping. He has extensive
practical experience and professional knowledge in business
management, mergers and acquisitions, and restructuring of
companies. With rich entrepreneurial experience and value investment
philosophy, Mr. Lin has been recognized in the financial industry. He
has won the Top 100 Best Venture Capitalists of Hurun 2016 and the
Top 30 Outstanding Innovative People of China’s Equity Investment in
China.

Mr. Wang Guozhen (“Mr. Wang”), aged 62, was appointed as
independent non-executive Director in November 2019 and was re-
designated as executive Director and vice president of the Company
in April 2020. Mr. Wang holds an executive master’'s degree in
business administration with Cheung Kong Graduate School of
Business. He joined the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of
China in 1982 and has served as heads of various departments. He was
also officer of General Office and Bureaucratic Service Center of
National Council for Social Security Fund, the standing member of
council of Beijing Charity Association and the member of 11th and 12th
Beijing Municipal Committee of the Chinese People’s Political
Consultative Conference.

Mr. Wang acted as the executive director and vice chairman of Hsin
Chong Group Holdings Limited CHT & & B % ik & IR 2 &) (“Hsin
Chong”) from September 2018 to November 2019. Hsin Chong is a
company incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability and the
securities of which were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited until 31 December 2019. Hsin Chong
was principally engaged in engineering and property businesses. Hsin
Chong was wound up by an order of the Supreme Court of Bermuda
dated 20 January 2020, following a winding-up petition being filed by
a creditor and shareholder of Hsin Chong in January 2019. Mr. Wang
confirmed that (i) the winding up had not resulted in any liability or
obligation imposed against him; (ii) there was no wrongful act on his
part leading to the winding up process of Hsin Chong; and (iii) he was
not aware of any actual or potential claim that had been or would be
made against him as a result of the winding up.
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Mr. Duan Chuanhong (“Mr. Duan”), aged 34, was appointed as
executive Director since 1 June 2017. Mr. Duan worked in different
industries for over 10 years and has ample experience in corporate
planning, management and execution.

Mr. Xia Xiaobing (“Mr. Xia”), aged 43, has been appointed as an
executive Director in November 2019. Mr. Xia holds a master’s degree
in business administration from Shanghai Jiaotong University. He has
almost 20 years of experience in human resource management.

Before joining the Group, he has successively served as the human
resource director of Hefei Swire Coca-Cola Company, the human
resources manager of Ctrip Travel, the human resources manager of
McColling, the senior manager of the human resources department of
Shanghai Great Wisdom Co., Ltd., and the human resources and
administration director of Shanghai Tianfu Jingeng Equity Investment
Management Co..

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Li Huiwu (“Mr. Li”’), aged 44, was appointed in October 2019. Mr.
Li obtained a bachelor degree in accounting from Wuhan Polytechnic
University, the People’s Republic of China in June 2002. He is currently
an affiliated member of The Association of International Accountants
and a certified tax planner and a certified intermediate accountant in
the PRC. He has approximately 16 years of experience in financial
accounting, internal audit and risk management. Mr. Li held various
senior positions in the internal audit department in certain companies
listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange where he was mainly
responsible for internal control and risk management matters.
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Mr. Yang Weidong (“Mr. Yang”), aged 47, was appointed in April
2020. Mr. Yang graduated from Hefei Institute of Economics and
Technology with a bachelor’s degree in economics and management
in 1995. He has more than 15 years of experience in business
management and sales management. Mr. Yang served as the regional
sales director of Hangzhou Sunyard System Engineering Co., Ltd from
2001 to 2005. Since August 2005, he has been serving as the deputy
general manager of Hangzhou Teamax Technology Group Co., Ltd (the
“Teamax Technology”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of Teamax Smart
City Technology Co., Ltd. (Stock Code: SZ00662, “Teamax Smart”)
listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, and he is responsible for sales
management and pre-sale supporting. Mr. Yang has held the
supervisor position served as the chairman of the board of supervisors
of Teamax Smart since June 2016 and since June 2019, respectively.

Mr. Yang was previously a director of Teamax Technology, a limited
liability company incorporated in the People’s Republic of China, and
its principal activities include technology development, technical
services and consulting. Neither Teamax Technology nor any of its
subsidiaries is related to the Company or any of its subsidiaries. Mr.
Yang ceased to act as a director of Teamax Technology with effect
from 25 October 2019. According to the notice dated 14 January 2020
published by Hangzhou Binjiang District People’s Court (Fi /M &L
& A RJERL), a bankruptcy and liquidation application filed by Bank of
Jiangsu Co., Ltd., Hangzhou Branch GT# ERTTIXA B R AN 21T
against Teamax Technology (the “Proceedings™) was accepted on 27
November 2019 pursuant to a default in repayment of principal of
RMB48 million and related interests by Teamax Technology. As at the
date of this annual report, the liquidation is in progress.

Mr. Yang confirmed that he is not a party of such Proceedings and is
not aware of any actual or potential claim that has been or will be
made against him as a result of the above.
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Dr. Sun Xiaohu (“Dr. Sun”), aged 56, was appoint as an independent
non-executive Director in January 2021. Dr. Sun holds a doctoral
degree of medicine (immunology) from Shanghai Jiao Tong University
School of Medicine and a certificate of EMBA issued by Center for
National Strategic Studies, Shanghai Jiao Tong University. Dr. Sun has
more than 30 years’ experience in biotechnology companies,
pharmaceutical companies, medical enterprises, research institutes
and hospitals; and nearly 20 years’ experience as senior management
in domestic and international pharmaceutical and medical device
companies. From 10 October 2018 to 31 March 2020, Dr. Sun was the
chief operating officer of China Regenerative Medicine International
Limited, a company whose shares are listed on GEM board of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong (Stock Code: 08158). He also held
various positions with companies in the PRC including the operation
director and marketing director of Vcanbio Cell & Gene Engineering
Corp., Ltd. whose shares are listed on Shanghai Stock Exchange (Stock
Code: 600645); the general manager of Shanghai Claison Bio-tech Co,,
Ltd., the general manager of Shanghai Donghai Pharmaceutical Co.,
Ltd..
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The Board is pleased to present this Environmental, Social and
Governance Report 2020 (the “Report”) to provide an overview of the
Group’s management of significant issues affecting the operation,
including environmental, social and governance issues. This Report is
prepared by the Group with the professional assistance of APAC
Compliance Consultancy and Internal Control Services Limited.

PREPARATION BASIS AND SCOPE

This Report is prepared in accordance with Appendix 27 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (the “Listing Rules”) —
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” and has
complied with the “comply or explain” provision in the Listing Rules.

This Report summarises the performance of the Group in respect of
corporate environmental and social responsibility, covering its
operating activities which are considered as material by the Group —
(i) electronic manufacturing services (“EMS”) for consumer electronic
products with the manufacturing plant located in Guangzhou
(“Guangzhou Factory”) through offering one-stop solutions to a
number of international brand owners (the “EMS” business); and (ii)
securities and other assets investments in Hong Kong, as well as
provision of real estate sale supply chain service business in Southeast
Asia (the “Securities investments and real estate supply chain”
business). The Group’s headquarter office is located in Hong Kong and
its operation location in PRC with its diversified customer base
covering Japan, Asia-Pacific region, America and Europe.

REPORTING PERIOD

This Report demonstrates our sustainability initiatives during the
reporting period from 1 January 2020 to 31 December 2020.

CONTACT INFORMATION

The Group welcomes your feedback on this Report for our
sustainability initiatives. Please give your suggestions or share your
views with the Group via the Group’s social media platforms or email
at enquiry@1143.com.hk.
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INTRODUCTION

The Group is achieving and benchmarking with well-recognized
International Guidelines and protocols of Sustainable development. As
a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining the
highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and
safety, workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The
Group understands a better future depends on everyone’s
participation and contribution. It has encouraged employees,
customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate in
environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a
whole. The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees,
has enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high
quality products and services to its customers so as to ensure
sustainable development.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT AND MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT

The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, who (a) have invested or will
invest in the Group; (b) have the ability to influence the outcomes
within the Group; and (c) are interested in or affected by or have the
potential to be affected by the impact of the Group’s activities,
products, services and relationships. It allows the Group to understand
risks and opportunities. The Group will continue to ensure effective
communication and maintain good relationship with each of its key
stakeholders.

Stakeholders are prioritised from time to time in view of the Group’s
roles and duties, strategic plan and business initiatives. The Group
engages with its stakeholders to develop mutually beneficial
relationships and to seek their views on its business proposals and
initiatives as well as to promote sustainability in the marketplace,
workplace, community and environment.

The Group acknowledges the importance of intelligence gained from
the stakeholders’ insights, inquiries and continuous interest in the
Group’s business activities. The Group has identified key stakeholders
that are important to our business and established various channels
for communication. The following table provides an overview of the
Group’s key stakeholders, and various platforms and methods of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond.
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels

BoE FEH SHERE

Government Compliance with the applicable * Annual reports, interim reports and
B laws and regulations announcements

Shareholders and investors

BRREEE

Employees

(=2

Customers
=P

BTEAEREER
Proper tax payment
BOEMTR

Low risk

ERE

Return on the investment
& Bl ¥R

Information disclosure and
transparency
EREBENRERE
Protection of interests and fair
treatment of shareholders
RIERFER R AFFB

Safeguard the rights and interests
of employees

TRI% (& B 1R R

Working environment

THERIE

Career development opportunities
EX Sy 1

Health and safety

fEEREAZR &

Safe and high-quality products
Zr REBEEMR

Stable relationship

REBE

Information transparency
BERERE

Integrity

B

Business ethics

BERER

FEHRE  PHRERASE
*  Company website
YNGR EbA

* Annual general meetings and other
shareholder meetings
BERBFREG REMBRAS

* Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements
FEBE  PHRERAE

+  Company website
NSIE D

* Meetings with investors and
analysts
HIREERSTENE R

* Trainings, seminars, briefing
sessions
Bl g kENEg
*  Newsletters
ER
* Intranet and emails
A B 4 AN & TB

* Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements
FEHRE  PHRERAE

*  Company website

NGRS

* Email and customer service hotline
BEBREP RBRE

* Regular meetings
EHE S
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Stakeholders Expectations Engagement channels
BHE FEH SHRE
Suppliers and partners * Long-term partnership * Business meetings and phone calls
e R RHIBHBER ¥BERLERE
* Honest cooperation * Regular meetings
HHEE EHEgE
* Fairness and openness * Reviews and assessments
NSNS et REHE
* Information resources sharing
ERER{E
* Risk reduction
P R b
Financial institutions » Compliance with the applicable « Consulting
& EhE laws and regulations B
BTEAAERES + Information disclosure
+ Disclosure of information ZEWE
E R + Annual reports, interim reports and
announcements
FEBE  PHBRERAE
Media * Information transparency +  Company website
HEe SRERE NaElAEuh
* Interviews
[Eil
Public and communities *  Community involvement * Annual reports, interim reports and
NS Lol fLE 2 announcements
«  Social responsibilities FERE  PHBERASE
SEE

Through general communication with stakeholders, the Group
understands the expectations and concerns from stakeholders. The
feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more informed decisions,
and to better assess and manage the resulting impact.

The Group has adopted the principle of materiality in the ESG
reporting by understanding the key ESG issues that are important to
the business of the Group. All the key ESG issues and key performance
indicators (KPIs) are reported in the Report according to
recommendations of the ESG Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the
Listing Rules) and the Global Reporting Initiative Guidelines. The
Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG aspects
through the following steps:
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Step T: Identification — Industry Benchmarking

. Relevant ESG areas were identified through the review of
relevant ESG reports of the local and international industry
peers.

. The materiality of each ESG area was determined based on the
importance of each ESG area to the Group through internal
discussion of the management and the recommendation of ESG
Reporting Guide (Appendix 27 of the Listing Rules).

Step 2: Prioritisation — Stakeholder Engagement

. The Group discussed with key stakeholders on key ESG areas
identified above to ensure all the key aspects were covered.

Step 3: Validation — Determining Material Issues

. Based on the discussion with key stakeholders and internal
discussion among the management, the Group’s management
ensured that all the key and material ESG areas, which were
important to the business development, were reported and in
compliance with ESG Reporting Guide.

As a result of this process carried out in 2020, those important ESG
areas to the Group were discussed in this Report.

ESG GOVERNANCE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

Board’s overall vision and strategy in managing ESG issues

The board of directors (“Board”) has a primary role in overseeing the
management of the Group’s sustainability issues. During the year, the
Board and the ESG Sustainability Working Group spent significant
time in evaluating the impact of ESG-related risks on our operation
and formulating relevant policy in dealing with the risks. The oversight
of the Board is to ensure the management to have all the right tools
and resources to oversee the ESG issues in the context of strategy and
long-term value creation.
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ESG Working Group

To demonstrate our commitment to transparency and accountability,
our Group has established an ESG Working Group, which has clear
terms of reference that set out the powers delegated to it by the
Board. We highly value opinions of each stakeholder and treat them as
the cornerstone for the development of the Group.

The ESG Working Group is primarily responsible for reviewing and
supervising the ESG process, and risk management of the Group.
Different ESG issues were reviewed by the Working Group at the
meetings. During the reporting period, the ESG Working Group and
the management reviewed the ESG governance and different ESG
issues.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material ESG-
related issues

In order to better understand the opinions and expectations of
different stakeholders on our ESG issues, materiality assessment is
conducted each year. We ensure various platforms and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to our key
stakeholders. Through general communication with stakeholders, the
Group is to understand the expectations and concerns from
stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make more
informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the resulting
impact.

The Group has evaluated the materiality and importance in ESG
aspects through the steps: (1) material ESG area identification by
industry benchmarking; (2) key ESG area prioritization with
stakeholder engagement; and (3) validation and determining material
ESG issues based on results of communication among stakeholders
and the management. Hence, this can enhance understanding of their
degree and change of attention to each significant ESG issue, and can
enable us to more comprehensively plan our sustainable development
work in the future. Those important and material ESG areas identified
during our material assessment were discussed in this Report.
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Board review progress against ESG-related goals and targets

The progress of target implementation and the performance of the
goals and targets should be closely reviewed from time to time.
Rectification may be needed if the progress falls short of expectation.
Effective communication about the goals and target process with key
stakeholders such as employees is essential, as this enables them to be
engaged in the implementation process, and to feel they are part of
the change that the company aspires to achieve.

Setting strategic goals for the coming three to five years enables the
company to develop a realistic roadmap and focus on results in
achieving the visions.

Setting targets requires the ESG Working Group to carefully examine
the attainability of the targets which should be weighed against the
company’s ambitions and goals. The ESG Working Group specifies
whether the target is to be set on an absolute basis or intensity basis is
essential for target setting.

A. ENVIRONMENTAL ASPECTS

To demonstrate the Group’s commitments to sustainable
development and compliance with applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations relating to environmental protection, we endeavor
to maintain green manufacturing processes and office
operational practices in order to minimize the adverse
environmental impacts of our business activities.

Achieving the balance among another two pillars of society and
economy of the sustainable development, the Group is dedicated
to contributing to the environmental, the third pillar of the
sustainability and following these principles to minimize our
adverse impacts on the environment:

. Complying with all the applicable Regional Laws and
Regulations from all levels and functions of the
organization

. Assuring needs, expectations and/or applicable legal
requirements (if any) of the relevant interested parties; the
person or organization that can affect, be affected by, like
shareholders and/or stakeholders including customers,
suppliers, communities, regulators, non-governmental
organizations, investors and employees relating to
environmental protection being communicated and
understood
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Employing ISO-14001 Environmental Management System
to adopt systematic approach to effectively protect the
environment and respond to changing environmental
conditions in balance with socio-economic needs

Ensuring sufficient investments and resources for the
environmental-friendly facilities, equipment and
instruments that are operating safely, effectively and more
efficient

Reinforcing promotion of conservation commitments,
educational training, and enhancing staff’s environmental
protection awareness

Incorporating environmental targets and objectives into
our business strategic visions and competitive implication
by aligning them with business priorities and decision
making

EMISSIONS

The Group acknowledges its responsibility to the
environment and has ethical duties to reduce emissions.
Given the nature of our business, the impacts on the
environment and nature resources are not significant. In
spite of this, we are committed to minimizing our
environmental impacts by responsibly managing our
business operations, reducing our carbon footprint and
using resources effectively.

In the meantime, we have full complied with all of the
relevant environmental laws and regulations where we
operated such as the Atmospheric Pollution Prevention
and Control Law of the People’s Republic of China (2015) in
the PRC, the Motor Vehicle Idling (Fixed Penalty)
Ordinance (Cap. 611), and the Road Traffic Ordinance (Cap.
374) in Hong Kong. Besides, no concluded case (2019: nil).
regarding emissions was brought against us or our
employees during the year.
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A1.1 Air Pollutant Emissions

The Group attaches great importance to mitigate the
possible adverse impact of its EMS business on the
environmental and considers environmental
protection mindset an important obligation during its
production and operating activities. The Group’s
major environmental aspects mainly include energy
consumption and wastes generation. Nevertheless,
the impact on natural resources is minimal due to our
business nature.

During our operation, the PRC factory’s canteen used
Liquefied petroleum gas (LPG) as the cooking fuel
and the factory generated electricity itself by seven
power generators for one hour bimonthly with the
use of diesel. The electricity generated would be
consumed during staggered power consumption.
Moreover, the petrol consumption came from vehicle
use for business transportation purpose. The burning
of LPG, the consumptions of diesel and petrol
generated nitrogen oxides (NO,), sulphur dioxides
(S0,) and particulate matter (PM) to the environment
nearby. For the stationary sources, the air pollutant
emissions from LPG remained stable for cooking use
in PRC factory canteen during the year. The decrease
in the air pollutant emissions from diesel was mainly
attributable to the disposal of two power generators
and no staggered power consumption during the
year. Owing to the COVID-19 outbreak in early 2020,
the reduced vehicle use frequency by the
management and staff led to significant drop in air
pollutant emissions by the PRC companies during the
Year.
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The details of air pollutant emissions during the
reporting period were as follows:

Securities

investments and

real estate

supply chain

Air Pollutants Unit EMS EFRER

EREEY B ETHERY - EhEMESE

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) kg 74.66 -
REly TR

— Stationary combustion kg 72.77 -
- REEERER Tr

— Mobile combustion kg 1.89 -
~ REBHRER T

Sulfur oxides (SOy) kg 5,518.18 -
— &b TR

— Stationary combustion kg 5,517.98 -
- REEERER Tr

— Mobile combustion kg 0.20 -
-~ REBBHRER T

Particulate matter (PM) kg 7.55 -
TR TR

— Stationary combustion kg 7.39 -
- REEERER Tr

— Mobile combustion kg 0.16 -
~ REBHRER T

Emissions from production

Volatile organic compounds (VOCs) are the major
organic waste produced during the paint spraying
process for our products. Therefore, the governance
of industrial waste gases containing VOCs is the focus
and control area for our product fabrication
processes.

! The data of year 2019 has been restated as different calculation models and
methodologies were adopted.

2 The data for year 2019 particulate matter emission from stationary LPG combustion has
not been disclosed in last year report.

RmEHA -
MW

2020
Total
—B-%F

)

74.66

72.77

1.89

5,518.18

5,517.98

0.20

7.55

1.39

0.16

EERIPEIL

=R R

224.341

220.81*

3.5%

5,038.34

5,037.99*

0.35¢

26.71

26.422

0.29*
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Besides VOCs discharges, benzene, toluene, xylene,
total non-methane hydrocarbons, lead and tin are
also the air pollutant being produced during our
production process. During the Year, a licensed party
was outsourced by the Group to carry out an
inspection assessment regarding to the average
density and speed of waste gases emissions from our
factory on a specific date.

The assessment results provided by the licensed
party showed that our waste gases emission has met
the standard discharge limit of the relevant
environmental regulations in the PRC, the assessment
results of the density and speed of waste gases
emissions are shown in the following tables:

BREZEARLLEMHER
S BPIMAEEBRRTGE
EERGROE - BE =
FR - FFREE DR
Bk RFEAR KE
B [\ — R fE T NI R
BRI TR EE B SRR
MENFHZTE REREST
A -

FEDRENFHERET
TR EERBEAT & P B3
RIRBERZEFRRE -
BERBEEN T E MR R AT
HAERIIN TR

Average density EHERE
Year 2020 :g:gqi

Lead and its Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit compounds compounds
BERBERK By HEEAEY HBRELEY
Old factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND)
ERIMEESM 25,/ HXK RigH Kig
New factory production unit mg/m? Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND)
I EEEN 25,/ HXK R R
Standard Discharge limit mg/m? <0.7 <85
SRR 25,/ HXK
Results - Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: 20040351
A IRE RS 20040351

Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020
BEA#: —S-SFHA+=H
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Volatile organic
compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene BEa
BREN Bfy 3 GEN ZRXE BHLEN
Organic waste gas emission from mg/m’ Not-Detected Not-Detected 0.45 3.26
old factory production unit 2R/UAK (ND) (ND)
REEBIMEEENM At At
FRERIN
Waste gas emission from mag/m? Not-Detected Not-Detected 0.62 4.25
new factory production unit 257/1HK (ND) (ND)
REFIHEESA A At
BHERBEH
Waste gas emission exhaust mg/m? Not-Detected Not-Detected Not-Detected Not-Applicable
port from plastic injection BRIk (ND) (ND) (ND) (N/A)
after waste gas treatment R R R TER
BREBGTEREEN
BERHEHA
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m? Not-Detected Not-Detected 0.36 2.99
from assembly pad printing En/IHk (ND) (ND)
after waste gas treatment R R
ERRERAZBONEREND
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m’ Not-Detected Not-Detected 0.55 3.82
from spray painting after waste ~ Z= /S HK (ND) (ND)
gas treatment R Rig
BREEREREENERNRD
Standard Discharge limit mg/m’ <12 <40 <70 <60
BEBMIRE 25,/ Uk
Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: 20040352
HERERT © 20040352

Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020
BERS: —E2-FEMA+=H
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Year 2019 —E-hEF
Volatile organic
compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene Ba
BRER Bfy b3 R 1} 3 BRan
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m?’ Not-Detected (ND) 0.61 0.25 Not-Detected (ND)
from plastic factory production 2R/ A% Kt Kigit
REZHIREERNERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port mg/m? Not-Detected (ND) 0.26 0.23 4.06
from pad printing production ER/IHk R
REBHAENERHNRD
Standard Discharge limit mag/m? <12 <40 <70 Not-Applicable
BEBEIRE BRIk (N/A)
TEA
Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: JA201904053

HEREES + JA201904053

Sampling Collection Date: 10 April 2019

DERS: —T-NFOATH
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Average speed FEE
Year 2020 —EC-SE
Lead and Tin and its
Waste gases of emissions Unit its compounds compounds
BRER By HEEEEY BRELEY
Old factory production unit ka/h Not-Detected (ND) Not-Detected (ND)
ERETIHEEEN NN A R
New factory production unit ka/h Not-Detected (ND) Not-Detected (ND)
HImEESN NIV AR Rigd
Standard Discharge limit ka/h <0.014 <0.97
RELIR NIV
Results - Pass Pass
Assessment Report Number: 20040351
ARSI © 20040351
Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020
RS —S-EFNA+=H
Volatile organic
compounds
(VoC)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene Ba
BRER Bfy & BE —RE EHLEn
Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h Not-Detected (ND) ~ Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) ~ Not-Detected (ND)
from injection factory production NN Figi P P N
REFS IRAENERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port ko/h Not-Detected (ND)  Not-Detected (ND) 47X10° 39X10?
from pad printing production NN Rigi R
REBHEENERERD
Standard Discharge limit ko/h <0.86 <54 <17 Not-Applicable (NA)
BEBHRE NN TER
Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: 20040352

TFERERS 1 20040352

Sampling Collection Date: 13 April 2020

MERE: —E-TEMAT=A
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Year 2019 —E-hEF
Volatile organic
compounds
(voc)
Waste gases of emissions Unit Benzene Toluene Xylene Ba
BRER B b3 R —BR BRan
Waste gas emission exhaust port ka/h 16X10° 13X10? 52X 10° Not-Detected (ND)
from injection factory production  Af /7] R
RIS IREERNBERERD
Waste gas emission exhaust port kg/h 8.1X10° 28X10° 24X10° 4.4X10?
from pad printing production NIV
REBHAENERHNRD
Standard Discharge limit kg/h <0.86 <54 <17 <36
B HIRE INIVZINE
Results - Pass Pass Pass Pass

Assessment Report Number: JA201904053
THEREHS « JA201904053

Sampling Collection Date: 10 April 2019
BEAE: —E-NERATH

During the year, a licensed party was outsourced by
the Group to carry out an assessment in April 2020
regarding to the number of discharges of VOCs,
benzene, toluene, xylene, and non-methane
hydrocarbons. In addition, the Group also outsourced
the licensed party to carry out another assessment in
13 April 2020 regarding to the amount of lead and tin
emissions. Sampling collection points reduced in
2020 when compared to 2019 as the production level
reduced in old factory during 2020.
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Al.2 Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”) Emissions

As the Paris Agreement sends a clear signal that the
shift to a low-carbon economy is inevitable, and
everyone must play their part as a corporate citizen.
In order to facilitate such transition, the Group has
continued participation to the Carbon Disclosure
Project (CDP) supply chain program which aims to
help CDP highlight and spur meaningful action on
tackling climate change by capturing vital data on
climate change.

This can improve collaboration and encourage
transparency. Our greenhouse gas emission is
reported on the platform in July on an annual basis.
We will strive to meet our air pollutants reduction
target of 5% by 2025.

The greenhouse gas emission produced by the Group
is mainly arising from indirect emissions (Scope 2)
from purchased electricity for the production factory.
In addition, we also had direct emission (Scope 1)
principally resulted from the consumptions of
liguefied petroleum gas for running the factory
canteens, burning of diesel fuel and vehicles uses. The
GHG scope 1 emission from LPG remained stable for
cooking use in PRC factory canteen during the year.
The decrease in the GHG scope 1 emission from diesel
was mainly attributable to the disposal of two
generators and no staggered power consumption
during the year. Due to the COVID-19 outbreak in
early 2020, the reduced vehicle use frequency by the
management and staff led to the reduction of GHG
scope 1 emissions of mobile sources in China. The
decrease in GHG scope 2 emission was mainly due to
the decrease in production volume of the EMS
segment during the Year.
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The details of GHG emissions during the reporting
period were as follows:

RmEBMA - RERBIN

Type of GHG emissions® Unit EMS
BERBHNEE" EfY ETRERE
Scope 1¢— Stationary combustion  tonnes of CO,-¢ 2842
g1 - ETmER M-EltiEs
Scope 1+ = Mobile combustion tonnes of CO-e 586
HE1-BEER B-gl g
Scope 2° tonnes of CO-e 7,823.09
E)S B-gl g
Total GHG emissions tonnes of CO-e 7,851.37
BEREHNLE Mgl g
GHG emissions intensity tonnes of CO,-¢/ 0.01
BEREHHEE unit of
production
volume
tonnes of CO,¢/ 783
employee
M-Sk
28/EEE[
gtk
5/[E8

The calculation of the GHG emission is based on the “Corporate Accounting and
Reporting Standard” from GHG Protocol published by World Resources Institute and
World Business Council for Sustainable Development.

Scope T: Direct emissions from sources that are owned or controlled by the Group.

The data of year 2019 has been restated as different calculation models and
methodologies were adopted.

Scope 2: Indirect emissions from the generation of purchased electricity consumed by
the Group.

The data of 2019 has been restated for comparative purpose for adoption of the latest
calculation tools for Mainland China electricity consumption.

The data for year 2019 GHG emission intensity of securities investments and real estate
supply chain segment has not been disclosed by the Group.

E=0 —F :

Securities

investments and
real estate 2019
supply chain Total
BERER “E-NF
B ERERE @t
- 40.55°
- 10.34
75.33 7,898.42 9,047.4%
75.33 7,932.70 9,098.32°
- EMS: 0.01°
Securities: -
159 EMS: 8.01°

Securities: N/A?
ETRUEMRT : 007
EFRERE 80P

Fh MRS

BERAEERE RN REIR T Rt R bR OoKE
RGEBHRERBRESETETN (DRI ER
EEE]FE -

EE : NEEMTES SIZHINER 2 EEHR
BHREATRANEREEIDE At =T - A FNE
BETEY -

SE2 : ARFEHEENCBENEL ZMEHR

RN EAT BRI AEFETIS BTN
FNBECTES - AR A -
AEETEBRE_FT-NEFEFREMFOERERED
R ERBHNEERIE -
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A1.3 Hazardous Waste Al3 BEEEEY

The Group is dedicated to managing waste in a
responsible way and strives to optimize the use of
resources. The Guangzhou factory has established a
comprehensive hazardous waste management
system and carries out disposal of hazardous waste
in accordance with relevant PRC laws and
regulations.

Our hazardous waste mainly include waste activated
carbon with organic matters, banana oil polluted
waste fabrics, waste lubricant and engine oil, waste
emulsion oil, waste paint and paint residual. There is a
separate storage area in the factory for storing
hazardous solid waste. Our factory also works with
institutions which are qualified for handling disposal
of hazardous waste. The decrease in the amount of
solid hazardous waste generated was mainly
attributable to the decrease in production volume of
the EMS segment during the year. On the other hand,
the increase in the amount of aqueous hazardous
waste generated was mainly due to the EMS products
we are delivering and stereo headphones products
requiring more paint use during the Year.

AEBYNRUNEEENT
ANEEERY AFRNEL
BIRAA - BNBEEZZ
EENBEEBEEYERER
B UARBABTBEIERZR
EREEBEERED -

BPNEEERNIERR
BHWEYELR FEBS
REZEY BERBHNK
Wom - ERIH - BERER
HRERY - ZMERE M
RiFMEEEEREEZENNTF
R - WA EE BRI
BEENEEREERY -
PRELMEREZEENH
ERINEEARFAET
BUERB D AHEERD -
A E MELANRESR
EEEVHEEMOIEH
RERBMZNEFRER
BEMMIEBREKERS
BEMEZ M
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The details of hazardous waste generated by the

AEERBERNELENE

Group during the reporting period were as follows: ERFEMFBT ¢
Securities
investments and
real estate 2019
supply chain Total
Hazardous wastes generated Unit EMS BERER —E-NE
FEENEEEEY Efy ETHERE EiEREE @3t
Circuit board tonnes 0.006 - -
BEMR i
Steel bin tonnes 0.030 - 0011
i i
Active charcoal tonnes 0.726 - 1.274
el i
Paint tonnes 0.146 - 0.004
AR i
Storage battery tonnes - - 0.015
EEH i
Rag tonnes - - 0.175
B i
Light tube tonnes - - 0.001
BE i
Organic solvent tonnes - - 0.015
@AY i
Total hazardous waste generated tonnes 0.908 - 1.495°
FEENNEZEENER i
Hazardous waste generated tonnes/unit of 0.001 - EMS: 0.001
intensity production Securities: -
FEENEZEENVE volume BFRERE  0.001
I/ EEEN Fp -

The data of year 2019 has been restated for as different calculation models and

methodologies were adopted.

9
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Al.4 Non-hazardous Waste Al4 EEEEY

Our non-hazardous waste generated from the
Guangzhou factory operation mainly consists of
scrap, wasted packaging materials, waste residual
from sewer and filter tank, as well as other domestic
waste. Wasted packaging materials mainly include
cardboard boxes for product wrap up.

We consider the principle of environmentally friendly
in our packaging design and select more eco-friendly
packaging materials for our packaging process.

In addition, the Group continues to implement paper
saving initiatives, such as double-sided printing,
reminding staff to have environmentally-friendly
photocopying practice, and separate collection of
waste paper for effective recycling. Recycling bins
are placed in office to regularly collect used paper.
Employees are encouraged to read and send files
electronically to reduce printing. The Group is
targeted to reduce the generation of waste paper
and total non-hazardous waste of 8% and 5%
respectively by 2025. With the reduction in the
production volume of the EMS segment during the
reporting period, the amount of non-hazardous waste
generated decreased. As more customers requested
packages for their products, the amount of scrap and
wasted packaging materials increased during the
Year.

HAEMBE 2 EMELHN
BEEEEMIZEEEM
BEEBEME - THRKERRE
O REE DA R L Mo AR BIR
BEBEMHMIEREEM
BRAMRME -

BPERRR LRFRRE
FRATHEBEBEFERE
IRRH BRI Y -

PEoh - NREBRFERITEL
FA#ER  flmiEREmT
BN 1R B TIRFFIRIRM &
ENE1E ko RSB S E
WHRARNEL - BAEES
Bl U A + LATE BRI R U AR iR &Y
MaR - WEENE THIERE
KEFXE BALITH - K
SEMEERY T -RF
HEAIBESEENEESD
Bk 8% K 5% o FA 3R 2 HA
N BEEEFRERBSE
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The details of non-hazardous waste generated by the

Group during the reporting period were as follows:

Securities
investments and
real estate
supply chain
Non-hazardous waste generated ~ Unit EMS BERER
FEENEEREY Efi ETHERY EitEMER
Scrap and wasted packaging kg 68,841 -
materials N
BHREZARNEC
Waste residual from sewer and kg 27,000 -
filter tank NI
TRERENEE
Domestic waste kg 133,749 252
EENR N
Total non-hazardous waste kg 229,590 252
generated N
REEHMEZEENES
Non-hazardous waste kg/unit of 0.008 -
generated intensity production
MEENNEZEENEE volume
kg/employee 0.465 5307
DF/EREM
/B8

Scrap and wasted packaging materials include the packaging wastes and plastic wastes.
The data for year 2019 non-hazardous waste generation of domestic waste has not been
disclosed by the Group.
The data of year 2019 has been restated for as different calculation models and
methodologies were adopted.

REERBERANELNE
TEEYHEBWT

2019
Total
“I-NE

st

62269

222000

134,001 461783

229,842 746,057

EMS: 0.022"
Securities: -

EMS: 0.001

Securities: -

BT RUEMRT - 00222
EFERUEMRT - 0.001

© R REERREMNHNRERRERNRIEMEEY) -
! AEEYEEE T -NFETURELNBETEED
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BETED -
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A2.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group adheres to the concept of energy conservation
and emission reduction for green production. The major
resources used by the Group are principally attributed to
electricity, water and packaging materials consumed at the
factory in Guangzhou. We aim to improve our energy
utilization efficiency to achieve low-carbon practices and
emission reduction throughout our production and
operation and strive to save the resources.

The Group has implemented guidelines and policies for
energy saving management which include in-house rules
for both office and factory employees to follow. Besides,
we have devised follow-up plan after the third-party
certifications for the ISO-14001 standard. Our
environmental management team helps set up the energy
saving targets, emissions reduction level and
environmental management programmes. Moreover, our
General Affairs Department is responsible for carrying out
the monitoring work for effective uses of energy and
natural resources.

A2.1 Energy Consumption

We have implemented a range of measures designed
to reduce emissions and minimize its consumption of
energy and natural resources. We also promote a
paperless office and encourage staff to reduce
electricity and water usage in their daily work to
maintain a green office.

In order to reduce the electrical energy consumption,
the Group gradually replaces the traditional lighting
tubes with energy-saving tubes which have higher
energy efficiency and longer life cycle by 6-8 times.

We have established a maintenance and conservation
policy for equipment which aims at enhancing the
optimal use of machineries.
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In addition, a number of energy conservation
promotional banners and posters are post up in
various places to remind workers in production areas.
Through catchy slogan and posters, every worker can
pay high attention to environmental protection and
resource conservation. Moreover, we are engaging in
the periodical reporting on energy consumption
surveys conducted by interested parties like clients
and regional governmental bureau. The Group has
set inclusive total energy reduction target by 5% by
2025. The decrease in production volume of the EMS
segment led to the decrease in electricity
consumption during the year. Energy consumption of
LPG remained stable for cooking use in PRC factory
canteen during the year. The significant reduction in
the diesel consumption of was mainly attributable to
the disposal of two generators and no power
suspension during the year. As Hong Kong companies
are included current year reporting scope, the Hong
Kong petrol consumption increased slightly during
the year. However, owing to the COVID-19 outbreak
in early 2020, the reduced vehicle use frequency by
the management and staff led to significant drop in
PRC petrol consumption during the year.
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During the reporting period, the details of energy
consumption were as follows:

Securities
investments and
real estate
supply chain
Type of energy Unit EMS BERER
fRER Efy ETHERK EitEMER
Purchased electricity MWh 936951 16049
BEE THE
Diesel MWh 1319 -
% THE
LPG MWh 11210 -
RILERR ThE
Petrol MWh 4768 -
ol THE
Total energy consumption MWh 954248 160.49
RRERAS Thk
Energy consumption intensity MWh/unit of 0.01 -
BRERAE production
volume
MWh/employee 949 338
TRE/ESEM
THE/A

The data of year 2019 has been restated for as different calculation models and

methodologies were adopted.

The data for year 2019 energy consumption of diesel, LPG and petrol has not been

disclosed by the Group.

The data for year 2019 energy consumption intensity of securities investments and real
estate supply chain segment has not been disclosed by the Group.

13

14

15

RMEMA - BERBRFE

2019

Total Total
“¥-%F “E-nF
@t L)
9,530.00 10,832.38 "
13.19 6782
11210 102.28%
47.68 413"
9,702.97 1.044.61%
EMS: 0.01®

Securities: -

EMS: 972"

Securities: N/A®
ETFEUERE : 0.01°
ETRERE 972

5 NERS

MRRATEREEARE - —E-NFBEEET -

FEEYEFE_FT-AFNEE BB BRRTH

HBE
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A2.2 Water Consumption

Currently, the water supply is mainly from the
municipal water supply. The Group has a strong focus
on the water conservation, and therefore tries to
prevent water pollution which is mainly generated
from workers’ living activities. The Guangzhou factory
uses the sewage bio-chemical treatment facility and
adopts water reuse so as to reduce the water
consumption and ensure water is used sustainably.

We build our own sewage treatment facilities in the
factory to undertake sewage treatment before
discharging, the water from reclaimed water tank is
used for irrigation in staff living quarters. Moreover,
the factory has applied push-button taps instead of
screwdriver faucet in order to reduce water wastage.
In 2025, the Group targets to achieve the reduction
of the total water consumption by 8%. The decrease
in water consumption was mainly due to the decrease
in production of volume of the EMS segment during

A2.2 Ak

BRl - KREEFERS™T
AR o 7N & B & B K
BRRE - AR NENE
DEABTALEEEHHK
EH e BINBE TS KA
Wit 25 1B % i & EE K [E
B WM EKHEE &g
RKATFFEFEA -

BMEIBMARLTECDH
VEIKER B R HE - TE PR RRAT E
EKETEE BEIRS
F Bl KA ISR 7K AR
ERL o AN BEBE AR
FEE /K BESE - EVAVIRBE R K
BERE - AR A IKRE - R
ZohE AEEMEER
BIRBRAKEMLD8% - AK
WO EERHRFANSE %%

the year. The details of water consumption were as BRI D BHEZERD -
follows: KEFIBWT
Securities
investments and
real estate 2019
supply chain Total
Water consumption Unit EMS BERER E-NE
Bk Bfy ETHERE FHERER &
Water consumption m’ 71,655 490 95,614
Fk TRk
Water consumption intensity m*/unit of 0.01 - EMS: 0.01%
FkEE production Securities;: -
volume EMS. 8417
m‘/employee 7141 1032 Securities: N/A”
TRk EEEN TR : 0070
IAR/A &k -

The footnote data of 2019 has been restated with the adoption of m® as the unit of water B
consumption.

The data for year 2019 water consumption intensity of securities investments and real v
estate supply chain segment has not been disclosed by the Group.

T RUEMRT - 8417
5 TERT

RRRAL I RIERRKER - —2—NFEEDET -

AEEYARFEE -_F-NFEHRERFHEHREES
BB RKEE R
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A.2.3Packaging Material A2.3 BEMR

Our packaging materials for finished goods mainly
include label, paper packing materials such as
cardboard box, plastic bag and Styrofoam. The Group
is dedicated to consuming the least packaging
materials as possible. It is the Group’s practice to
implement production planning in a timely basis so as
to assess the least amount of packaging materials
needed.

The Group is also committed to sourcing recyclable
packaging materials from suppliers with eco-friendly

%%ﬁfcu“u MBEXEMHEREE
CHBERME AR

Jiﬂ RBERLEBKLE
e REBBNREERK

KM ERE - AEEHN
EPREREwEERS
ARHE PR B R F &R D
;e o

RE B IR N RIFIRRIE B
Ko 8 <7 [R) {8 7 3R BB T T8 3R

practice and engagement. The decrease in packaging FROBEME - &R
material amount was mainly due to the decrease in HERLEITEEHARNFAE
production of volume of the EMS segment during the FTRERBDBHEER
year. On the other hand, the significant increase in Do Z—FH - %—i‘fﬁlhﬁ/@

the consumption of Styrofoam was mainly
attributable to the sharp increase in the production
volume of the products which required the protection
of foam during transportation during the year. During
the reporting period, the packaging materials
consumption was shown in the following table:

RIBFOBFEAMEIE N - £
%Eﬁﬁéilﬂq@ﬁ@iﬁﬁﬁPmﬁ
ERRNE M E 8 NIRIE
e RMEHA - BEMH
HRBENITRAR

Securities
investments and
real estate 2020 2019
supply chain Total Total
Type of packaging material Unit EMS BERER k- S35 -0k
BENNER Bfy ETHERY EiEMER @it @it
Label piece 8470,156 - 8,470,156 10,835,572
g% #
Paper packing material piece 25527847 - 25,527,847 31108,304
REEME #
Plastic bag piece 5272559 - 5,272,559 6445997
EHE I
Styrofoam piece 2,680,405 - 2,680,405 94749
BRZIERRER #
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL RESOURCES

The Group has established a policy of “Environmental and
Safety Objectives, Indices and Plans Control Procedures” to
identify the Group’s environmental targets, implement
environmental plans and validate the achievement results.

The Group acts as a responsible corporate citizen by
complying with all the applicable regional environmental
laws and regulations for our business activities in the PRC.
Besides, the Guangzhou factory has obtained the ISO-
14001 Environmental certification.

It is the Group’s ambition to sustain compliance obligation,
safe production, resources conservation, pollution
mitigation, wastes reduction, accident-free, as well as
packaging materials recycling.

The Group is continuously incorporating environmental
targets into business decision making, we believe that
protecting the environment is always the crucial concerns
for our manufacturing nature business.

A3.1 Significant Impacts of Activities on the Environment
and Natural Resources

Under the rapid pace of industrialization, most of the
provinces and direct-controlled municipalities are
facing with smog in the PRC. This weather would
affect people’s lives and it is not beneficial to the
enhancement of sustainability rationale.

Hence, sustainable development could be boosted if
the corporations allocate the work based on the life
cycles and periods of the renewable resources during
the growth process.

During the Year, the Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations in relation to environmental protection for
our business activities. Still, the Group has different
measures to save the energy consumption and
emissions, to reduce the impacts of the business
activities to the environment and natural resources.
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A4. CLIMATE CHANGE

Governance

Our Group addresses climate-related risks based on the
nature of the risk to our operations. The physical impacts
of climate change, including extreme weather events, or
damage to facilities have immediate operational impacts
and are treated as operational risks. Long-term challenges,
such as emerging ESG issues and climate-related risks and
opportunities, may be discussed by the Group’s ESG
Working Group.

Our ESG Working Group provides effective governance for
integrating and addressing ESG issues, including climate
change, within our business. The ESG Working Group is
responsible for approving operational emissions targets for
the Group and commissioning an ESG benchmarking, as
well as gap analysis exercise to identify gaps in both
disclosure and policy relative to best practice standards.
Moreover, the ESG Working Group works closely with the
Group’s different operation departments, with an aim to
develop consistent and enhanced approaches on
addressing ESG risk issues and report to the management.

Strategy

Climate change risk forms part of our overall risk profile
through its role in increasing the frequency and intensity of
certain diseases, and the health and mortality impacts
resulting from natural disasters. We assess the overall level
of risk by taking into consideration a range of diverse risk
factors across the many categories in our product or
services range. This diversity of risk is combined with our
business strategy and broad geographic footprint helps us
distribute risk and provide protection against the impacts
of short-term climate change effects.

A4,

= [ sk

RIRE(L

ﬁ
s
B/A

AREBREE R 1 E e 6
RIBENRER - RIEE({CYIE
TE(BEBHRAREHRBEER
BEEERFELBEURE/EE
R o AEERE HERERT
BN EHRTHIROIRE - HE
K EARE & RIRAA R A R R
BERPKBETRW

BMERE g RERIENAE
EHRMNEBBENAES KR
RE - HERESHBE(BERR
B)ETHEUESR - BRE HE
REBIIENEBEIEREEE
BEYMER  RBRLEETR
B HgRERBERTESN
REAEEEREUNREEFEE
B ERKET AT  BEHN - 1R
B e RESIIE/NMEEARER
TRMELEBEBRFEE  SEH
E—B FREMFAREIER
B g kERERE®E  LME
BEHRSE -

BB

R b A TR P EE R R 1Y
—®#D REEMETRFEELE
RBEARBARKEHERERILT
HMFE - RAOINFHERERARKF
B @ BRI RMNE®RIRGH
Bl 2 (&85 — R 5 TR R E
= ERRNSEERREMNE
BEEREZOMESHIELES -
BOREM D BRI
RIRBEHFBIRMRE -

Annual Report &3 2020 71



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARE

72

Our products and services continue to provide protection
for people in our communities against weather and heat-
related disease. Besides, we continue to explore
opportunities to engage our business partners and
encourage them to develop climate resilience and reduce
their operational carbon footprint by taking into
consideration of different climate-related scenarios,
including a “2°C or lower scenario” through the following
steps:

Step I: Set Future Images Assuming Climate Change Effects

As climate change measures proceeds, there is a possibility
that the industry will be exposed to substantial changes,
such as stricter policies including the introduction of and
increases in carbon pricing, as well as advances in
technology and changes in customer awareness.

In light of these climate change effects, based on the
International Energy Agency (“IEA”) scenarios and others,
we developed multiple future images of 2030 as the
external environment that will surround our Group. With
regard to the IEA scenarios, we put focus on the 2°C
scenario (2DS) and pictured future images in case where
climate change measures do not progress and where such
measures progress further (Beyond 2°C scenario).

Step 2: Consider the Impacts

We considered the impacts on our Group for each of the
future images developed in Step 1. We believe that in such
a society, it will be possible to expand carbon dioxide
reduction effects.

With regard to effects on raw material procurement and
production, introduction of, and increase in carbon pricing
is anticipated in accordance with the global advance of
climate change measures, leading to the possibility of
higher raw material procurement and production costs.
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On the other hand, in the case where climate change
measures are not adequate throughout society, production
interruptions and supply chain disruptions are likely to
increase as a result of higher frequency and intensification
of natural disasters such as flooding.

Step 3: Respond to the Strategies

Our Group will begin promoting the reduction of non-
renewable energy during the production. This strategy will
allow for flexible and strategic responses to each demand
for the regions where the emission factors of purchased
electricity consumptions are high. By promoting real
carbon emissions reductions throughout the world through
these types of initiatives, we are working to achieve zero
carbon emission in the life cycle of the product.

We are also working toward zero carbon emission from the
plants in the production stage and reducing carbon
emissions through comprehensive energy-saving and
introduction of renewable energy and hydrogen. With
respect to renewable energy in particular, we have set a
new target to achieve a 10 percent reduction rate for
purchased electricity by 2025. With regard to the ongoing
confirmation of the suitability and progress of the Group’s
strategies, we believe that we will have opportunities for
stable funding and sustainable increases in corporate value
through appropriate information disclosure, dialogue with
institutional investors and other stakeholders.

Risk Management

Our Group identifies the climate change related risks or to
test the existing risk management strategies under climate
change with the aid of risk assessment. Hence, the areas
where new strategies are needed could be identified.

The risk assessment takes a standard risk-based approach
using national data, local information and expert
knowledge, which can identify how climate change may
compound existing risks or create new ones. The risk
assessment is conducted through the following steps:
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Step I: Establish the context

. Objective/goal

. Scale

. Time frame

. Climate change scenario for most climate variables
and sea level

Step 2: Identify existing risk (past and current)

. Identify the record of occurrence of climatic hazard in
the past in the area

. Risk management strategies in place to tackle future
occurrence of the hazard

Step 3: Identify future risk and opportunities

. Explore climate change projections for the selected
time frame(s) and emission scenario(s)

. Identify potential hazards

. Investigate whether any existing risk from Step 2 may
get worse under future projected changes

. Identify new risks that can emerge under future
projected changes

Step 4: Analyse and evaluate risk

. |dentify a set of decision areas or systems (i.e.,
geographical areas, business operation, assets,
ecosystems, etc.) that has the potential to be at risk
in future
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As outlined within the Governance section above, the
Group has robust risk management and business planning
processes that are overseen by the board of directors in
order to identify, assess and manage climate-related risks.
The Group is to engage with government and other
appropriate organisations in order to keep abreast of
expected and potential regulatory and/or fiscal changes.

We continue to raise awareness of climate change in
regard to monitoring of carbon and energy footprint in our
daily operation. However, there remains gaps in
understanding how such climate risks and opportunities
may impact our operations, assets and profits. Our Group
assesses how the business addresses climate change risks
and opportunities and takes the initiative to monitor and
reduce their environmental footprint.
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A4.1 Significant Climate-related Issues

During the reporting period, the significant climate-related
physical risks and transition risks, which have impacted
and/or may impact our Group, as well as the steps taken to
manage these risks, were as follows:

A4l EXRRIEEBEEZEE

RBEHA - BER/ A
RREASEELATENRER
HENERBEERRMBR
Rk - AR SEEZ SRR
MERE I EhaE P T -

Detailed description of risks Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks

[0 B B9 5 A i3 AEBZZRKMKENER

Physical Risk

ERER

Acute physical risks

ZMEERRE

— Increased severity and —  Operating cost Adopted scenario analysis to
frequency of extreme weather increases disclose an organization’s

events such as cyclones and
floods, strong wind. Staffs are
easily being injured. Also,
under the extreme weather
events, the costs of
transportation,
communications and living
increase, which may lead to
financial loss.

- BmARREH (BB R - BRI
K~ 3R R BBk B AN SR SR
me BIRSZE o loh - R
Bim KREMT @ B - \BE
MAEEKRAYE L3R - AlaeE

B TIEk o

—  Increased likelihood and —  Expenditures
severity of wildfire, which may increase in
hinder the operations of monitoring and
factories. Financial loss occurs execution of the
due to the interruption of contingency plan.

supply chain, logistics and
transportation.

planning under future scenarios,
most notably one with ina 2°C
scenario to collect, management
and measure the climate change
impacts such as emissions and
use of resources etc.

B HRFI 59 I LA B BB AL A A R
KBRS BRRDE2OCHER
LA DR - EIR0N
ERBEBCOPE - MHRRAER
PEER

Planned to establish a natural
disasters emergency plan.
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Detailed description of risks
0 B Y 5 A

Financial Impact
B E

Steps taken to manage the risks
HEEZE R TR

More than a decade,
Guangzhou factory is in the
supply chain of Automotive
Industry. It is mandatory
requirements for the
manufacturing site to have its
contingency plan to satisfy
customer requirements in the
event of an emergency such
as utility interruptions, labour
shortages, key equipment
failure and field returns.
TEFHR  BENBEERAE
TERMEERES - RIBIRAB A
FAFE - RESBERAT IR
%%%qﬂ & BE a3

BEWEFRGRE) - 8iE
Iﬁ%%llmﬁé,u\ﬁ%ﬂ LA 2 &
SES

Expenditures
increase in
monitoring and
execution of the

contingency plan.

EENMAITES
RIS IB AN

=&l

Contingency plans were
periodically tested for their
effectiveness. Records were kept
for their compliances.
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Detailed description of risks Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks
0 B Y 5 A B E HEEZE R TR

Chronic physical risks
BB

—  Prolonged hot weather may —  Revenue reduces —  Planned to establish an ISO
increase the energy from decreased 50001-certified Energy
consumption. production Management System and

capacity and the implemented various energy
negative impacts saving measures.
of workforce.

- PRBERARRAIESERERE - ERETERRERIAXE —  5FEIEISO 50001 REWEEIRE
e HEEZ2EENE BRRAWEESIAEEERE o

—  Climate change brings —  Administrative —  Engagement with local or national
uncertainties to the costs for daily governments and local
environments of production operations stakeholders on local resilience.
and sales. Although direct increase.

losses will not incur by the
enterprises, they may still
affect and limit the sales and
production of the enterprises

significantly.
- SARBCALERMERES - ARESOTBRA — 5 A ok B R
RTREN - BECETEE 20 - BAMBHEANE -

EEEER BEEXNHEER
HEENAREXDERTZE MR
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—  Prolonged climate change may —  Revenue reduces —  Planned improvements, retrofits,
detriment the human’s health. from decreased relocations, or other changes to
Continuation of temperature production facilities that may reduce their
rise can increase the fatality capacity and the vulnerability to climate impacts
rates and incidence rates of negative impacts and increase the climate resilience
some diseases, especially the of workforce. in long term.

one related to cardiac and
respiratory system; the spread
of some climate-sensitive
diseases such as malaria and
dengue fever may increase.

—  BEMRRBCTEBENE - EETHREIASI —  HEMETRERE  2UE - B
R - TR TETEF G f B R BT RAME TGRS
BB SR T KRB R © A A o HARYENERES  WRER
SR B0 BRI R0 A0 IRERERE S -

BRI ¢ RIBEE MBI ER D H AR
SRR - BIINERMNE F
ReEE -

78 Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 2R as B[R EE BRI K EEE H R A )



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RIE - L8 MEIATRS

Detailed description of risks
0 B Y 5 A

Financial Impact
B E

Steps taken to manage the risks
HEEZE R TR

Transitional Risk
BIERE

Policy risk
B B b

— As aresult of energy efficiency
requirements, carbon-pricing
mechanisms increase the price
of fossil fuels, or policies to
encourage sustainable land
use, hindering the area of
expansion, which increase the
operation cost.

— BREBEER - e B
S AREAERS - BB T
HE AT HF4E A F 00 BUR PR B < 1
EoR - EINE BN ©

—  Mandates on and regulation of
existing products and services.
Contractors have to spend
much cost (compliance cost)
to update or maintain the
equipment to fulfil the new
regulations.

— YRBEMERBHEERR
E o DBEBBERLBRERA(E
FAPKAR) BT MR - DART
EHTEIIRIE ©

—  Operating cost
increases due to
increased insurance
premiums for the
factories.

-  IERREEZINEH
EERAIE N

—  Administrative
costs for regulation
compliance on
mandatory
equipment
standard.

- BTRBIERERE
ERETTIRBAR

— Planned to be involved in carbon
trading

—  Planned to purchase extra amount
of renewable energy sources and
adopt clean energy in the
operations to reduce the carbon
emissions.

- AEBERINMENABLRRE
RIS B RABRBEIR AR
BRBER -
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Detailed description of risks

Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

0 B Y 5 A B E HEEZE R TR
Legal risk
AR

Exposure to litigation.
Manufacturers have to adapt
the tightened law and
regulations issued by the
government due to climate
change, and they have the risk
of litigation once they failed to
obligate the new rules.
SRR - BRRIREL - &
EEE AR FE U AR A 1) 5 R
BEVEERER - —BRebil
SPETAR R - R E G ER AR

Enhanced emissions-reporting
obligations. Manufacturers
may have to spend much time
on fulfilling the report
standards to comply the new
obligations.

IERBERERE &R TS o £EETR]
BERENLBELRRENRE
AR - ABITHTRIERT ©

Operating cost
increases for high
compliance costs
and increased
insurance
premiums for the
Group.

BRAAR R A%
l{% BRI
SBRCANIE AN ©

Inspection costs
increase for
environmental
emissions.

RIGHENGH 215 iR
BIRAR o
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Monitored the updates of
environmental laws and
regulations and implemented GHG
emissions calculations in advance.

RIAR AR ENE
ETTRERBHRNE

Environmental emission data were
verified by third-party laboratories
or consultants.

i&iﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁl%@}%ﬂﬂ%
HEITIZE o

HERELE
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Detailed description of risks Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks
0 B Y 5 A B E HEEZE R TR
Technology risk
B i 2 B
—  Developing the low carbon —  Capitalinvestment  —  Planned to invest in the
energy-saving products and in technology innovations of energy saving
energy saving technologies, development products.
the capital investment and increases.

R&D expense increase
consequently.

— FBEHRETREEMRETRER - BINHEZENERKRE — FERESEEMEIE -
fir - EARRERMEERE e
a0 e

—  More green building strategies ~ —  Administrative —  Examined the feasibility and
with low-carbon, energy- costs for daily efficiency of applying the latest
saving technologies are operations. environmental technologies.
adopted by industry peers.
Lagging behind may weaken
our competitive edges.

- BEEZER FREmNEeEHF — BEBETHRAE - SEEASREREMOTITER
REEWE AN R ITERN o K BEF hne R o

‘AL BRI RMMBFES -
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Detailed description of risks

Financial Impact

Steps taken to manage the risks

[ B 9 S A e g AEBZZRKMKENE R
Market risk

M5 E R

More customers are
considering climate-related
risks and opportunities, which
may lead to changes in
customers’ demand for
products.
EEZMEPERRIXIEHERER
L meeBHEFHER
oK o

Uncertainty in market signals.
“How environmentally friendly
the product is” becomes one
of the factors to affect the
product selling price.

MHERNTEERE - [Em
WIRRIEENA KR EE
AT :.FE’JI%Z* °

Increased cost of raw
materials. More
environmentally-friendly raw
materials may be much
expensive, which may increase
the cost.

R BB AIG 0 o EIRRAY R
MEPTREE NS E - g m
PR o

—  Revenue decreases
for the change in
revenue mix and
sources.

- WAEBRRIRNE
e L PN L

—  Administrative
costs increase for
compliance and
sales drop for
non-
environmentally
friendly product
design.

—  ARERAAREN
FIRREMBETE
SHE TBE o

—  Production cost
increases due to
changing input
prices and output
requirements.

—  RABRREHEE
L B A
s -
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Tightened the control of the
environmental hazardous
materials in our products and
studied the application of recycled
materials.

MEHRMERTHREAEETYE
FOFR I S BT TE AT B AE AT R RO FE A ©

Brought and selected different
green materials for the raw
materials of the products.

REMEDRTRZEMFHERER
K REATHL o

Reduce and simplify the
packaging of the products, to
lower the unnecessary costs.

WO REEERBBE - ARED

WERRR o



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARE

Detailed description of risks Financial Impact Steps taken to manage the risks
0 B Y 5 A B E HEEZE R TR

Reputational risk
=E @

—  Unable to fulfil the — Revenue decreases —  Supported the green productions.
expectations of the customers, from decreased
damage the Group’s demand for goods
reputation and image. and the decrease in

production
capacity.

- KEWMERFPHIZE -BEAE - EmBXRALIRESR - IRSEEMD-
ErEERER - TREEBURAR L

—  Stigmatization of our business —  Operating costs —  Corporate sustainability
sector, such as more increases from responsibility policy was adopted
stakeholder concern or negative impacts by fulfilling the social
negative stakeholder feedback on workforce responsibility by organizing more
on the product designed in a management and activities or executing actions to
less environmentally-friendly planning. demonstrate how we place
way. importance on climate change.

- HEMOEBIFANTRLE — ”@m%'fi&%ﬁim - RWNCEABEERRETEE B
W AR NIRRT R FT RO E [ 50 B B & S8 K BARE ZEBRFARITERAR
mHELZEHEBEIIEBEF zki*ﬂu ° M RIREERES - AL ETTH
MERE - gHE-
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Detailed description of opportunities

Financial Impact
B

Resource efficiency

BIRE

—  Reduce more packaging material usage

—  ROERBRSBRHE

—  Reduce water usage and consumption

- ORIKERMERNMOER

Energy source

BETRIR

—  Use of lower-emission fuel sources

- (EREBERREOR

—  Use of supportive policy incentives

— (FAERFEEEEG

—  Use of new technologies

- AR

Products and services

B B AR

—  Development of climate adaptation and
insurance risk solutions

- BIEREEE R RERERERT R

—  Ability to diversify business activities

- B EEBEEEE

Markets
%

= Access to new markets

- EAFMS

—  Operating cost reduces through efficiency gains
and cost reductions

-  BBREAEmE L EERAK

—  Operating cost reduces through use of lowest
cost abatement
— EBRERERARTER D S &K

— Returns on investment in low- emission
technology

- EHRERMmRE R

—  Revenue increases through new solutions to
adaptations needs, such as insurance risk
transfer products and services

— BERINRERERERER KRGS EER KEH
ﬁ#»ﬁ%)?%igj]wﬁl)\

—  Revenue increases through access to new and
emerging markets
—  EIRHEAGTH) R ETTISE A
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Detailed description of opportunities

Financial Impact
B

Resilience
o8 1

Participation in renewable energy programs
and adoption of energy-efficiency measures

2 B 0] BAREIRAT 8| LR ANETREFE I

M

%

Resource substitution or diversification

BEREAHZ T

Metrics and Target

Our Group adopts the key metrics to measure and manage
climate-related risks and opportunities. The energy
consumption and greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions
indicators are the key metrics used to assess and manage
relevant climate-related risks where we consider such
information is material and crucial for assessing the impact
of our operation on global climate change during the year.

Our Group tracks our energy consumption and greenhouse
gas emissions indicators regularly to assesses the
effectiveness of emission reduction initiatives, as well as
sets targets to contribute our effort to have minimal impact
on global warming. The details are described in the section
Al: “Emissions” and section A2: “Use of Resources” of this
Report. Our Group has adopted absolute targets to
manage climate-related risks and opportunities and
performance.

Market valuation increases through resilience
planning, such as infrastructure, land and
buildings

FRINER RN - T RIBFEE AR ENE T
HihE

Reliability of supply chain and ability to operate
under various condition increase
frpEsEn] S0 RSB T & BRI g8

Revenue increases through new products and
services related to ensuring resiliency
75 3R T (R 98 1% AR BE A EE R S AR TS 8 N A

BEZERAIE

AEBERMNERGOEFLENFER
ETE R AR R AR S e o IR
ARERENREAEBRERY
ERREREECZENFIEMEBE
KL FEgE - RIgEROBFESRERE
(GHG) BERIE R T A ATl M B 72
HEREEREERNBEREER

£ o

AEBETEHEHERBREIRER
B8 HF IR A3 DA RY (5 B0 BF 5 3 HO 2K
m TRERR  REEREHZ
RBEROZEELTR - FHEHEN
RRERAURIBER I R E A2RTE
BRAMA - AEEDRMNEH B R
PAE I SRR ASRE R M B A e 3k
iF o
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SOCIAL ASPECTS
EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

B1.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3225 B B2 R 2 E G R A 7

EMPLOYMENT

Quality talents are the Group’s valuable assets for
maintaining business sustainability. The Group has
implemented practices in accordance to our “Staff
Handbook” with respect to compensation and dismissal,
recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti- discrimination, and
welfare and other benefits which complied with the Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China, Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China and other relevant
laws and regulations of Hong Kong.

Equal opportunity

The Group places a high priority on achieving equality of
opportunity for all employees in relation to all personnel
matters including recruitment, training, promotion, transfer,
benefits and dismissal. The dignity and individuality of each
employee is respected, and the privacy and confidentiality
of employee records is safeguarded. The performance of
employee is assessed solely according to their individual
ability to meet job requirements.

Promotion and appraisal

The Group offers internal promotion to employees,
whenever possible, within the Group. Promotion to a higher
grade normally depends on the availability of vacancy,
individual performance and potential to take up the new
position.

The Group provides an open, challenging and participative
environment for all employees. We aim to provide
opportunities for the development of the skills of
employees to the fullest extent possible, consistent with
the needs of the Group. Job performance is reviewed
annually, and this serves as an opportunity for the
supervisor to evaluate employee’s performance in an
objective and open manner, to discuss concerns, strength
and suggestions for further improvement. Employees’
remuneration and pay scale adjustment are made reference
to individual’s performance and appraisal results, industrial
standard and market trend.

B.

HEHE
BiENSTER

B1.

E=

BEAT RAKERITERABE
MENEEEE - AKEERIEINER
T30 ) B MERAN A B BN X g
BCERARES TESS- K
B FEHE - 2t RESER
BRI REMFEIENER A8
B REFHET(REARKM
B EE) - (R EARKME S
BRIE) REBEEMAREAERER
HIME °

FERE

eI - il B W
ERRERERG S REEL S
e AREEEEAER2BESR
BEHS  SREAHERR AL
HESYEREBHEALRRE
BB EIRE - BRMHEARRE
EREHSHT TIEBR NN
TR -

B R

AR R 1R B R AR
SORBEF - BAEE BRI
BB TR B 25 « BARS
RGOS -

AEEBAERBERRE—ET2
HEARBFRIRE - HFIEHERH
e FAENRAREERES
HAREETRKOREE - TERR
RETTFERE - Mt AEERM
HeUEB R T A EEEN
RI WAwWAFREOME - 8
NREZ o BB O H B N S5
TI2REARBR M EER 7%
RERTZBEFLAE -
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Employee welfare

For the Hong Kong subsidiaries, the Group offers special
arrangement to employees to leave work early on
important traditional days which are not public holidays
such as Mid-Autumn Festival, Winter Solstice, Christmas
Eve and Chinese New Year’s Eve. The Group regularly
organises internal events to strengthen the sense of
belonging within the Group and boost the communication
transparency among all levels of employees.

The Group strives to create a fair and inclusive workplace
where all its employees are treated with dignity and
respect. The Group provides equal opportunity in all
aspects of employment and prohibits discrimination or
harassment against any individual on their gender, age,
nationality, marital status, disability, race, colour, religion
and any other characteristics protected by the relevant
laws.

The Group is in strict compliance with the relevant laws
and regulations in the PRC and Hong Kong, including the
Labour Law of the PRC, the Labour Contract Law of the
PRC, the Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws
of Hong Kong), the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong), the
Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) and the Race Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 602 of the Laws of Hong Kong). During the
reporting period, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with those applicable laws and
regulations.

1ES 157

REBMBARME  ~AEBARE
BYERRRIZHE - LMERENIIE

BARBHANEZESE A (WF
e~ 22 FRRERS)IRTE
I o ANEEEERBEANEEE
NRAZEEENAEENSTE
R e EBIERE -

AEBBOREE—FEQAFE 88
WIERIE  EFTAEEIHEIYG
BANEE - AEETRENSEST
HEHTERE WA FIERE
BAEMBEANER - Fhe - BEEE
BN Bk Bk Ee R
B RZBEERRENE A E MR
e

AEBBRETTELREENEH
ERRER - BIE(REARKM
BEEEE)  (hEARKTMEL
aEE) - (REED) (FBEDE
57%) - CREIM A E T &&EH])
(BBEDIE485F) ~ (R LAR
B (FABEDISE 480 7 ) KTk
ARG (BAEERIFE602F) -
RARHERE - REBEIW THEBE
MEANEFTRZEFERERELER
BB ©
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Bl1 Total Workforce Bll EEAB#
As at 31 December 2020, the employee compositions RIZEZZEF+_A="+—
(in percentage of employees) by gender, B EBEMHEK(AEEE S
employment type, age group and geographical R ZIER - EEER
region were as follows: FEAA R N b 12 [ 15 E) 5 40
T
Employment EE
By gender = BBl 2
—  Male - 51
—  Female - M
By age group RERMERE D
— 30 or below —  30BREMAT
—  31-40 —  ZE408%
—  41-50 -  4E50B%
—  5lorabove —  BImEALE
By employment category BERERES
—  Senior management - EREEE
—  Middle management - HhRERE
—  General - —M®
—  Contract/short term - A% EH
By geographical region %1 =i 8 o
—  PRC - R
—  Hong Kong - BE
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Bl2 EE KR
AEBRREHRIZIER
F S 4 B N b 3B (@ 1 2 D /Y
BEEBFRKLLEKAMEMOT -

B1.2 Employment Turnover Rate

Our Group’s employee annual turnover rate
breakdown by gender, age group and geographical
region during the reporting period was as follows:

Employment EE

By gender &R Bl 5

—  Male - 51

—  Female - M

By age group BEERARE D
— 30 or below 30BRIIAT
—  31-40 - MEX 071
—  41-50 - 4E50B%
—  5lorabove —  SIEEAE
By geographical region RiBEEEE S
—  PRC - R

—  Hong Kong - BF
Overall =
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group rigorously complies with the “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Work Safety” ((FRE AR
ME %24 ESE)) and other relevant laws and regulations
of Hong Kong in order to maintain health and safety
working environment. Employment safety rules is included
in the Group’s Staff Handbook for regulating occupational
health and safety and on-the-job training is provided for
the employees in order to minimize the potential risk of
accidents, injuries and exposure in relation to health risks.

The Guangzhou factory obtained Occupational Health and
Safety Certification (ISO-45001) formulated by the
International Organisation for Standardisation (“ISO”).
Thus, there is effective guarantee of a healthy, safe and
stable working environment. Daily operations are inspected
by various departments according to the occupational
health and safety requirements of the respective region.
Any non-compliance will also be identified and rectified on
a timely basis. For the Hong Kong office, we have
implemented the Occupational Health and Safety
Management System, and maintained the operations of the
system to fulfil the requirements of OHSAS18001:2007.

Besides, the Group has established the Environmental
Health and Safety Steering Committee within the
Occupational Safety and Hygiene Management Committee.
The committee provides management support for the
implementation of this policy and sufficient financial
resources.

Furthermore, the Guangzhou factory has implemented
several workplace safety policies so as to avoid fire and
industrial accidents, these include:

. Fire-fighting facilities like fire extinguishers are well
equipped.

. Designated staff conducts inspection from time to
time so as to ensure the exit passageway is clear and

unblocked.

. Fire drills are organized twice per year.
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B2.

REEZZ

REBEBREETF(PEARLTEH
TREEX)RESEMBEEE
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ZERHAA URERERRER
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NHREREETEERRZERR
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BN B S BB AR LA A
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(ISO-45001) + BlEHF -« %2 I37E
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BEZ2REETRE I REY

E#EBRNTETER - RBERE
EmE - RFETRERENZ 2

EREBR WHEBSEEEUNFTE
OHSASI8001:2007 KR 5E ©

SN AEEEAERELE REE
ERZEENHIRIREFTERE
PRELREE - ZEBEANICR

MERIBHEEIERT OIS

A - EINEE BT Z R IES

PRZEBER  WBRAXRTES

BB

- CEGAXNEZFEE A
SRRt

c BEFABTHUENHERE
DBEGREM -

© BFABMANERE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R g MERWE

B2.1 Number and Rate of Work-related Fatalities

B22

Below is our Group’s number of work-related injuries
and fatalities, and the rate of work-related injuries
occurred in each of the past three years:

Health and Safety
BEREZE

Unit
By

2020 Total
“ECEHFEG

Work-related injuries
AIZE

Work-related fatalities
ATk

Rate of work-related fatalities
BT Tt %

Lost Days due to Work Injury

cases
1
cases
1

%

%

Below is our Group’s number of lost days due to work

injury of the past three years:

Health and Safety
BEREZE

Lost days due to work injury
ATEBATEAR

Unit 2020 Total
B —E_ZHEE
days 379
AN

—ZE-NFEE

B21 AT T AAIA SRR

AEBRBE=FEERE
DR VAN Y
EIEHrkmT :

2019 Total 2018 Tota
—E-N\ERi

—E-NFEE

21 17

B22 ATEEXTIEAZ

AEERBE=FENAILE
BATEBHOT :
2019 Total 2018 Total
—E— N\FHET

903 65
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DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group places strong emphasis on the career
development of individual employees. Employees are
encouraged to keep abreast of the changing world and
pursue continuing educations, so as to cope with the
rapidly changing society and meet the evolving corporate
development needs.

The Group encourages its employees to participate in
individual continuing education programs which are related
to their job duties, with a view to strengthening the
professional career training of its staff teams, promoting
professional expertise of management teams and
stimulating the potential abilities of employees. In addition,
in order to enable new staff to fit into the Group and
comprehend the Group’s policy and corporate culture as
soon as possible.

We provide basic orientation training for all new staff and
provide its management personnel and employees with
on-the-job education, training and other opportunities to
improve their skills and knowledge. The Group continues to
intensify its efforts to promote staff training programmes.
This helps provide the necessary protection for talent
reserves for corporate development.

B3.

R R Ed

$EI—EE%E1E?JI/\E’J$¥§*
 WekEhE B 2 EY A - 58

Lf%‘ AFEfAE & B3 A REL

HPESRERNOFR -

AERE S8 T2 8RR T (FRfE
BAR B AEERTE - ADN98E B T
hEBEE - RABEBRBRNE
FEHB NI E THERE o thoh -
REMESETERNFTRBARE
C TEASEOBERMEEX
1t -

AEBRMAHE TIRHABER
Bl YARMNEREABRET
REERHE Bl EMEE
PABRTHR 5 OB BE B A7 - AR E
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During the reporting period, the percentages of RmERA - RIER R IERE
employees received training and the average training HREsMXIREEES L
MEHZINSENT

B3.1 Percentage of Employees Trained

hours by gender and employment category were as

follows:

2019
Training #= 3| —E-NF
Percentage of employees trained =ZI|{EEFH L
By gender REBIE D
—  Male - BH 36%
—  Female - Tk 64%
By employment category RERERE S
—  Senior management SREEE 2%
—  Middle management - HREEE 4%
—  General - —f% 94%
—  Contract/short term - BH/REH -

B3.2 Average Training Hours Completed per Employees B32 H#HEE KX FIG 0
#
During the reporting period, the percentages of REREER - R MR M ERE
employees received training and the average training HRBSMZIEEB DL
hours by gender and employment category were as K2R EmT
follows:
2019
Training £ —E—-NF
Average training hours FZ IR
(hours/employee) (B®ES)
By gender R B D
—  Male - B N/A i A e
—  Female - i N/A T e
By employment category RERERES
—  Senior management - EfEEE N/ A AN A e
—  Middle management - FhEERE N/A @ e
—  General - —& N/A i A 18
—  Contract/short term - A4/ e N/A i i e
8 The data for year 2019 was not available. 2 EEES T NEFNEREE -
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B4. LABOUR STANDARDS

The Group strictly complies with International Labour
Standards and the PRC’s “Provision on the Prohibition of
Using Child Labour” { Z& | &£ F§ & T #R & ). Besides, no
juveniles under 16 years old are recruited.

In order to maintain harmonious labour relationship, the
Group firmly eradicates any forced labour, employment
discrimination and occupational discrimination. The Group
protects the rights of staff in terms of providing rest and
leave days according to relevant government laws and
regulations. During the year, the Group strictly complied
with laws and regulations relating to employment and
labour practices in the PRC and Hong Kong.

OPERATING PRACTICES
B5. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The principal raw materials used in Guangzhou factory
production mainly include ICs, PCBs, plastic, motor and
battery. At present, the majorities of manufacturing
materials are purchased domestically. The factory typically
procures raw materials and components upon receipt of
purchase orders from its customers.

In order to ensure that the raw materials and components
procured are of the requisite standards, our Purchasing
Department is responsible for procurement of raw
materials, and managing the sourcing arrangement for our
supply chain. An approved vendor list is maintained for our
principal raw materials and components and the vendor list
is reviewed periodically.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 235 B B2 BRI EEE B R A

B4. B IX%H|

REBEBRETEER S TAER L Hh
BB CEIEEREIRE) © o
HAN IS B M6 E T ©

RRFMBENBSEBER - AEEE
IRILBEMRES S BALERR
BEESR  AEESRBRANE
FROAER KA - RER TIKE RIK
REVER - RER - AEBEESE
ST B R B H (R B K 85 THE PR
BRIRAM -

=B ED

BS.

HrEREE

&) 18R B {5 B E’JI%‘E}?Mﬂ&iﬁﬁ
BREEKER  ERIEER -

K e NEM - B AT Kﬁﬁn
EEMBBERR - TH RN
EEFPHMRBIERRBRIMHK
A -

RERFIRBOEME REFTE
RENRE  REXAERERY
P B IR RSB R BREE 2 BF » TR
ERSEIZEMH RAFEE
RAEEAE - W T
BE -



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - g MERWE

To enhance supply chain management, the Group has
formulated management systems and regulates the
supplier selection process to systematically evaluate and
qualify new suppliers. This enables top notch suppliers to
enter its supply system and become its qualified suppliers,
thereby facilitating its stable procurement development.
According to the Group’s “Standard Operating Procedure”
and quality management system relating to the supplier
management process, the Group is to carefully manage
and selects qualified suppliers and carries out regular
evaluations to safeguard the quality of raw materials. Apart
from the quality, the Group selects the suppliers based on
the price, locations and flexibility. After the comparisons
between various aspects, the supervisor of the department
will choose the most suitable supplier and report to the
Operation Director. Once non-compliance of the supplier is
discovered, the supervisor of the department will inform
the supplier to make corrective actions within a time limit.
If no improvement is made, the supervisor of the
department and the Operation Director have the right to
terminate the cooperation.

Besides, we ensure our product delivery schedules are
properly fulfilled, and establish a foundation for providing
quality products to our customers. Customers become
more concerned about environmental issues and stress the
importance of using environmental-friendly materials. We
will continue to communicate these demands with our
suppliers, strengthen our cooperation with suppliers
regarding their ability to deliver environmentally-friendly
materials, coordinate with them in sampling trials, and
work with them to maximize societal benefits.
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B6. PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

The Group is committed to supplying quality products and
providing quality services that consistently meet or even
exceed our customers’ expectations. The Group has placed
a strong emphasis on quality assurance and adopted
stringent quality assurance procedures at different stages
of its business operation including the pre-production
process, the procurement of raw materials and
components, the monitoring of production processes and
the inspections of finished products to ensure the qualities
meet our standards.

B6.1 Percentage of Total Products Sold or Shipped subject
to Recalls

During the year, neither the products sold nor
shipped were subject to recalls for safety and health
reasons.

B6.2 Customer Relationship Management

Customer satisfaction is the foundation of an
enterprise’s competitiveness, and the Group is to
continuously strives to improve on this aspect. The
Group has a customer-oriented focus and strives to
provide high quality products and services by
continuously addressing the concerns of customers
are looking for. A policy “Communication and Service
with Customers Manual” ( B8 & &7 18 K Ak 745 125 il
FE#)) has been set to standardize the procedure for
customers communication in order to promote
operational consistency and faster responsiveness to
customers’ changing needs. The Group collects
customers’ feedbacks relating to its products which
are used as important references in its constant
efforts to improve product quality and promote
customer satisfaction. The Group is always trying to
improve and handle the complaints or feedback
quickly to resolve any issues. A Customer Services
Department has been set up to maintain ongoing
communication with customers and ensure the Group
can provide excellent service.

During the year, the Group did not have any non-

compliance with relevant laws and regulations related
to product responsibility.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 235 B B2 BRI EEE B R A

B6. EmEME

AEEHHREDEEEBUEP
HEMEEER MR - AEBEE
BEHEMRE  WELAEFXZRD
(BREEM TR - RYF AT
KRB AEIFERELERGRSE
F)IXRDBEENEERERRF

- REEFTARMANRE -

B6l BEEXEEXEmMBEFE
Bl s B 5

FR BECEXEERE
mAZEHEEREERMmMAR
I o

B62 EFEEE

EPRBEDNEERF NN

B ARBRERRETT
BEFHMEE - REBRR
EPELWRA - &S
THREENER  KEREH
BENERMRE - AEE
E%|J$<<E51EEEE’J%L&HE%%

THIRRF)  BEFRELER
BBHREF RAKEEN—
R EREERE NG
MEPHBR  AEBKREE
FHERNREER R
THIRRER® ’EE%H%%E
FREENEZSE - A&
B-ERNRENRE KRR
EPHBRFRRE  BARE
FPRREMMBE - AEER
EERBE - BEFRHR
FEE MRATFPREME
HARF

FA - AKEYEERE®
BEREREROINER



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
B HEREARE

B6.3

B6.4

Intellectual Property

Our legal department is in charge of protecting our
intellectual property. In addition to highlighting and
protecting intellectual property and ensuring we
respect the intellectual property of others; we protect
the fair competition environment and comply with
industry standards and criteria. During the year, the
Group had not experienced any infringement of its
intellectual property rights by third parties. In
addition, the Group was not involved in any material
violation, litigation or legal proceedings for violation
of intellectual property rights during the reporting
period.

Quality Assurance

The Group’s production facilities had been
successfully transited to the new version of Quality
management systems ISO-9001 and that of IATF-
16949 certified for manufacture of printed circuit
boards assemblies since 2011. Moreover, the updates
of the two certificates have been obtained in
December 2020. In addition, Guangzhou factory was
[SO-13485:2016 certified for Medical Devices during
the year.

The Guangzhou factory has a team who is
responsible for quality control and quality assurance.
It also has an independent quality assurance
department that reports directly to the top
management on product quality matters.
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Quality assurance functions are performed
throughout the production processes from the raw
materials and components procurement stages to
product delivery stages, with an aim to ensure that
the products can meet the required national
standards and certain industry standards applicable
to such products. Industry standards for products
adopted by the factory mainly include:

(i) IPC-A-610F Acceptability of Electronics
Assemblies for PCBA workmanship
requirements;

(i) RoHS (Restriction of Hazardous Substances
Directives 2002/95/EC); and

(iii)  REACH (Registration, Evaluation, Authorisation
and Restriction of Chemical substances).

Our products are also in compliance with various
international safety standards including:

(i)  FCC standards — product standards which are
applicable to telephone and IT;

(i) UL standards — standards for product safety;

(iii) CSA standards — standards for product safety
and performance;

(iv) China Compulsory Certification — a mandatory
certification system concerning product safety
in China; and

(v) CE — European Union consumer safety, health
or environmental requirements.

Most of our products and servicing that provided to
our customers are mainly environmental-friendly and
lesser-impacts-to-climate. In addition, Green
Purchasing Policies adopted for the selection of raw
materials for our manufacturing which are
conforming to legislative requirements of RoHS and
REACH.
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B7.

B6.5 Consumer Data Protection

The Group is to put great emphasis on protecting
customer privacy and implement stringent internal
management for marketing activities to safeguard
customer information security. Only authorized staff
is allowed to handle the private consumer data, and
consents must be obtained from the Board to provide
the consumer data to the externals. If the consumer
data is leaked, the Group may pursue legal
responsibility for the relevant staffs.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

As corruption is detrimental to fair competition and
corporate integrity, anti-corruption has become one of the
main corporate business ethics principles for many of the
world’s premier enterprises. We advocate honest operation
and fair competition. Besides, we require our staff to
comply with the national laws and regulations, as well as
the Group’s regulations in relate to anti-corruption practice.
To promote compliance in the workplace, we also focus on
anti-corruption and anti-bribery principles for staff.

B7.1 Number of Concluded Legal Cases regarding Corrupt
Practices

During the Year, the Group did not receive any non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations related
to anti-corruption.

B7.2 Preventive Measures and Whistle-blowing Procedures

As part of the Group efforts to make anti-corruption
an important corporate management culture, it sets
up whistle blowing channels to help prevent any mis-
conduct, malpractice and irregularities. All staff must
comply with the Group’s business code of conduct,
which aims to prevent corruption from a system
perspective. The Group also continues to improve its
internal control and monitoring system. If problems
are identified, the Group will take immediate
corrective action and have a zero-tolerance approach
to corruption in order to prevent irregularities.
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B7.3 Anti-corruption Training Provided to Directors and B73 MEFRKAETHHENKES
Staffs 153
The Group provided training sessions of anti- AEBREERE TRIER
corruption to the directors and staff. At the end of BEEEIRE RBEH
the reporting period, the number of employees R REBEMNESOER
received anti-corruption training and the training REFSHINEE AB KT
hours by employment category were as follows: SR BTN T

Anti-corruption Training

REFEI
Number of
employees Number of
received training training hours
ZifEEAH 5B Y
By employment category RERERES
—  Board of directors - EFg 6 1
—  Senior management - SREEE 4
—  Middle management - HREEE - -
—  General - —RET 6 1
Total st 16 3
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COMMUNITY

B8. COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

B81

B8.2

Focus Areas of Contribution

In terms of community involvement, the Group
continues to organize a corporate social responsibility
program in order to encourage employees to
participate in community services and contribute to
care needs of the community.

Resources Contributed

As part of our efforts to promote education, the
Guangzhou factory has established the “migrant
workers’ child education subsidize program” to
support the education of the worker’s children. The
table below shows the number of migrant workers
benefited from the “migrant workers’ child education
subsidize program” and the total amount subsidized
to them:

ol
B8.

Community Investment Unit
HERE B
Number of migrant workers benefited people
THERIAK A
Total amount of subsidy to the workers RMB

T AwREA%E ARETL

HERE

B8 E TEHE#HE
fERsETE AEBE
BEWECELEETE

SEEESEMRRE - @
i‘;ﬁﬂw ﬁﬁi °

B82 FrEFA &R

RIRERE - BN ITEAKL
[RIFLHEMBEE ]
NZHTATROHE - §
[RIFAHEMUAE] X
SR T AR AR
R :

2020 Total 2019 Total
it 33 5l T LG
189 186

RMB94,500 RMB92,750
AK#94,500 T QUNEAVZNL P
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The Group also supports community development by
cash donation. The table below summarises the cash
donated by the Group to different charities during
the reporting period:

AEBENEBRSBBRX
FHRER - TRBAAE
ERREHAETEEZH
BRENERSE

Description it Donation Amount
HK$000

B

T

Five Virtues Developmental Project T ERAE 46
Harmonious City in Tuen Yuen Tin MK GAEKEE 250
Total HET 296

In August 2020, the Hong Kong office collaborated
with ARCH Community Outreach (ACO) to organize
a career program for the high-achieving Hong Kong
local school students with under-resourced
backgrounds, to provide them with mentorship and
careers opportunities platform to bridge the gap
between academic and future career success. 4
selected students enjoyed this program. The Program
provided selected students with (i) Mentorship, (ii)
Summer Career Exposure through Internship/Job
Shadowing and Industry Careers Training Workshops.
Through the program, we hope the platform would
help to maximize the potential of these high-
achieving and under-resourced students by inspiring
and empowering them to believe in themselves, and
to help them understand how they can make a
positive difference to their communities. Meanwhile,
the Hong Kong office also collaborated with Child
Development Initiative Alliance (CDIA) to organize
another program “Y-WE 2020”. 2 teenagers in the
program were invited to our Hong Kong office to
enhance their work exposure. According to the
independent research conducted by the Department
of Social Work and Social Administration of the
University of Hong Kong, this program could broaden
their horizons and raise their confidence in the
planning of the future career paths.

For the Shanghai office, the company places social
responsibility on the importance of business
development. In October 2020, the company had
provided the spare parking lots of the company to
the parked delivery vehicles to relieve the traffic
congestions in Pudong District, Shanghai due to the
parking of the delivery vehicles on the main routes.
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RIE - L8 MEIATRS

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE
REPORTING INDEX

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

RIE - HE@REARER

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHERE B —REEREARENESR E=1:0] HE
A. Environmental
RIB
Al: Emissions
Al BERD
General Disclosure “Emissions” 51
—RRHEE [HER 51
KPI'Al.1 The types of emissions and respective “Emissions — Air Pollutant 53-58
emissions data Emissions”
RSB BIEIR AL PER Y E SR AR R R IR [HERY) — ZERVS AR 53-58
KPI'Al.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total and, where “Emissions — Greenhouse Gas 60
appropriate, intensity Emission”
FREBIEIR A2 BAERBEENER (WER)ZE [HERY) — REREHERY 60
KPI'A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced and, where  “Emissions — Hazardous Wastes” 62
appropriate, intensity
BRGEIIERALZ ELAZEEVEER(WER)TE [BER) — BEEREEY 62
KPI' Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced and, “Emissions — Non-hazardous 64
where appropriate, intensity Wastes”
BRGEIIERALL ELAEZEEVEER(WER)TE [BER) — BEREREY 64
KPI'A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions “Emissions — Air Pollutant 52,59
and results achieved Emissions”, “Emissions —
Greenhouse Gas Emissions”
FRETUEIZAIS mIUREHERENREERAERR [BERY) — =R RBERY 52,59
(e — RERBHERY
KPI' Al.6 Description of how hazardous and non- “Emissions — Hazardous Wastes” 61, 63
hazardous wastes are handled, reduction “Emissions — Non-hazardous
initiatives and results achieved Wastes”
BRENIERAE  RAREAENEEEEVNTE  REEL (B - GFEED] 61, 63

EMEELAAEKRR

[Prp) — EBEREEY ]
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHEE B —REERBARENESR E=1:0] HH

A2: Use of Resources

A2 - BIRFA

General Disclosure “Use of Resources” 65

— MR R [&RA A 65

KPIA2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by “Use of Resources — Energy 67
type in total and intensity Consumption”

BB A AEIR A2 RENESMERER KHEEEREEERE [BRFA - EREE] 67
&

KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity “Use of Resources — Water 68

Consumption”

BRETUEIRA22 BREKEREE [ERFA —KiEE ] 68

KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives “Use of Resources — Energy 65-66
and results achieved Consumption”

FARAERIEIRA23  HlsERE ARG E RPAERR [BRFA — gREE ] 65-66

KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in “Use of Resources — Water 68
sourcing water that is fit for purpose, water Consumption”
efficiency initiatives and results achieved

FRERIEIRA24 HWACSKEGERKR EAIBEAERE - UEREA [ERMA —KEE] 68
FR7K e 51 8l R PSR R

KPI'A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished “Use of Resources — Packaging 69
products and, if applicable, with reference to  Material”
per unit produced

BRETUERA2S  ERGAAREMENEER (WER)SEE [BRMA — 8EME] 69

BRI(EE -
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHEE B —REERBARENESR E=1:0] HH
A3: The Environment and Natural Resources
A3 IRERBRER
General Disclosure “The Environment and Natural 70
Resources”
—ARHEE [REREARER] 70
KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of No significant impacts of N/A
activities on the environment and natural activities on the environment and
resources and the actions taken to manage natural resources during the year
them
BB E DHEIR A3 HEBEHEHRERBRERNEATER RERN TEEXFKIHEHRER i
EERNEERETZENTH BREREXEMNEAZE
A4: Climate Change
A4 RIRE L
General Disclosure “Climate Change” 71-75
—AR IR EE [RIxE1t ] 71-75
KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related  “Climate Change” 76-85
issues which have impacted, and those which
may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken
to manage them
BREMIEIRAL] HABKRATGRSHBETAEEZENEARR [RIREL] 76-85

EHEBEEE  MEHTTH
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHEE B —REERBARENESR E=1:0] HH

B. Social

HE

Employment and Labour Practices

BREREIER

B1: Employment

Bl : [EfE

General Disclosure “Employment” 86-87

—ARHEE (1] 86-87

KPIB1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, “Employment” 88
age group and geographical region

RS AE RFEIR BI IR EEER - FRARNREESSOE [1EfF] 88
BHRE

KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group “Employment” 89
and geographical region

SRR SUEIE B IR - FRRAR RBEEISHESRKLE [EF] 89

B2: Health and safety
B2 : fi@EH%L R

General Disclosure “Health and Safety” 90
— MR R [fEREZ 2 | 90
KPIB2.1 Number and rate of work — related fatalities  No fatality case occurred in each N/A
occurred in each of the past three years of the past three years including
including the reporting year the reporting year
RSB RUIEIR B2 BE=F (PREERFE)BFAITHNAY RBEZ=F(REERFE)LE i
R bt & HIRA T i fEz
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury “Health and Safety” 91
FREBIEEB22 EIBEAIIEBH [fERREZ 2 | 91
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety “Health and Safety” 90

measures adopted, how they are
implemented and monitored

RSAEMIERB2S HAFTRANBREFER L 2R - WRARE [REERE] 90
WMITRERITA

106  Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3Rz IR BRI EEB AR A



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - g MERWE

Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages

TEHEE B —REERBARENESR E=1:0] HH

B3: Development and Training

B3 : & &IETF

General Disclosure “Development and Training” 92

— MR R [ K& 92

KPI B3.1 The percentage of employee trained by “Development and Training” 93
gender and employee category

RSB B IR B3 ZMRIREEERESHZIEEB L [ K& 93

KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per “Development and Training” 93
employee by gender and employee category

BRENIEIEB32 RUBIKEEEAES  BREETKXIE  [EREEEI] 93
PR E

B4: Labour Standards

B4 : &5 T 48|

General Disclosure “Labour Standards” 94

—RRHEE [T AR | 94

KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review “Labour Standards” 94
employment practices to avoid child and
forced labour

BB B R 1R B4 R T IR E OB AR R E T RaEHI%% [ TR 94
T

KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such “Labour Standards” 94
practices when discovered

RASRAERIEIEB42  HMEERRERBAREREBIEAMRERSN S ITER] 94
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and
Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHE  EBEE- —REERBRENIEEZ =0 BY

Operating Practices

EEEH

B5: Supply Chain Management
B5 - G E IR

General Disclosure “Supply Chain Management” 94
—RRHEE [ rEse e g | 94
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region - N/A
RASEAE BUIEIR BS.] T & SRR SR - i
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging  “Supply Chain Management” 94-95

suppliers, number of suppliers where the
practices are being implemented, how they
are implemented and monitored

FRERIEIEB5.2 B REEREENMES mERTEBEE [HEEEE] 94-95
PIEHEREE - ARAEERTT REERTTA
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify “Supply Chain Management” 95

environmental and social risks along the
supply chain, and how they are implemented
and monitored

FRERIEIEBSS A BMERNEERSERSNRERTER [HEEEE] 95
BmEVIED - LA RABREIENTT R EER A
KPI B5.4 Descriptions of practices used to promote - N/A

environmentally preferable products and
services when selecting suppliers, and how
they are implemented and monitored
BRENIEIEBS4 HAEREHEERECEZARRER RS - i
BB - ARAERIBIT REER A
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHEE B —REERBARENESR E=1:0] HH
B6: Product Responsibility
B6 : EmAE
General Disclosure “Product Responsibility” 96
—MRHE [EmE1E] 96
KPIB6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped  No product sold or shipped was N/A
subject to recalls for safety and health reasons subject to recall for safety and
health reasons during the year
B2 48 N HE1R B6.] E%&Eiiﬁ nAH T AT R RERIEAT RERNLBEEEXRDEXERA iE
AR B 5 %5 B FEIE f A R
KPI B6.2 Number of proolucts and service-related “Product Responsibility — 96
complaints received and how they are dealt ~ Customer Relationship
with management”
FASR I IEIEB6.2 BFEBREMRRBREFEEURESTE [EnEf - TFPBARERE] 96
KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing  “Product Responsibility — 97
and protecting intellectual property rights Intellectual Property”
BRENIEIRB6.3 AR RRIE AN B EES @B [EmBEE — AHERE] 97
KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and  “Product Responsibility — 97-98
recall procedures Quality Assurance”
FRENIEIEB64 B ESRTRIEREREKIET [EREF - d=2RE] 97-98
KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and  “Product Responsibility — 99
privacy policies, how they are implemented Consumer Data Protection”
and monitored
BRETUEIEB6S AU BEBRMRERILBEER - UREEY [ERET - HEEERRE] 99

TRERETE
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Subject areas, aspects, general disclosures and

Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) Sections Pages
TEHEE B —REERBARENESR E=1:0] HH
B7: Anti-corruption
B7: RES
General Disclosure “Anti-corruption” 99
— MR R &S] 99
KPIB7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding The Group did not receive any N/A
corrupt practices brought against the issuer  non-compliance with relevant
or its employees during the reporting period  laws and regulations related to
and the outcomes of the case anti-corruption during the year
FASRAERUIEIE BT RERMANHBITASEEERETEELEN TR AEEWEMBE(ER NiE A
BISARRMHEE RFAER [R&E 5 HERRER KRR DI ERTT
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and “Anti-corruption” 99
whistle-blowing procedures, how they are
implemented and monitored
FRERIEER72 HmuPEEmRBERIET - UREERTRE [RES] 99
BE
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training “Anti-corruption” 100
provided to directors and staff
BRENIEREB73 fAmMEFREITRHENRESHE &S] 100
Community
HE
B8: Community Investment
B8 : #tEmIKE
General Disclosure “Community Investment” 101
— MR R [tEKRE ] 101
KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g., education,  “Community Investment”. 101
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport)
RS AE RUIEIR B8] EIER®E(HE  BREEE  SIFKR [HEERE] 101
2R - ik - $858)
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g., money or time)  “Community Investment”. 101
to the focus area
MRENIEIREBS2 HHEIHEMBHALER(WESELREHE) [TRIE ] 101

110  Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3Ras BIfR B E R E B AR A A



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FESHE

The Board is pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2020.

CHANGE OF COMPANY NAME

Pursuant to a special resolution passed at the extraordinary general
meeting of the Company held on 2 December 2020 and approved by
the Registrars of Companies of Hong Kong, the name of the Company
was changed from Link-Asia International Co. Ltd. to Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited. The Company changed its
Chinese name from IR BB BEX AR AR to R EBRBER K EE
AR AT which is part of its legal name.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. Details of
the principal activities and other particulars of the Company’s
subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes in the nature of the
Group’s principal activities during the year.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Overview

Details of (i) business review; (ii) principal risks and uncertainties; (iii)
future development of the Group’s business; (iv) the Company’s
environmental policies and performance; and (v) the Company’s
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Company, are set out respectively in the
“Business overview”, “Prospects”,
“Environmental, social and corporate responsibility” and “Compliance
with laws and regulations” sections under “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report.

“Key risks and uncertainties”,

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year using financial
key performance indicators is set out in the Group’s Five-year Financial
Summary on pages 282 to 283 of this annual report.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in
relation to its business including health and safety, workplace
conditions, employment and the environment. Details of discussion of
the Group’s environmental policies and performance are set out in this
Environmental Social and Governance (ESG) Report.
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The Group understands the success of the Group’s business depends
on the support from its key stakeholders, including employees,
customers, suppliers, banks, regulators and shareholders. The Group
will continue to ensure effective communication and maintain good
relationship with each of its key stakeholders.

During the year, as far as the Board is aware, there was no material
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations by the Group
that has a significant impact on the Group’s business and operations.

RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The Group’s loss for the year ended 31 December 2020 and the
Group’s financial position at that date are set out in the audited
consolidated financial statements on pages 137 to 141.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the
year ended 31 December 2020 (2019: Nil).

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years, as
extracted from the audited consolidated financial statements is set out
on pages 282 to 283. This summary does not form part of the audited
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
approximately HK$411,000 (2019: HK$327,000).

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the Year
are set out in note 40 to the consolidated financial statements in this
annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands, the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.
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PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF THE COMPANY'S
LISTED SECURITIES

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
securities by the Company or any of the subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2020.

RESERVES

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately HK$173.0
million. The Company’s reserves available for distribution comprise
share premium and accumulated losses/retained profits. Under the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and the provisions of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Company, the
Company’s share premium account may be applied by the Company
in paying distributions or dividend to shareholders of the Company
provided that immediately following the date on which the distribution
or dividend is proposed to be paid, the Company shall be able to pay
its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

As at 31 December 2020, the Company has no distributable reserve
that was available for distribution to the shareholders.

RELATED PARTIES TRANSACTIONS

Related parties transactions of the Group during the Year are disclosed
in note 47 to the consolidated financial statements in this annual
report. None of such related party transactions constitutes connected
transaction which is subject to the reporting, annual review,
announcement and/or shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Year, the Company and the Group had the following
continuing connected transactions, certain details of which are
disclosed in compliance with the requirements of Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.
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Continuing connected transaction

On 24 December 2018, an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, Telefield Holdings Limited (“Telefield”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively, the “Telefield Group”) and Noble Treasure Holdings
Limited (“Noble Treasure”) and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Noble Treasure Group”) entered into a master sale agreement (the
“Agreement”), pursuant to which Telefield Group agreed to supply to
Noble Treasure Group and Noble Treasure Group agreed to purchase
from Telefield Group the EMS products for a period commencing from
the 5th business days from the date of the Agreement or such other
day as may be agreed between the parties to 31 December 2020 (both
days inclusive).

As at the date of the Agreement, Noble Treasure is owned as to
approximately 17.40% by Telefield Charitable Fund Limited and
approximately 82.60% by Dragon Fortune International Limited. Each
of Dragon Fortune International Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund
Limited is interested as to approximately 53.30% by Century Win
Industrial Limited which in turn is interested as to approximately
53.68% by Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve and approximately 46.32% by
Ms. Ma Mei Han Elitte, a spouse of Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve. The
approximate 46.70% interests in each of Dragon Fortune International
Limited and Telefield Charitable Fund Limited are held as to
approximately 6.50% by Ms. Fok Pui Yin, approximately 8.64% by Mr.
Lee Kai Bon, approximately 8.64% by Mr. Ng Kim Yuen and
approximately 22.92% by other independent third parties. As each of
Mr. Cheng Han Ngok Steve, Ms. Fok Pui Yin, Mr. Lee Kai Bon and Mr.
Ng Kim Yuen is a director of Telefield, Noble Treasure is a connected
person at the subsidiary level of the Company. Mr. Cheng Han Ngok
Steve resigned on 31 December 2018.
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The following pricing principles were determined between Telefield
and Noble Treasure after arm’s length negotiations and on normal
commercial terms with reference to the prevailing market price of the
EMS Products:

1. The sale price of the EMS products supplied by Telefield Group
to Noble Treasure Group will be equivalent to or higher than
those of the same or similar products that Telefield Group supply
to other independent third parties, if any; and

2. The sale price as agreed between Telefield Group and Noble
Treasure Group after negotiation should not be altered, adjusted,
varied unless both parties agree to alter, adjust and vary the sale
price in writing.

The Directors expect that the maximum aggregate annual fee payable
by Noble Treasure Group to Telefield Group under the Master Sale
Agreement for each of the three years ending 31 December 2018, 2019
and 2020 shall not exceed HK$18.5 million, HK$20.5 million and
HK$22.5 million respectively.

AT EBAER] T Telefield R M B R A TER
BIRTEREGRT2RE TEERBERD
WITHEETE :

1 Telefield RE M A EEEMHENE FRE
AR mE HE B SRR Telefield
EmEEMBLE = HENERSE
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2. Telefield 8 62 % H 4 AT RERT 14 1 1Y)
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EXHEE BREHSEHERBZE_Z—N
FZFNFRZFIEFTA=T—A
E=EAFESFHEEEEN T Telefield £
W= FEAER D BT EHi#E18500,000 %
7T * 20,500,000 7% 7T % 22,500,000 A 7T, ©

Further details are set out in the Company’s announcements dated 24  #— 3 BFEHINARA T BH AT — N\ F
December 2018 and 6 March 2019. +-A-tTHBE-_ZE—AF=ZASNHHA
IS
During the Year, the Telefield Group has entered into the sales of AFER © Telefield EEEHH B EBE DA
goods transaction with the Noble Treasure Group as follows: THEERRS :
HK$
BT
MarkAudio Loudspeakers Limited MarkAudio Loudspeakers Limited 1,228,851
Total 4t 1,228,851
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions and have
confirmed that such transactions were entered into:

. in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

. on normal commercial terms and on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available from independent third parties;
and

. in accordance with the relevant agreement governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter
on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company’s auditor has issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed by the Group in this annual report in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the
auditors’ letter has been provided by the Company to the Stock
Exchange.

The auditor’s letter confirms that, in respect of the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions:

a. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the abovementioned continuing
connected transactions have not been approved by the Board.

b.  nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the abovementioned continuing
connected transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements governing
such transactions.
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C. nothing has come to the auditor’s attention that causes the
auditor to believe that the transactions were not, in all material
respects, in accordance with the pricing policies of the Group.

d.  with respect to the aggregate amount of the abovementioned
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come to the
auditors’ attention that causes the auditor to believe that the
abovementioned continuing connected transactions have
exceeded the maximum aggregate annual value disclosed in the
circular of the Company dated 24 December 2018.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, total sales to the Group’s five largest customers
accounted for approximately 78.0% of the Group’s sales for the Year
and sales to the largest customer included therein amounted to 36.4%.
Total purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 25.4% of the Group’s purchases.

None of Directors, their associates or any substantial shareholder
(which to the knowledge of the directors own more than 5% of the
listed issuers share capital) has any interest in the Group’s five largest
suppliers and customers.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee was established for reviewing the
Group’s emolument policy and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management of the Group, having regard to the
Group’s operating results, individual performance and comparable
market practices. The Company has also adopted a share option
scheme to provide additional incentive to its employees. For details,
please see the section headed “Share Option Scheme” below.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman)

Mr. Wang Guozhen (re-designated on 3 April 2020)
Mr. Duan Chuanhong

Mr. Xia Xiaobing

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Bao Jingiao (resigned on 19 October 2020)
Mr. Li Huiwu
Mr. Yang Weidong
(appointed on 24 April 2020)
Dr. Sun Xiaohu
(appointed on 6 January 2021)

In accordance with Article 108(a) of the Articles of Association of the
Company and code provision A.4 of the Code under Appendix 14 of
the Listing Rules, Mr. Duan Chuanhong, Mr. Yang Weidong and Dr. Sun
Xiaohu will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election.

The Company has received confirmations of independence from Mr. Li
Huiwu, Mr. Yang Weidong and Dr. Sun Xiaohu, and as at the date of
this annual report, the Company still considers them to be
independent.

DIRECTORS' BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Group are set out on pages
40 to 43 of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming annual
general meeting has a service contract with the Company which is not
determinable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS

Details of the Directors’ remuneration and the five highest paid
individuals in the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements in this annual report.

No Director has waived or has agreed to waive any emoluments
during the year ended 31 December 2020 .

DIRECTORS INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any
contract of significance to the business of the Group subsisted at the
end of the Year or at any time during the Year to which the Company,
its holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the Year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Under Article 191 of the Company’s Articles of Association, the
directors shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets
and profits of the Company from and against all actions, costs,
charges, losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them
shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of any act done,
concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their duty, or
supposed duty, in their respective offices, provided that this indemnity
shall not extend to any matter in respect of any fraud or dishonesty
which may attached to any of them. Such permitted indemnity
provision is currently in force and was in force throughout the financial
year.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF THE DIRECTORS
AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY AND ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2020, no interests and short positions in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) were held by the Directors
and chief executives of the Company which are required (i) to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions
7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests and short positions
which were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); (i) pursuant to section 352 of Part XV of the SFO, to be entered
in the register referred to therein; or (iii) pursuant to the Model Code
for Securities Transactions by Directors of the Company contained in
the Listing Rules to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

As at 31 December 2020, neither the Directors nor the chief executive
of the Company which has an interest or a short position in the shares
of the Company (the “Shares”) or the underlying shares of the
Company which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

On 28 January 2021, total 15,406,140 options are granted to three
executive directors of the Company to subscribe for Shares upon
exercise of such Share Options at an exercise price of HK$0.359 per
Shares with an exercise period of 28 July 2021 to 27 January 2026.
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Percentage of
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Name Capacity Options  position of the Company
REBRERES

EERERNEE AAFB
£2F 514 RENBE HFEIXE BITREANESHE
Lin Dailian Beneficial Owner 5,135,380  Long position 1.00%
ARACESE EmEEA S
Wang Guozhen Beneficial Owner 5,135,380  Long position 1.00%
FEIE EmEEA S
Xia Xiaobing Beneficial Owner 5,135,380  Long position 1.00%
ENE EmEEA S
Other than as disclosed above, as at the date of this Annual Report, B EXFIEBEESI  RAFHAH - HiEES

neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the Company which
has an interest or a short position in the Shares or the underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the
SFO.
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Pin R A RIEE S R ERDIFEXVEE2
K39 BRI ZR AR A R BE RS BIOR B
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INTEREST AND/OR SHORT POSITIONS OF SUBSTANTIAL
SHAREHOLDERS OF THE COMPANY IN THE SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2020 and 11 January 2021 (the completion date of
the Placing (as defined below) as disclosed in the announcement
dated 8 January 2021), the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant to section 336 of Part XV of the
SFO shows the following shareholders had notified the Company of

RN T E 2RI M AR (D < #E
&N HRR

RZEZTF+_A=+—HERZZE=—F—
A+—B(HEWBARA=ZS-—F—A\AHN
NEMFEENIEEEE(ERR T /T A
H) - RIBRES R EE RO XV I E 33615
RABBEFEZ TERRELMATEE —|—7>7|J

relevant interests, being 5% or more of the issued share capital of the B HREE e AR AT HEBBEEZS (B4R D
Company. BITIRARS% LA L) ©
Percentage of Issued Share
Capital of the Company
HERARABRITREEAL
Number of  Long or short 31 December 11 January
Name Capacity shares held  position 2020 2021 (Note 4)
#e t- et 3.3 —B--%
ne/E8 EL) FEROBE RHKE +=A=t-8 -Bt+-RB(H#H4)
Power Port Holdings Limited Beneficial Owner 75,817,000  Long 17.72% 14.76%
(“Power Port”) (Note 1) ExEEA e
Power Port Holdings Limited
([Power Port |) (ff:£1)
Ms. Yang Changrong Held by controlled 75,817,000  Long 17.72% 14.76%
(“Ms. Yang C.”) (Note 1) corporation e
BRAZT (BRG] (1) B AR ZERE
Keywan Global Limited (Note 2) Beneficial Owner 49,500,000  Long 11.57% 9.64%
Keywan Global Limited (#:£2) EREEA e
Mr. He Xiaoming (Note 2) Held by controlled 49,500,000  Long 11.575% 9.64%
XL E (fzt2) corporation e
B A EERE
Mr. Cao Longbing (Note 3) Beneficial Owner 36,358,000  Long 8.50% 7.08%
BEEEE(HE3) ExEEA e
Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited (Note 3)  Held by controlled 35,930,000 Long 8.40% 7.00%
Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited (#7:%3) corporation e
B AN EERE
Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2 Beneficial Owner 35,930,000 Long 8.40% 7.00%
(Note 3) BEaAA e
Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2
(Fis3)
ROEEER(BB)ERAQA Investment Manager 35,930,000  Long 8.40% 7.00%
REKE e
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Notes:

1. 75,817,000 ordinary shares are held by Power Port, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr. Yang Zhihui (“Mr.
Yang”). A share purchase agreement was entered into on 8 January 2020 between Mr.
Yang, as the seller and Ms. Yang Changrong (“Ms. Yang C.”). as the purchaser, pursuant
to which Ms. Yang C. agreed to acquire, and Mr. Yang agreed to dispose, the entire
issued share capital of Power Port (the “Transfer”). Following the completion of the
Transfer, Ms. Yang C. became the sole shareholder of Power Port and a substantial
shareholder of the Company.

2. 49,500,000 ordinary shares are held by Keywan Global Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands whose entire issued share capital is held by Mr.
He Xiaoming.

3. Long Asia is the investment manager of Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts SP2 and is

therefore deemed to be interested in the shares owned by Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts
SP2 under the SFO. 35,930,000 ordinary shares are held by Hearts Capital SPC — Hearts
SP2, a company incorporated in the Cayman Islands whose entire issued share capital is
held by Hearts Capital (Asia) Limited, which in turn is 70% controlled by Mr. Cao
Longbing who is also interested in 428,000 ordinary shares.

4. On 11 January 2021, an aggregate of 85,580,000 placing shares, which represented
approximately 16.67% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately after
completion of the placing, has been successfully placed (the “Placing”). Following the
completion of the Placing, the total issued shares of the Company increased from
427,958,570 to 513,538,570.

DIRECTORS' RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to
any Director or their respective associates, or were any such rights
exercised by them; or was the Company, its holding company, or any
of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to
enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

COMPETING INTERESTS

During the Year, none of the Directors or controlling shareholders of
the Company nor their respective associates is considered to have
interests in a business that competes or is likely to compete, either
directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the Group other than
those businesses where the Directors have been appointed or were
appointed as Directors to represent the interests of the Company.
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1. 75,817,000 % & i % B Power Port#74 + 5% 2R Al AR &
BRZESTMKIZERAR - ﬁ%ﬁﬂaé‘éﬁﬁﬁmﬁa
MEEEE(MEEDRFE - MEEERER) EBIGR
Azt (WERER) (Bt )R =_E=ZF—A/\H7]
YRHEE G B BEXTRBWRERNEERE
& Power Port & 83 E2 B1T IR AN ([E3E ) - BEEE TRk
% B+ B K A Power Port M — %R M AR A &M =
ZRREE -
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company has a share option scheme (the “Old Share Option
Scheme”) which was adopted on 31 December 2010, valid and
effective for a period of 10 years until 31 December 2020, subject to
the early termination provisions contained in the Old Share Option
Scheme. Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed at the
extraordinary general meeting of the Company held on 10 March
2020, the Old Share Option Scheme was terminated, a new share
option scheme (the “New Share Option Scheme”) of the Company
was adopted and approved. Upon termination of the Old Share Option
Scheme, no further options of the Old Share Option Scheme can be
offered thereunder but the provisions of the scheme shall remain in
force to the extent necessary to give effect to the exercise of any
options granted prior to its termination and options granted prior to
such termination shall continue to be valid and exercisable. As at the
date of this report, the Company has no option granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme remained unexercised or outstanding.

Old Share Option Scheme

In order to attract and retain the eligible persons, to provide additional
incentive to them and to promote the success of the business of the
Group, the Company adopted the Old Share Option Scheme whereby
the Board were authorised, at their absolute discretion and subject to
the terms of the Scheme, to grant options to subscribe for the Shares
to, inter alia, any employees (full-time or part-time), Directors,
consultants, advisors, distributors, contractors, suppliers, agents,
customers, business partners or service providers of the Group.

An offer for the grant of options must be accepted within seven days
inclusive of the day on which such offer was made. The amount
payable by the grantee of an option to the Company on acceptance of
the offer for the grant of an option is HK$1.00. The subscription price
of a share in respect of any particular option granted under the Old
Share Option Scheme shall be a price solely determined by the Board
and notified to a participant and shall be at least the highest of: (i) the
closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet on the date of grant of the option; (ii) the average of
the closing prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the 5 trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the option; and (iii) the nominal value of a share on
the date of grant of the option provided always that for the purpose of
calculating the subscription price, where the Company has been listed
on the Stock Exchange for less than 5 trading days, the issue price
shall be used as the closing price for any trading day fall within the
period before the Listing Date.

AR tERT S

ARRRZE—ZTFT_RA=T—HERABR
EEE((ERRESS ) B2 -FF
TZAZ+T—HLEBREATF  HAREE
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AR-ZE-_TF=ATRBETOHRRERIRE
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R ML E AR R R FT R AR A 8 ([ HAR AR
T8 REBBE SRR - THRIEE
BRI — RN BRE - AT BRI
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PRHE R AR AETTIE - A B AR LE AT th OB AR
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X BB AR U5 B P A AT R M A B A 1 R
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The Company shall be entitled to issue options, provided that the total
number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Old Share Option Scheme does not exceed 10%
of the shares in issue from the Listing Date. The Company may at any
time refresh such limit, subject to the shareholders’ approval and issue
of a circular in compliance with the Listing Rules, provided that the
total number of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under all the
share option schemes of the Company does not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue at the time. An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Old Share Option Scheme at any time during a
period as the Board may determine which shall not exceed ten years
from the date of grant subject to the provisions of early termination
thereof.

New Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the New Share Option Scheme is to provide incentives
and rewards to selected eligible persons for their contributions to the
Group. The New Share Option Scheme will remain valid until 10 March
2030, subject to the early termination provisions contained in the New
Share Option Scheme. The participants of the New Share Option
Scheme may include directors, employees, consultants, professionals,
customers, suppliers, agents, business or joint venture partners,
advisors and contractors of the Group or a company in which the
Group holds an interest or a subsidiary of such company.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted within 21 days from
the date on which an option is offered to an eligible participant and a
non-refundable payment of HK$1.00 in favour of the Company as
consideration for the grant thereof. The subscription price for any
share under the New Share Option Scheme will be a price determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion and notified to each grantee
and will be not less than the highest of (i) the closing price of a share
as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of
grant of the relevant option; (ii) an amount equivalent to the average
closing price of the share as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the
date of grant of the relevant option; and (iii) the nominal value of a
share on the date of the grant.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
New Share Option Scheme and any other schemes involving the issue
or grant of options or similar rights over Shares or other securities by
the Company must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the shares in issue
from time to time. Notwithstanding anything contrary to the terms of
the New Share Option Scheme, no options may be granted under any
scheme of the Company (including the New Share Option Scheme) if
this will result in the said 30% limit being exceeded.

ARRBREBITEBE  WEITEERRERS
B TR THIFTA BRER A sE TR M 425
TEEB ETAHSBETRMAI0% - AR F]
AIMEIR A E AR LR - HEAGRIRRA
X E ST AR R TIEB KR - TREE W
TTEARBEARBAEBRIETER THME H
RITEBIERBFITENBRER S EITH
Bin B8 - TEBEEREHEITRMDAIZ0% o
BREINEFSETN MR AEMAEGRETT
1 - HeZR B ST E R AT & AV IRER - % I
TEBBEL AR +F  BRREBGEUER
RRIE -

s st Sl

BB S ERKETAEMALIRMIE
RREHAEEFERRA EE L O - #58
S —EAR EE-_T=TF=A+
BRLE - EXRNFERES SIS RERR
LHRSR - FTB IR B2 BE R B AL E
FAEEF AR QR EZ A B LR F
MES BE BR ZXAL TP H#HE
R EBREERMH - BB AR -

WARRRAERSEERZBAEE B LT
QB NERAARRB /R HEANTARENK
LO0ETE R BN RE - BIZHHRR
REEW - FBRERT 8E MERRMDORE
ERREFE2ENBETMERIL S NS A
BA S MERIATEEN&ZRSE © ()BD
PAAR AR IR B R X e R RE R
SV E ¢ (DB SR N ERARER
BEL A AEZEXAEBIAERARER
FROIE) PR BN SR R BRHRE D
HHRE(E

RIEFNRERAERT &) S8 R B TR h B =X
BN B I SHE A FE 75 B BRI A B9 (AT E
fET 8 H 1B W ARTTRER AT A 19 RTT LI A
BITEmMA TRITHEOESHE - EHIE
FRB N B BTN H910% o BE ¥ AT
KB EARRRE » WIREARRREAE
2 (BREFBERET S REBRIESSREA
Lt 30%REE - BITSR HEEAGE -

124  Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited IR as B[R B E R E B AR A A



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
FESHE

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of
the options already granted or to be granted to each participant under
the New Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme(s)
of the Company (including exercised and outstanding share options)
in any 12-month period up to and including the date of such grant
should not exceed 1% aggregate of the shares in issue as at the date of
such grant. Any grant of further options above this 1% limit shall be
subject to approval of the shareholders of the Company at general
meetings, with such participant and his associates abstaining from
voting.

The total number of shares in respect of which options may be granted
under the New Share Option Scheme shall be 35,671,857 shares,
representing 6.95% of the issued share capital of the Company as at
the date of this annual report.

No share option under New Option Scheme was granted, cancelled or
lapsed during the year ended 31 December 2020. There is no
outstanding share option as at 31 December 2020 under the new
Share Option Scheme. On 28 January 2021, 35,671,850 share options
was granted to certain Directors and employees of the Group, details
of which is summarized as following:

EEAMRLAM(BREER) LEM121EA R
AR IR R A A R T 8 AN 1 AHE ] A BR A A
AEERTHABRTR2RENBRE(RRE
BT R EARITEN B IE) BITEM S 31T
&%%ﬁmkﬂﬂ%TtLﬁﬁﬁ%m*EE
BATRD AR B 1% » #E — F R B IB X 1% R
ﬁmﬁﬂﬁkTMEkﬁkAtﬁ SARRAE MK
RAE MABSREREZTHE ABNE

BE e

BRI FT B A ST 2] T 3% B BB AR R (D 42 2K
535,671,857 1% {h AR BIAARFER B EICE 3
1TIEARH) 6.95% ©

REBE-_Z_ZF+_A=T—HULEFE #
BRERT SITA T RSB ER T - K
MeR_B_FFE+_A=+—8 FELE
FHEIA T B A RITERBRE R _F——
F—HZ+/\A 3567185017 & iR A 35 T
ETEERAKEREE - FEBUAWT

Category and Outstanding at Exercise Price
name of grantees Granted 12 April 2021 per Share Date of grant Exercise period
R=B=-%
MA+=H
ARANERRET ERT e RATBE BRTEE RUEAH fTEEE
HKD
BT
Director
5%
Lin Dailian 5,135,380 5,135,380 0.359  28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27
MAESE ——f#—RA=+N\H
Xia Xiaobing 5,135,380 5,135,380 0.359  28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27
ENE ——#—RA=+N\H
Wang Guozhen 5,135,380 5,135,380 0.359  28-Jan-21 2021.7.28-2026.1.27
TEE ——#—A=t+/\H
Employees 20,265,710 20,265,710 0.359  29-Jan-21 2022.1.28-2026.1.27
EE ——#—A=1+ANH
Total 35,671,850 35,671,850
st
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RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Company has participated in an approved Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all its employees
in Hong Kong. Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as they become payable in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those
of the Company in an independently-administered fund. The
Company’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme. The Company’s contributions
to the MPF Scheme are recognised as an expense in the statement of
profit or loss as incurred.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, no forfeited contribution to the
retirement benefits scheme was credited to the statement of profit or
loss (2019: nil).

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted the code provisions set out in the Code
contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. Since the Listing Date,
the Company has complied with the code provisions of the Code, save
for the exceptions explained in the Corporate Governance Report in
this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of this
annual report as required under Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation to which the
Shareholders are entitled by reason of their holding of the Shares.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD
(i)  Placing of new shares of the Company (the “Placing”)

On 30 December 2020 (after trading hours), the Company
entered into the Placing Agreement with China Tonghai
Securities Limited (the “Sole Placing Agent”), pursuant to which
the Company has conditionally agreed to place through the Sole
Placing Agent, on a best effort basis, up to 85,580,000 Placing
Shares at the Placing Price of HK$0.35 per Placing Share, to not
less than six (6) Placees, who and whose ultimate beneficial
owners shall be Independent Third Parties.
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@i

(i)

(iv)

The condition precedents set out in the Placing Agreement had
been fulfilled, and completion of the Placing took place on 11
January 2021 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the
Placing Agreement. In accordance with the terms and conditions
of the Placing Agreement, the Placing Shares are to be placed by
the Sole Placing Agent on a best endeavour basis. The Placing
Shares under the Placing have been fully placed. An aggregate
of 85,580,000 Placing Shares, which represents approximately
16.7% of the issued share capital of the Company immediately
after completion of the Placing, has been successfully placed to
not less than six Placees, at the placing price of HK$0.35 per
Placing Share. The net proceeds from the Placing (after
deduction of commission and other expenses of the Placing) are
approximately HK$29.2 million.

Details of the Placing are set out in the announcements of the
Company dated 30 December 2020 and 11 January 2021,
respectively.

Granting Share options

On 28 January 2021, 35,671,850 share options under New Share
Option Scheme was granted to certain Directors and employees
of the Group to subscribe for the ordinary shares of HK$0.02
each in the share capital of the Company. Details can be found in
the announcement published on same day.

Disposal of investments in associates

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into two share transfer
agreements to dispose of all equity interests in the associates,
Zhanju and Rongshu, to the respective controlling shareholders
of the associates with considerations of RMB15,300,000 and
RMB15,000,000, respectively.

Amendments to terms of exclusive agency rights EAR-1

On 17 March 2021, BXG extend the appointment of the Group as
its exclusive agent for Level Condominium (“EAR-1") from 17
March 2021 to end of 4th (fourth) months from the date on
which the government of Thailand and China resume the leisure
travel and cancel the quarantine arrangement between both
countries.

AUDITOR

At the last annual general meeting of the Company, RSM Hong Kong
was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements have been audited by RSM
Hong Kong who retires and, being eligible, offers themselves for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Lin Dailian
Chairman

Hong Kong
12 April 2021

)

(i)

(iv)
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
B AN S

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

LINK-ASIA INTERNATIONAL MEDTECH GROUP LIMITED
(FORMERLY KNOWN AS "LINK-ASIA INTERNATIONAL CO. LTD.”)
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

QUALIFIED OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Link-Asia
International MedTech Group Limited (formerly known as “Link-Asia
International Co. Ltd.”) (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Group”) set out on pages 137 to 281, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020, and the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the matters described
in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of our report, the
consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020,
and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED OPINION

M

Scope limitations on inability to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence for a loan to other party and the related interest
income and impairment

In March 2020, the Company entered into a loan agreement with
a company (“Company B”) pursuant to which the Company
granted a short-term loan of HK$16,000,000 to Company B,
bearing interest at 10% per annum, unsecured and repayable on
30 June 2020. As indicated in the loan agreement, the purpose
of the loan was solely for financing Company B’s operation and
market expansion.

Company B failed to make repayment upon maturity. After
negotiation, a repayment schedule with monthly instalments was
agreed and the maturity date was extended to 31 December
2020 but no repayment was received before end of reporting
period. As at 31 December 2020, the aggregate carrying
amounts of the loan receivable and interest receivable (before
impairment) amounted to approximately HK$17,944,000. Up to
the date of this report, a total amount of HK$14,881,000 was
recovered. Impairment loss of HK$3,063,000 was recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2020.

Management of Company B represented that Company B has
been engaging in investing in clinics offering medical
cosmetology and reproductive technology services in Southeast
Asia. However, Company B and the Company were not able to
provide us with sufficient appropriate audit evidence in relation
to the existence of Company B’s operations.

Due to the above scope limitations, we were unable to obtain
satisfactory audit evidence regarding (i) the business rationale
and commercial substance of the purported loan, and (ii)
whether the purported loan, the related interest income and
impairment had been properly accounted for in the consolidated
financial statements of the Group.
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Any adjustments found to be necessary in respect of the
aforementioned purported loan, had we obtained sufficient
appropriate audit evidence, might have a consequential effect
on the net assets of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and its
loss and cash flows for the year then ended, as well as the
presentation and disclosure in the consolidated financial
statements. Any adjustments found to be necessary might also
have consequential effect on the net assets of the Company as
at 31 December 2020 as disclosed in note 41 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Scope limitations on inability to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence for certain prepayments

During April 2020, the Group has entered into two service
contracts with a company (“Company R”) for Company R’s
provision of services to assist the Group to obtain exclusive sales
rights of certain properties in 2 Asian countries. The total prepaid
service fees under these two service contracts were
HK$9,500,000 as at end of reporting period.

We were provided with an assessment of the recoverability of
the prepayment prepared by the Group’s management based on
its value in use. The assessment involved significant
management judgements and estimations in relation to the
additional costs to be incurred to obtain the exclusive sales
rights and the expected sales of the properties. We were not
provided with sufficient appropriate audit evidence to support
the reasonableness of the assumptions made by management in
estimating the recoverable amount of the prepayment.
Accordingly, we were unable to determine whether any
impairment of the prepaid service fees should be recognised in
the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2020.

Any adjustments found to be necessary in respect of the possible
impairment of the prepaid service fees, had we obtained
sufficient appropriate audit evidence, might have a
consequential effect on the net assets of the Group as at 31
December 2020 and its loss and cash flows for the year ended,
as well as the presentation and disclosure in the consolidated
financial statements.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our
report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The Other
Information comprises all of the information included in the annual
report other than the consolidated financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so,
consider whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of the Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. As described in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section above, the
scope of our work on a loan receivable and prepayments was limited,
accordingly, we are unable to conclude whether or not the Other
Information is materially misstated with respect to these matters.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

PR EAT =R

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, FAREETEABRER PN ELE - R AR
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial B ABREZ G EBREBHTHRAEE
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the 7 E18 - HIEHiE A M RR B ETET
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a W tth ERE RERIBILEEE - M itk
whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a ZEEHXRBBEER - ZFIET 2BEEEE
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matter we identified  EIEA :

is as follows:

Key Audit Matter
BARETEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
EAMETETRNAEEBRRETSE

Impairment of loans to other parties and other
receivables

@ E At A 1 4E H # B R E A e W R RRLE

Refer to note 31 and note 32 of the consolidated financial

statements.
SR E W TBHmERMM T RMEEI2 -

Loans to other parties and other receivables represent a
significant portion of the Group’s assets. A loss allowance
for 12-month or lifetime ECL is made on all loans to other
parties and other receivables.
MEMATEENEREEMEYRRE EXEEEERN
ZE 5 o A REMA T 1EHOE K& it EIKE
Bt R E AN HEREEEENEERE -

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has loans to
independent third parties and individual with outstanding
principal and accrued interest totaling of approximately
HK$62,430,000 (before impairment). During the year,
expected credit loss (“ECL”) of HK$23,471,000 was
recognised due to increase in assessed credit risk.
RZZEZZTF+-_A=+—H  BE5EMEIYE=FAK
EARREERAS LESTH SR ERETEL /62,430,000
BT (FIBRRERTD)  FN - BRFHEEERRIGMN - B
RIEHEEBE(FABEERBE]) R23471.00087T °

Evaluating management’s assessment of whether
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
or the credit risk of the financial asset has
increased to a point that it is considered credit-
impaired since initial recognition of material
loans.
AEEEBHUSHAEAERARGEERR
ERBEEENSEMEENFEERREEME
W REERERNIZERE

Evaluating the independent external valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity.

AHEBISNEMEER R B - B8 MBI -
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Key Audit Matter
AREITEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
KMETETRNAEEBRRETSE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group has other receivables of
approximately HK$36,203,000 (before impairment). During
the year, ECL of HK$18,165,000 was recognised due to
increase in assessed credit risk.
RZZTZZTF+_A=+—H  ESEHMERFIELY
#$36,203,000 8 7T (FBRIBER) c FA - BRFAEEE
[E\BzIEh0 - B HERIAHMEEEHE /181650008 7T °

Management is required to exercise significant judgement
in determining whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk or the credit risk of the financial asset has
increased to a point that it is considered credit-impaired
since initial recognition, and in estimating 12-month and
lifetime ECL on the loans to other parties and other
receivables. Accordingly, this area is considered as a key
audit matter.

ERERIELERAE u#mam¢ﬁpuxzﬁ
EAHREZE NS eREENEERRDEINER
ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁm&ﬁ'uﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁmAiﬁﬁWE%
REMBURZHREARZBEREEEE - At - 1t
FEWRAAREAFE -

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

With the assistance of our internal valuation
specialists: assessing the appropriateness of the
impairment models used by management to
estimate ECL; comparing the inputs to the
models to external data; and assessing the
appropriateness of any forward looking
adjustments in light of available information
about current and forecast future economic
conditions.
EHRMNAITEEZERNHE T - FHERERE
AREFEREEERNREERNEE T
AR AL ) ) A\ SR B ONEP BRI T B - AR
BB RS AN TR R R AE R LR AT B KL AT
i ER AT AR EE M -

EEMEAMBRRABAE LT

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee assists the directors in discharging their
responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

EXFAEREBERLEMASRH 2B LM
B EERLIRBEB R AUED 2 WERER
REBERAF2EAMB®RE  LEEERR
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit
findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,
and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Mr. Wong Tak Man, Stephen.

RSM Hong Kong

Certified Public Accountants
29th Floor, Lee Garden Two
28 Yun Ping Road
Causeway Bay

Hong Kong

12 April 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

S A4S N1
YA A . /E\J/ﬁ_

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=—Z=_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EC-EHE —E-NF
Note HK$7000 HK$ 000
Bt THET FAET
Continuing operations BEREEK
Revenue WA 8 595,023 629,948
Cost of sales SHERA (440,311) (494,106)
Gross profit EF 154,712 135,842
Other income E A 10 12,332 12,391
Other gains and losses H ek K g1 11 (2,327) 3,936
Selling and distribution expenses HE LD A (56,317) (28,829)
Administrative expenses THER (178,158) (179,414)
Impairment losses for loans to mEMATERREEEFE
other parties, net (23,471) (54,560)
Impairment losses for trade BUNE 5 RFUREE B F5E
receivables, net (2,083) (1,550)
Impairment losses for other H 4o fE U FIE B (B 5 18
receivables (18,165) (1,800)
Impairment losses for investments RELE R RIIRERERE
in associates 27 (10,281) -
Impairment losses for intangible B EERERE
assets (14,130) -
Other expenses HEmER (14,309) (42,495)
Loss from operations KEEER (152,197) (156,479)
Share of losses of associates FE(LEE & N B ES 1R 27 (12,622) -
Finance costs RhE KA 12 (4,928) (6,809)
Loss before tax KRB ATEE (169,747) (163,288)
Income tax expense e = 13 (3,323) (1,300)

Loss for the year from continuing BEREERCFEEEE

operations 14 (173,070) (164,588)
Discontinued operation CRIEREEN
Loss for the year from discontinued BRIHEEER 2 FEEE

operation 17 (14,739)
Loss for the year FEEE (179,327)
Attributable to: DT &S ES -

Owners of the Company FiN/NEIEZ SN (171,735)

Non-controlling interests FEIE AR A = (7,592)

(179,327)
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] N\ 7/

PaN
SrE T2 m

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=—Z=_TF+-_A=+—HIFE

Note
KtaE

Loss per share

From continuing and discontinued
operations

BERER

KEFERELEEES

19

Basic (HK cents per share) AR (B
Diluted (HK cents per share) 8 (FaIB1)
From continuing operations REFERLET
Basic (HK cents per share) EHAR (B
Diluted (HK cents per share) 5 (FAB)

138  Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥z 25 BIFX B BRI EE B AR A 7

2020

—EB-SE

—=—=

HK$’000
FRET

(46.119)

TEA

(46.119)

TER

2019
—ZE-NF
HK$ 000
FHET
(re-presented)
€ =7))

(57.772)

E A

(55.367)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e fBm AR ERGE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

2020 2019
—EB-EF —E-NF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FET FAETT
Loss for the year FEBE (173,070) (179,327)
Other comprehensive income: Hit 2wk
Items that will not be reclassified BT EEF BB
to profit or loss: EH -
Fair value changes of equity BAFEFAHEMZE K E
investments at fair value through (TEAFESAEMEZE
other comprehensive income Wit ) MR E AT A
(“FVTOCI") &E) 28 9,353
Items that may be reclassified to AEFH PAEE BB -
profit or loss:
Exchange differences on translating BREGINEB 2 ERZEE
foreign operations 591
Other comprehensive income FEHMEZEWE - HBRBIE
for the year, net of tax 9,944
Total comprehensive income FEZENZBE
for the year (169,383)
Attributable to: DT &FHES -
Owners of the Company KRaER A (161,791)
Non-controlling interests IEIEAE R 2 (7,592)
(169,383)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MR

As at 31 December 2020 R=Z=ZTF+=-fA=+—H

Note
MtaE

ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB &R 20
Right-of-use assets FRREE 21
Investment properties "EYE 22
Investments in associates REE N RMIRE 27
Goodwill S 24
Intangible assets mEEE 25
Rental deposits Heke 31
Loans to other parties mEMATRENER 32
Equity investments at FVTOC] AT EFAREMEERERN

A s & 28
Deferred tax assets R IEE = 39
Total non-current assets FRBEELE
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 29
Trade receivables FEUE SRR 30
Prepayments, deposits and AR - ke REMEIGIA

other receivables 31

Loans to other parties mEMATRENER 32
Amount due from a director Bl —REEHRIE
Equity investments at FVTOC] BAFEFAREMBEERERN

A & 28
Current tax assets BVERFR I8 & B
Bank and cash balances RITRIR &% 33
Total current assets REBEEHAE
TOTAL ASSETS BEEHAE
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES REREME
Equity s
Equity attributable to owners KAREE ANELhER

of the Company

Share capital & 40
Reserves et 42
Non-controlling interests IEIR AR A 25
Total equity RSB
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2020

—E-BF

—_— =

HK$°000
TR

145,901

92,651
165,413

46,556

38,695
450

82
167,657

511,504

657,405

8,559
286,903

295,462
Lyp)

295,934

2019
—E-NEF
HK$'000
TET

171,894

79,927
131,052

81,113
25,115

3,789
586
241,364

562,946

734,840

5,945
405,068

411,013

411,013



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RE MR

As at 31 December 2020 R=Z=ZTF+=-fA=+—H

2020

—E-BF

—_— =

Note
k23
LIABILITIES aE
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAaR 36
Total non-current liabilities FRBEEHETE
Current liabilities RBEE
Trade payables B E SRR 34
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M E M E R IR 35
Lease liabilities HEaE 36
Amount due to a director B —REEHIE
Borrowings EE 37
License rights payable TR R
Product warranty provisions EmRAEE 38
Current tax liabilities BIHAR IR & &
Total current liabilities REBAEALE
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EREhasan

HK$°000
TR

87,353
187,266
20,677
18,595
8,099
4,611
3,948

330,549

657,405

2019
—T-hF
HK$'000
TET

33,246

33,246

54,422
179,193
26,359
204
20,558
5,968
2,059
1,818

290,581

734,840

Approved by the Board of Directors on 12 April 2021 and are signedon  EZH@WR -_ZE-—FMW A+ - RBHLEILH 5

its behalf by: ATRERZ:
Lin Dailian Xia Xiaobing
MRACHE BhE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GARREDE

For the year ended 31 December 2020 &=

=

:I:—?—?

F+=p=+—BILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

ERREEAER
Foreign Equity
Share currency Investments Non-
Share  premium Merger translation Contributed  Statutory Capital Capital at FVTOCI Accumulated controlling Total
capital  account reserve reserve surplus reserve reserve contribution  reserve losses Total interests equity
ROVE
STARA
RENEN
kit RERE HER
Rx  RER AHREG EARE S0BB iERE E5BE  d4nE BE  EHER @it BE EEAE
(noted2  (noted2  (noted?  (noted2  (noted?  (noted2  (noted2  (note42
(note 40) (IO} b)) (b)) b)v) Oy o) i) b))
(e (W#Fe Wi  W@e e WEe  WEe  FEe
(Hit40) ®)) ) o) b)) ©w) o) o) o))
HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$O000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
Tér  TEr  FEr  TEn  TER  TEr  TEr  TEr TR TR TExr  TEnr FEn
At 1 January 2019 RZE-NE-A-H 5945 603,750 31 13,953 18298 2,502 4215 11,280 (53861)  (36509) 572,804 10,028 582,832
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ FE2EMZAE - - 501 - - - - 9353 (1717%5)  (16L79D) (7592  (169.383)
Disposal of equity investments HERERE - - - - - 7949 (1949 - - -
Disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR - - - - - - - - - - (43) 28
Changes in equity for the year FERREY - - 501 - - 1730 (179684) (16179  (10.028) (171819)
At 31 December 2019 and RZZ-NE+ZA=T-RR
1 January 2020 —3-%%5-A-H 5945 603,750 3 14544 18298 2,502 4215 11,280 (36,559)  (216,193) 411,013 - 411,013
Total comprehensive income for the year ~ £E2ENZRE - - - 1,200 - - - - (12212) (173,052)  (184,064) (18)  (184,082)
Issuance of placing shares (note40(2)  BTEERB (Hit40) 118 40324 - - - - - - - - a5 E KK
Issuance of consideration shares BARERG (WF00)
(note 40(c) 1,425 25,575 - - - - - - - - 27,000 - 27,000
Capital injection from a non-controling ~ JERRRIERTA
interest - - - - - - - - - - - 490 490
Disposal of equity investrments HERERE - - - - - - - -l e - - -
Changes in equity for the year FEELEY 2,614 65,899 - 1,200 - - - - 36559  (221,823)  (115551) 4 (115,079)
At 31 December 2020 RZZZZE+=A=1-H 8559 669,649 3 15,744 18,298 2,502 4,215 11,280 - (438,016) 295,462 472 295934
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meRReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

Note
k23
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING RETHEERE
ACTIVITIES
Loss before tax MBI E 1B
Continuing operations B EET
Discontinuing operations B T
Adjustments for: FE

Impairment losses for trade
receivables, net
Impairment losses for other
receivables
Impairment losses for other
deposits
Impairment losses for loans
to other parties, net
Impairment losses for investments
in associates
Impairment losses for intangible
assets
Allowance on inventories, net
Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Finance costs
Share of losses of associates
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries
Gain on modification of tenancy
agreement
Gain on derecognition of
financial liabilities
Gain on bargain purchase of
a subsidiary
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
Interest income on loans to
other parties
Bank interest income and bank
fixed deposit interest income
License rights payment
Provision on product warranty

FEUE 5 BRFOR B B 1R 58

HoAth FEU IR (BB 1R
HipiZ 2 rEER

mEMALTERZ
B R RFE
REE R RIRERERRE

BREERERRE

FEREFH
B EESH
ME - BERREITE

EREEENE
BEKA
FEIERE = N A& R
S P B A B U R
ERT A E ek 2 ek

HUHRER SR A G Wt
EAEL G YN A6

HEYME  BELEREZ
BB
HEMBARZER
mEMALTERZ
LS HA

RITH BIA R IRTTE K

A BHA
SR ANEN
iR AR

30

27
25
25
20
21
12
28
17
11

11

2020
—E-BF

—_— =

HK$°000
TR

Annual Report %k 2020

2019
—T-hF
HK$'000
TET

(163,288)
(15,025)

(178,313)

1,550

1,800

54,560

24,890
32,461
6,809

(754)

©)

2,178
19,193

(7,105)
(1,239)

2,/
2,059
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

meRReRER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

Note
KaE

Operating loss before working
capital changes
Payment of license fee payables
(Increase)/decrease in inventories
(Increase)/decrease in trade
receivables

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments,

deposits and other receivables
Increase in amount due from
directors
Decrease in amount due from
a related company

Increase in loan to a non-controlling

shareholder of a subsidiary
(Decrease)/increase in amount
due to a director

Increase/(decrease) in trade payables

Increase/(decrease) in accruals

LEBESHBAIKELEIE

R RTHEE (3K
FE(Em), md

FEUE 5 BRR (42 00),/ T A

BNFOE - ZE REMRERK
IR, (4200)
JEUEE = IR AN

U —RREE R R FIER D

i — P 22 ) 2 — £ IR
BB D
et — R EEHR

(R2),/ 8800
HEA R BRI, ()
TR 28 R R A 1 O

and other payables #h0,/Cm )
Decrease in product warranty EmRARER LD
provisions
Cash used in operations LEFTRAR G
Cash used in operations LEFTRAER S
Income tax refund/(paid) 2RE () 5
Finance costs paid EXNRE KA

Interest on lease liabilities

HEREFE

43(f)

Net cash used in operating activities

e EE M ME SRR

144 Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 825 BIFX B BRI R EE B AR A 7

2020
—E-BF

—_— =

HK$°000
TR

(33,775)
(581)
(14,575)
(36,444)
27,551

(450)

2019
—T-hF
HK$'000
TET

(34,986)

(853)
28,417
11,553

(13,007)

1,274
(412)

204
(21,791)

(22,416)

(2,498)

(54,515)

(54,515)
(4,982)
(2,419)

474)

(62,390)



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

,\\, N fﬁimi%

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

2020

—BC%F
Note HK$°000
ES TEx

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

Decrease in cash in margin account
of brokerage firms

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Disposal of subsidiaries

Acquisition of associates

Decrease in pledged bank deposits

Bank interest received

Loans to other parties

Purchase of equity investments
at FVTOCI

Proceeds from disposal of equity
investments at FVTOCI

Prepaid intermediate fees for
acquiring exclusive agency rights
for potential real estate projects

Deposit paid for service to obtain
exclusive agency right of a real
estate project in Thailand

Refundable deposit paid for exclusive

agency right
Purchases of property, plant and
equipment

REZDEESRE

RETRESERPZ
Eﬁ.i/ﬁy
%%W%Qﬂ
HEMBA
%%%M“
SEEMRITIFZORD
ERERTT S

HEMALTER
BERATEFARMER
WM IRER &
HEEAFEFAEMEZE
W ES M IR & 2 FT{S 5k 18
Mﬂﬁ@&%ﬂéﬁﬁﬁ%
REEBMFN

RREHREEMEERBR
RIBESMRBEIZE

SN BRAEEZ ARER

BEWME  BFEMEE

43(a)

31(iin

31(viD)

20

Net cash (used in)/generated from
investing activities

WEES (FTR),/ 5 F58

2019

—T-hF

HK$'000
THETT

14,026

(2,381)

1,250

1,239
(26,000)
(9,852)

32,995

(1,500)

(9,204)

573
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
reERERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

2020 2019

—EEHF —E-NF

Note HK$°000 HK$000

k23 FET FATT

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING BMEEHHEERE
ACTIVITIES

Net proceeds from issue of shares BTG AT RIEF 5 40(a) 41,513 -
Principal elements of lease payments  fERZAE I D 43(f) (24,184) (37,628)
Borrowings raised EEER 17,840 -

Net cash generated from/(used in) MEEBE(FrA)

financing activities REHE 35,169 (37,628)
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND ReRBRSEEYRL FHE

CASH EQUIVALENTS (76,058) (99,445)
Effect of foreign exchange rate fEREETE

changes 2,384 626
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R—BA—HNBEERES

AT 1 JANUARY EEY 241,331 340,150
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RT+-—A=+t—HMBEER

AT 31 DECEMBER BEZEEY 33 167,657 241,331
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M ERR M A

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the
Companies Law as an exempted company with limited liability
on 18 May 2010. The address of its registered office is Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand Cayman KY1-1108,
Cayman Islands and principal place of business is 16/F., Three
Exchange Square, 8 Connaught Place, Central, Hong Kong. The
Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock

Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note 26 to the

consolidated financial statements.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). HKFRSs comprise
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong
Kong Accounting Standards ("HKAS”); and Interpretations.
These consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
and with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting policies

adopted by the Group are disclosed in note 4.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs that are
first effective or available for early adoption for the current
accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides information on
any changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that they are
relevant to the Group for the current and prior accounting

periods reflected in these consolidated financial statements.

—RER

ARARZZE—ZTFHRHATNABRER
AEERSHEEMK L AER R ER
A E GE A S &R b bk & Clifton
House, 75 Fort Street, PO Box 1350, Grand
Cayman KY1-1108, Cayman Islands © & &
EEMBAAEAPRRELESSHR
SESFE=ZH6E - ARBRMDERE
BERSMERAR (BRI kL

-

m o

ARABRARRAT - EHBRT
= RN AT WRN 26 -

HZEFAMBRRDBEEEGTA
([ EBEMAE)BEMHZAEER
FEEMBREEN(EBUBREE
ADHER FEMHEREENBERE
MigmE R (BB BREER]) -
EREFEN(EBEFER]) N
B ZEGEAVMBRRTTABINE
Z EmRRAN £ R 1) &8 A 3 R 5
XRBBERAERD(F622F) M HER
E o AEBRM 2 EEZ BRIV 4
B

BERMASTRME T REE
RIEEVHEHmEEN  RFEANAE
EASTHEERERKAHERK
e tRAKEEH BENEXER
S HHR] MARIEET 2 2RI AT S| BUE B I
BESFHEZETHRNTMEE -
EREEFEVBRRARR  BEE
FLERFIRAPRES ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

3.

148

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

(a)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3825 BIfR 2 R e E A R A T

Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the Amendments to Reference to
the Conceptual Framework in HKFRS Standards and the
following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
for the first time, which are mandatorily effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKAS 8

Definition of Material

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7

Interest Rate Benchmark
Reform

In addition, the Group has early applied the Amendments
to HKFRS 16, COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions.

Except as described below, the application of the
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework
in HKFRS Standards and the amendments to HKFRSs in
the current year had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and performance for the current and
prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of
Material

The amendments provide a new definition of material that
states “information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a
specific reporting entity.” The amendments also clarify that
materiality depends on the nature or magnitude of
information, either individually or in combination with other
information, in the context of the financial statements
taken as a whole.

The application of the amendments had no impact on the
consolidated financial statements.

R RS B B R

l

(a)

FERRFTE] MAER] BB RS 4R

AEBNREGAEMBERET B
BAEAR-_ZE-_TF—A—HA%
ZERIRH TR MR RN E
ISR E ERIRE B SER 212
M(ERTA) R E ST ASE
HE Y E B IS RS ER (EBET
)

BRLHENE 1R
REBGEHER
ELEACHES)
B RS ER
EXEACHEN)
BEUBREENE R - FIRAE
ERSEREORE B2
BIBE SRS £
EVEACHES)

BEANESR

EFHOTE

o AEEBIRRERE BT
)& & B FesR(E T A )
COVID-19 /AR & &R, ©

BRI ESN RAFEEAE
BB REEAPHEBESER 2R
A (ERTA) R B &M 18 &E %A
(BRI HAKEE I fBEFE
M BIRR R KRR R, AZEEE
MHmEAENRESTRLEEKX

P
= °

EREGMEMSE1RREBEE
R85 (BRI A) EANER

CHENGERS = S0t Rl LS
[ B R - SRR R B A
NEEEHEYE - RAEVBR
RN BEREERZFREBR
REREER 2 MBERNM R
RIFHZRR AZEHNBE
R AERIARTTEBEE BT R
KHBENR - ERHBURRERH
HEEE (BEEN R AR
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=

FERAZFIER] ASHRA M B R
ML .

2
Z
Y e~

e



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B IR

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

3.

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued)

(a)

Application of new and revised HKFRSs (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business

The amendments clarify the definition of a business and
provide further guidance on how to determine whether a
transaction represents a business combination. In addition,
the amendments introduce an optional “concentration
test” that permits a simplified assessment of whether an
acquired set of activities and assets is an asset rather than
business acquisition, when substantially all of the fair value
of the gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.

The Group has applied the amendments prospectively to
transactions for which the acquisition date is on or after 1
January 2020. The application of the amendments had no
impact on the consolidated financial statements as similar
conclusion would have been reached without applying the
optional concentration test.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, COVID-19-Related Rent
Concessions

The amendment provides a practical expedient that allows
a lessee to by-pass the need to evaluate whether certain
qualifying rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic (“COVID-19
Related Rent Concessions”) are lease modifications and,
instead, account for those rent concessions as if they were
not lease modifications.

The Group has elected to early adopt the amendments and
applies the practical expedient to all qualifying COVID-19
Related Rent Concessions granted to the Group during the
year. Consequently, rent concessions received have been
accounted for as negative variable lease payments
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which the event
or condition that triggers those payments occurred (see
note 21). There is no impact on the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2020.

BRAFTR] MAER] BB

Al (48
€)

B IRE
&)

FERIRNA] AR BB
Al (#&)

ERUBRELERUE IR (BRTH)
EBHER

ZIEFTABEREBNTEE - W
T BRI ZEEREREBRE
BHR L — DI85 o bEHN - ZIEET
ANSIAEEN [EPEAR] - AT
WEBEEZMBATEELE LS
RIS —A#REES— A
BAIEER - £ FTE RS AT
g —HEDREERETBE
EE M IESE TGS -

AEBEHEBRAS T -F
—A— R RO Z A EAZ
BRI o RRRIER] ALHER A M 15
BRUEZE  ARELEERE
BUSHEASRNBERL TSR
(CGOECEE

BHEMKEREEDF16 95 (55T A)
COVID-19 {HEE £ B R

EZﬂ%ETm%@E—IEEHﬂEEE% ’
7o #F A A B COVID-19%& 15 M
BERENRELFSERNEER /JEZ
(fcoviD-19HEEHEESER ) TFH
FHARE REEEN - WKZEM
cEERRAEEEEHZFRAA
Eﬁ o

REEDERREFHMNZET AL
REREAREEERNABEHREE
SK#) COVID-19 48 12 & = Rl fE AR
AI{TREE 70 » ALt - B &M
T EBEBEZENFTE G
E A (RMTsE2) 2 BARE AR IE
mAAERHAETEAE R
Reo-BEH_T-_TF-—HA—-HZ
MUERERITESE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
kre B R M At

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

3.

150

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG 3. BRI RS E] BB IRE 4
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (Continued) B (%)
(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective (o) EBMERRERZFTE] REIEET

Other than the amendments to HKFRS 16, COVID-19
Related Rent Concessions, the Group has not applied any
new and revised HKFRSs that have been issued but are not
yet effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2020. These new and revised HKFRSs include the following
which may be relevant to the Group.

FEMBGHREER

BB HREERE 65 (BE]
Z5) COVID-19 8 & B AN -

AEBWERENR _ZE_ZF—A
— AP REEREASHEMERR
AR R FTE] RIS ET BB 75
MELER « ZEM RSB A
B 53k 25 4 B B 15 7] AR ER R SR B
BRI TSI -

Effective for accounting
periods beginning

on or after

RUT B
ZEBEBRN

Bt HEER

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, HKFRS 4 and
HKFRS 16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2
BAMBHMEEANE T - BB GTERNEIN - BAEMBHREEL
F75%  BEMBMEEAE 4R RBEETBEREERFE 165
(BFTA) R R E LN E — F 2R ER

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework

1 January 2021
—E—F—H—H

1 January 2022

BB M EERFE I (BETA) BB SHELR 2 12t T —F—A—H
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, plant and equipment: proceeds 1 January 2022
before intended use
BB ERF 6T (BRI R) ME - WENKEE - #BEREBZMEHRIE —ZE-—-%#—H—H
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous contracts — cost of fulfilling a contract 1 January 2022
BB ERFEITH (BTN BELEH — BITEHZKAE —EZ-F—H—H
Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2018-2020 Cycle 1 January 2022
- N\FEZT_TFERFEENBREEN FESE —E-_—_F—A—H

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of liabilities as current or non-current

BERGFEAE 15 (BF]RN) BESBARESIIERS
The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have
a significant impact on the consolidated financial
statements

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3825 BIfR 2 R e E A R A T
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR e MR MR

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, unless mentioned otherwise
in the accounting policies below (e.g. investment properties and

certain financial instruments that are measured at fair value).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates.
It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the
process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas
involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the

consolidated financial statements are disclosed in note 5.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of

these consolidated financial statements are set out below.

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up
to 31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when it is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity. The Group
has power over an entity when the Group has existing
rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant
activities, i.e. activities that significantly affect the entity’s

returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the

holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

BEHEE

b F4R A M IS IRR TH R IR 2 A A B

e ETXHEABERAAFAE (N
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B)EBRIN
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ég'Jlk:?ﬁ R EEIRFIESAE M 2 &
B G ERERBERZRE
fhEt 2 #lE - R FES KR -

MAREEAMBBRREMEAZER
SETBOREURAT -

@ #HEKRE

RAEPBHRREBEARRRENE
REABET_A=T—RILZ¥%
HE - MBRRDASEYHES
EHECER EAKERBESNR
EREBMEALAREA M
W WHENBENERZENM
TERTRRE  MHZERAER
B - EAKERHASH B AR
WIEEERED (Y ERBORE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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B IR

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

152

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Consolidation (Continued)

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are de-
consolidated from the date the control ceases.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that results
in a loss of control represents the difference between (i)
the fair value of the consideration of the sale plus the fair
value of any investment retained in that subsidiary and (ii)
the Company’s share of the net assets of that subsidiary
plus any remaining goodwill and any accumulated foreign
currency translation reserve relating to that subsidiary.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
asset transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in
subsidiaries not attributable, directly or indirectly, to the
Company. Non-controlling interests are presented in the
consolidated statement of financial position and
consolidated statement of changes in equity within equity.
Non-controlling interests are presented in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of profit or loss and total comprehensive income
for the year between the non-controlling shareholders and
owners of the Company.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling shareholders even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

©)

®)

Consolidation (Continued)

Changes in the Company’s ownership interest in a
subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions (i.e. transactions with
owners in their capacity as owners). The carrying amounts
of the controlling and non-controlling interests are adjusted
to reflect the changes in their relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any difference between the amount by which
the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value
of the consideration paid or received is recognised directly
in equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
loss, unless the investment is classified as held for sale (or
included in a disposal group that is classified as held for
sale).

Business combination (other than under common control)
and goodwill

The acquisition method is used to account for the
acquisition of a subsidiary in a business combination. The
consideration transferred in a business combination is
measured at the acquisition-date fair value of the assets
given, equity instruments issued, liabilities incurred and any
contingent consideration. Acquisition-related costs are
recognised as expenses in the periods in which the costs
are incurred and the services are received. ldentifiable
assets and liabilities of the subsidiary in the acquisition are
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.

The excess of the sum of the consideration transferred
over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
subsidiary’s identifiable assets and liabilities is recorded as
goodwill. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the sum
of the consideration transferred is recognised in
consolidated profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase
which is attributed to the Group.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Business combination (other than under common control)
and goodwill (Continued)

In a business combination achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest in the subsidiary is
remeasured at its acquisition-date fair value and the
resulting gain or loss is recognised in consolidated profit or
loss. The fair value is added to the sum of the consideration
transferred in a business combination to calculate the
goodwill.

The non-controlling interests in the subsidiary are initially
measured at the non-controlling shareholders’
proportionate share of the net fair value of the subsidiary’s
identifiable assets and liabilities at the acquisition date.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less
accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose of
impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is allocated to each of the cash-generating
units (“CGUs”) or groups of CGUs that is expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination. Each unit or
group of units to which the goodwill is allocated represents
the lowest level within the Group at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill
impairment reviews are undertaken annually, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a
potential impairment. The carrying value of the CGU
containing the goodwill is compared to its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of value in use and the fair
value less costs of disposal. Any impairment is recognised
immediately as an expense and is not subsequently
reversed.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(©)

Associates

Associates are entities over which the Group has significant
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate
in the financial and operating policy decisions of an entity
but is not control or joint control over those policies. The
existence and effect of potential voting rights that are
currently exercisable or convertible, including potential
voting rights held by other entities, are considered when
assessing whether the Group has significant influence. In
assessing whether a potential voting right contributes to
significant influence, the holder’s intention and financial
ability to exercise or convert that right is not considered.

Investment in an associate is accounted for in the
consolidated financial statements by the equity method
and is initially recognised at cost. Identifiable assets and
liabilities of the associate in an acquisition are measured at
their fair values at the acquisition date. The excess of the
cost of the investment over the Group’s share of the net
fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities
is recorded as goodwill which is included in the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share
of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities
over the cost of acquisition is recognised in consolidated
profit or loss.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in an associate may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount
of the investment (including goodwill) is tested for
impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a single asset
by comparing its recoverable amount (higher of value in
use and fair value less costs of disposal) with its carrying
amount. Any impairment loss recognised is not allocated to
any asset, including goodwill, that forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of that
impairment loss is recognised in accordance with HKAS 36
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the
investment subsequently increases.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(©
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Associates (Continued)

The Group’s share of an associate’s post-acquisition profits
or losses and other comprehensive income is recognised in
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses
in an associate equals or exceeds its interest in the
associate (which includes any long-term interests that, in
substance, form part of the Group’s net investment in the
associate), the Group does not recognise further losses,
unless it has incurred obligations or made payments on
behalf of the associate. If the associate subsequently
reports profits, the Group resumes recognising its share of
those profits only after its share of the profits equals the
share of losses not recognised.

The gain or loss on the disposal of an associate that results
in a loss of significant influence represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the sale
plus the fair value of any investment retained in that
associate and (ii) the Group’s entire carrying amount of
that associate (including goodwill) and any related
accumulated foreign currency translation reserve. If an
investment in an associate becomes an investment in a
joint venture, the Group continues to apply the equity
method and does not remeasure the retained interest.

Unrealised profits on transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are also
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Foreign currency translation

®

(i)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances in each entity’s financial
statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency on initial recognition using
the exchange rates prevailing on the transaction
dates. Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign
currencies are translated at the exchange rates at the
end of each reporting period. Gains and losses
resulting from this translation policy are recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value
in foreign currencies are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates when the fair values are
determined.

When a gain or 1oss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in other comprehensive income, any
exchange component of that gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income. When a
gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised in
profit or loss, any exchange component of that gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Foreign currency translation (Continued)

(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities that have a functional currency different from
the Company’s presentation currency are translated
into the Company’s presentation currency as follows:

— Assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement of
financial position;

— Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this
average is not a reasonable approximation of
the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing on
the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the exchange rates
on the transaction dates); and

— All resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in the foreign currency translation
reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from
the translation of monetary items that form part of
the net investment in foreign entities are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in
the foreign currency translation reserve. When a
foreign operation is sold, such exchange differences
are reclassified to consolidated profit or loss as part
of the gain or loss on disposal.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing rate.

4.

()

2EETBR (B)
SN E ()
(i) FERERRE

EAREEMBEER I
MEARNNFZ 25 EER H
B HEERV BRI
THHFRBREARARZE
NEE

\u]]?Y

- REPBRREKZIZ
BENBBERZVHMN
R B H 2 W fE R ik

- WARRXZTRAAF
I HE R E (B FE IR
FIEY T RE A IR
MR 5 B2 &
R RARE EUIB
T WA MR AR
RHBEMZERRE)
54

FTBERLMEEZER

ERINEA 2 E S
BRI RERFER
B

REREIRE R BBREEK
B BINEREREFENE
MBEEEECZEHZERHE
miﬁw%ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ%
BRI - ELEBINER
K ZEELEZENGREE
mABEH B AL ERERK
ez —& 5

EETEIS ¢ XA
BRATEAE  HRER
SHERAEREE ¥
I ERAY -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B IR

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes. Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost
of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and
maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line
basis. The principal annual rates are as follows:

Over the lease term
or 20%-25%
10%-50%

Leasehold improvements

Plant, machinery, moulds and tools

10%-20%
18%-331/:%

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in
estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset,
and is recognised in profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

€e))
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Investment properties

Investment properties are land and/or building held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation. An owned
investment property is measured initially at its cost
including all direct costs attributable to the property.

After initial recognition, the investment property is stated
at its fair value. Gains or losses arising from changes in fair
value of the investment property are recognised in profit or
loss for the period in which they arise.

The gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the property, and is recognised in profit
or loss.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is withdrawn from use. Any
gain or loss on disposal of an investment property is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the property, and is recognised in profit or loss.
Rental income from investment properties is accounted for
as described in note 4(1).

Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a
lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of
an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and
to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from
that use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee

Where the contract contains lease component(s) and non-
lease component(s), the Group has elected not to separate
non-lease components and accounts for each lease
component and any associated non-lease components as a
single lease component for all leases.

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises a
right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less. The
lease payments associated with those leases which are not
capitalised are recognised as an expense on a systematic
basis over the lease term.

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
After initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at
amortised cost and interest expense is calculated using the
effective interest method. Variable lease payments that do
not depend on an index or rate are not included in the
measurement of the lease liability and hence are charged
to profit or loss in the accounting period in which they are
incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is
capitalised is initially measured at cost, which comprises
the initial amount of the lease liability plus any lease
payments made at or before the commencement date, and
any initial direct costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost
of the right-of-use assets also includes an estimate of costs
to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore
the underlying asset or the site on which it is located,
discounted to their present value, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
except for the right-of-use assets that meet the definition
of investment property are carried at fair value in
accordance with note 4(f).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets
at the end of the lease term are depreciated from
commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of right-
of-use assets.

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or
rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the
reassessment of whether the Group will be reasonably
certain to exercise a purchase, extension or termination
option. When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a
corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount
of the right-of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if
the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been
reduced to zero.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9

Q)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a
change in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a
lease that is not originally provided for in the lease contract
(“"lease modification”) that is not accounted for as a
separate lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured
based on the revised lease payments and lease term using
a revised discount rate at the effective date of the
modification. The only exceptions are any rent concessions
which arose as a direct consequence of the COVID-19
pandemic and which satisfied the conditions set out in
paragraph 46B of HKFRS 16. In such cases, the group took
advantage of the practical expedient set out in paragraph
46A of HKFRS 16 and recognised the change in
consideration as if it were not a lease modification.

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If
this is not the case, the lease is classified as an operating
lease.

Intangible assets acquired separately

(i) Intangible assets with defined useful lives — license
rights and customer relationship

License rights and customer relationship are state at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment
losses. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line
basis over their estimated useful lives as follows:

License rights
Customer relationship

Over the license period
3-6 years
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEEFBUR(E)
(h) Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued) (h)y fERIUEEEREE (8)
(ii) Intangible assets with defined useful lives — (i) EERASEHAFHNERLE

exclusive agency rights for real estate projects

The exclusive agency rights represent exclusive right
to sell certain properties in Thailand within agreed
agency periods:

E-FHERENBERARE
L

B R IR R R W E H R
HANEREHEETYEN
BREF -

Exclusive agency rights Agency Period Number of units

BRAERE REH BNugE

Level Condominium from 1 January 2020 to 17 March 2021, 228 apartments
(“"EAR-1") and further extended from 17 March (both furnished and

2021 to end of 4th (fourth) months
from the date on which the government
of Thailand and China resume the
leisure travel and cancel the quarantine
arrangement between both countries
Level Condominium R_ZE-_TF—A—HAE_T-_—F
((BRRERE]) =A++R RE—FH_T_—F
ATt BEREFRHEMERARE
PR Bl B 48 30 B W B 2 P A A e
EARMNEA(M)FEAERE

LA VIE ("EAR-2") for a remaining term of not less than
12 months from 18 August 2020, and
may be renewed or extend for a further
6 months

LAVIE(TBRREE-2]) B-_ZT-FF/\A+/\BiEst FRHR
NAOR2MEAR - WA EHASE R 6 @A

The exclusive agency rights are stated at cost less
accumulated amortisation and impairment losses.

The initial cost includes payments made to project

owner or property developer for the acquisition of
exclusive agency rights.
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without decoration)

77 villas planned to be
constructed
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Q)

Intangible assets acquired separately (Continued)

(ii) Intangible assets with defined useful lives —
exclusive agency rights for real estate projects
(Continued)

The amortisation of exclusive agency rights is
calculated by the number of units sold during the
period over the total number of units granted, after
taking into consideration of any residual value. The
residual value of exclusive agency right is the
estimated amount that the Group would currently
obtain from disposal of the asset, after deducting the
estimated costs of disposal, if the assets were already
of the age and in the condition expected at the end
of its useful life.

At each financial reporting period end, the
management will review the forecast of units sold
over the remaining agency period and the estimation
of residual value, and consider whether it is necessary
to adjust the amortised cost shared by each unit.

Research and development expenditure

Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the period in which it is incurred. An internally
generated intangible asset arising from the Group’s
product development activity is recognised only if all of the
following conditions are met:

—  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible
asset so that it will be available for use or sale;
—  Management intends to complete the intangible asset

and use or sell it;

—  There is ability to use or sell the intangible asset;
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4.

166

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEEHBE(E)
() Research and development expenditure (Continued) () WEEEZEIH(E)
— It can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will — ﬁ%%’] FRE & E NS E
generate probable future economic benefits; AJRE 2 AR RAOE | 25
—  Adequate technical, financial and other resources to —  BRMeEI - A
complete the development and to use or sell the &R LA TE K B 30 58 A sk
intangible asset are available; EZEBEREE:
—  The expenditure attributable to the intangible asset - EBEEEERZHAEMLZ
during its development can be reliably measured. S EES ] SEHATE ©
Internally generated intangible assets are stated at cost R BREE A T B B DARK AN Rk R A
less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses. HMOREE IR ER o B IR E
Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis over their SR A FHNESREFE - B
estimated useful lives. Where no internally generated EAIPEEABE RN THERE
intangible asset can be recognised, development FAE S H R EE BB AR P
expenditure is recognised in profit or loss in the period in o
which it is incurred.
()  Inventories O FE
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net GEZRKAEERFERET 2
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in, first- BURE IR o AAN DA ST B
out basis. The cost of finished goods and work in progress BEE - kM EERRZKABE
comprises raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate EME - BEEATREE G ZA
proportion of all production overhead expenditure, and BAEMEBERAE - RINHAER (MM
where appropriate, subcontracting charges. Net realisable WA BB FEDRATER
value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of BIRR Z hETEERART TR KA
business, less the estimated costs of completion and the MEstHERFTRECER -
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥R 2s IR B BRI EFE AR A A
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position when the
Group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets
and financial liabilities (other than financial assets and
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL")) are added to or deducted from the fair value of
the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all
the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another
entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If the
Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable, including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss.
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4.

168

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 4. BEETBEKGE)

(k) Recognition and derecognition of financial instruments k) MERIRKRIEIcHIAEE)
(Continued)
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount BB A ARG INITRENTEED
reported in the balance sheet when there is a legally WREE  UTARIRFREALELH
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and SFANEREEREEEER &
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the PEEMBENGAEKE  WEE
asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally EREREHRELFE - af A LR
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events %Hﬂ?’é FITBBURR KRR E 4
and must be enforceable in the normal course of business BT —MEBBEFRARE
and in the event of default, insolvency or bankruptcy of the EE@’& ANEFHF—BHIREXE
company or the counterparty. Ko )8 & kIR EE I ]8R I

1o

() Financial assets O ZHEE
All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are FIELERTABASLE 2SR
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. BEVYERER HBEERR LA
Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of R o UERAFARNBAKTLEIRA
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the TR T35 #5378 S 1B I P 3T ARF R (A A2 4
time frame established by regulation or convention in the BEZSREEBAIDE - KT
marketplace. All recognised financial assets are measured TREENDE  FIBCHERND
subsequently in their entirety at either amortised cost or MEEREEEMRBHAALAT
fair value, depending on the classification of the financial EHEITRIE ©
assets.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(

)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt investments

Debt investments held by the Group are classified into one
of the following measurement categories:

amortised cost, if the investment is held for the
collection of contractual cash flows which represent
solely payments of principal and interest. Interest
income from the investment is calculated using the
effective interest method.

FVTOCI — recycling, if the contractual cash flows of
the investment comprise solely payments of principal
and interest and the investment is held within a
business model whose objective is achieved by both
the collection of contractual cash flows and sale.
Changes in fair value are recognised in other
comprehensive income, except for the recognition in
profit or loss of ECL, interest income (calculated
using the effective interest method) and foreign
exchange gains and losses. When the investment is
derecognised, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income is recycled from equity to
profit or loss.

FVTPL if the investment does not meet the criteria
for being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI
(recycling). Changes in the fair value of the
investment (including interest) are recognised in
profit or loss.
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4.

170

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

0]

(m)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity investments

An investment in equity securities is classified as FVTPL
unless the equity investment is not held for trading
purposes and on initial recognition of the investment the
Group makes an election to designate the investment at
FVTOCI (non-recycling) such that subsequent changes in
fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income.
Such elections are made on an instrument-by-instrument
basis, but may only be made if the investment meets the
definition of equity from the issuer’s perspective. Where
such an election is made, the amount accumulated in other
comprehensive income remains in the fair value reserve
(non-recycling) until the investment is disposed of. At the
time of disposal, the amount accumulated in the fair value
reserve (non-recycling) is transferred to retained earnings.
It is not recycled through profit or loss. Dividends from an
investment in equity securities, irrespective of whether
classified as at FVTPL or FVTOCI, are recognised in profit
or loss as other income.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage
of time is required before payment of that consideration is
due. If revenue has been recognised before the Group has
an unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount
is presented as a contract asset.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective
interest method less allowance for credit losses.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(n)

(0

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on
hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value, having been within three months of maturity at
acquisition. Bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management
are also included as a component of cash and cash
equivalents for the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement. Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for ECL.

Discontinued operation

Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their
carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This
condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly
probable and the disposal group is available for immediate
sale in its present condition. The Group must be committed
to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for
recognition as a completed sale within one year from the
date of classification.

Disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at
the lower of the disposal group’s previous carrying amount
and fair value less costs to sell.

A discontinued operation is a component of the Group (i.e.
the operations and cash flows of which can be clearly
distinguished from the rest of the Group) that either has
been disposed of, or is classified as held for sale, and which
represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single co-
ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of
business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(0)

®

@

172
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Discontinued operation (Continued)

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the component meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the component is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the statement of profit or loss,
which comprises:

—  The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

— The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or on the
disposal, of the disposal group constituting the
discontinued operation.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual
arrangements entered into and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity
instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest
in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities.
The accounting policies adopted for specific financial
liabilities and equity instruments are set out below.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred, and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the reporting period.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

©)

®

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case they are
stated at cost.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recorded at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i)  Revenue from the sale of electronic products and
medical equipment are recognised when control of
the goods has transferred, being when the goods
have been shipped to the customer’s specific location
(delivery). Following delivery, the customer has full
discretion over the channel and price to sell the
goods, has the primary responsibility when on selling
the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is
recognised by the Group when the goods are
delivered to the customer as this represents the point
in time at which the right to consideration becomes
unconditional, as only the passage of time is required
before payment is due.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®
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Revenue and other income (Continued)

)

The real estate supply chain services operation
provides two type of services, the real estate advisory
service and real estate purchase service. The real
estate advisory service provides the customer with
real estate investment advice and help them to
source investment opportunities in South East Asia
and Pan Asia markets. Real estate purchase service
provides services for obtaining the legal title of real
estate investment on behalf of customer. The
customer will negotiate the price of the two services
together, and the customer usually pay a lump sum
fee that represents the sum of the consideration of
the two services.

Real estate advisory service and real estate purchase
service are two distinct performance obligations. The
transaction price is allocated to each performance
obligation on a relative stand-alone selling price basis
estimated using the expected cost plus a margin
approach.

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service and real estate purchase service at a
point in time upon completion of each service.

According to the related terms of real estate
purchase services, the Group has contracted to
arrange delivery and transfer of legal title to the
customers within a period specified in the service
agreement. If the Group fails to fulfil the obligation on
time, the customer has the unilateral right to cancel
the contract, and recover all the payments made to
the Group, together with the interest determined
based on the formula specified in the service
agreement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

®

Revenue and other income (Continued)

)

(iii)

(iv)

W)

(vi)

(viD)

(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from real estate
advisory service only to the extent that it is highly
probable that a significant reversal in the cumulative
amount of revenue recognised to date will not occur
should the legal title to the subject real estate not be
transferred to the customer within the timeframe
specified in the service agreement.

Revenue from catering service is recognised
immediately after the services are rendered.

Management fee, consultancy fee and commission
are recognised when the services are rendered.

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For financial assets
measured at amortised cost, the effective interest
rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the
asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the
shareholders’ rights to receive payment are
established.

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over
the periods covered by the lease term, except where
an alternative basis is more representative of the
pattern of benefits to be derived from the use of the
leased asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Employee benefits

®

(i)

(iii)

Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long
service leave are recognised when they accrue to
employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for annual leave and long service leave as a
result of services rendered by employees up to the
end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution
retirement schemes which are available to all
employees. Contributions to the schemes by the
Group and employees are calculated as a percentage
of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement benefit
scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
the dates when the Group can no longer withdraw
the offer of those benefits, and when the Group
recognises restructuring costs and involves the
payment of termination benefits.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised as
part of the cost of those assets, until such time as the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

To the extent that funds are borrowed generally and used
for the purpose of obtaining a qualifying asset, the amount
of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is determined
by applying a capitalisation rate to the expenditures on
that asset. The capitalisation rate is the weighted average
of the borrowing costs applicable to the borrowings of the
Group that are outstanding during the period, other than
borrowings made specifically for the purpose of obtaining
a qualifying asset. Effective 1 January 2020, any specific
borrowing that remain outstanding after the related asset
is ready for its intended use or sale is included in the
general borrowing pool for calculation of capitalisation rate
on general borrowings.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(w) Government grants

(x)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to
the Group with no future related costs are recognised in
profit or loss in the period in which they become receivable.

Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding
tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all
taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary
differences, unused tax losses or unused tax credits can be
utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the
initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects
neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
asset is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except
when it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Taxation (Continued)

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the carrying amounts of such properties are presumed to
be recovered through sale, unless the presumption is
rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the
investment property is depreciable and is held within a
business model of the Group whose business objective is
to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather
than through sale. If the presumption is rebutted, deferred
tax for such investment properties are measured based on
the expected manner as to how the properties will be
recovered.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-use
assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the
Group intends to settle its tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount unless the relevant asset is
carried at a revalued amount, in which case the impairment
loss is treated as a revaluation decrease. The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the
asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.
If this is the case, recoverable amount is determined for the
CGU to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the CGU.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future
cash flows of the asset/CGU. Present values are computed
using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset/CGU whose
impairment is being measured.

Impairment losses for CGUs are allocated first against the
goodwill of the unit and then pro rata amongst the other
assets of the CGU. Subsequent increases in the recoverable
amount caused by changes in estimates are credited to
profit or loss to the extent that they reverse the impairment
unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in
which case the reversal of the impairment loss is treated as
a revaluation increase.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
investments in debt instruments that are measured at
amortised cost or at FVTOCI, trade receivables and loans
to other parties, as well as on financial guarantee contracts.
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date to
reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit
risk on the financial instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures
the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events on a financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument at the reporting date
with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative and
qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.
Forward-looking information considered includes the
future prospects of the industries in which the Group’s
debtors operate, obtained from economic expert reports,
financial analysts, governmental bodies, relevant think-
tanks and other similar organisations, as well as
consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into account
when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

—  significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

—  existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

— significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;

— an actual or expected significant adverse change in
the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment, the
Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has
increased significantly since initial recognition when
contractual payments are more than 30 days past due,
unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i)  the financial instrument has a low risk of default,

(i) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term,
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business conditions
in the longer term may, but will not necessarily,
reduce the ability of the borrower to fulfil its
contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of
“investment grade” in accordance with the globally
understood definition or if an external rating is not
available, the asset has an internal rating of “performing”.
Performing means that the counterparty has a strong
financial position and there is no past due amounts.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

For financial guarantee contracts, the date that the Group
becomes a party to the irrevocable commitment is
considered to be the date of initial recognition for the
purposes of assessing the financial instrument for
impairment. In assessing whether there has been a
significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition
of a financial guarantee contract, the Group considers the
changes in the risk that the specified debtor will default on
the contract.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not
recoverable.

— when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

— information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than 90
days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more
lagging default criterion is more appropriate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

@)
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Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated
future cash flows of that financial asset have occurred.
Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes
observable data about the following events:

— significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

— a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

—  the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
counterparty a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

— it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

— the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or
in the case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over
two years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking
into account legal advice where appropriate. Any
recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

2

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if
there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-
looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date;
for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together
with any additional amounts expected to be drawn down
in the future by default date determined based on historical
trend, the Group’s understanding of the specific future
financing needs of the debtors, and other relevant forward-
looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the
Group in accordance with the contract and all the cash
flows that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
original effective interest rate.

For a financial guarantee contract, as the Group is required
to make payments only in the event of a default by the
debtor in accordance with the terms of the instrument that
is guaranteed, the expected loss allowance is the expected
payments to reimburse the holder for a credit loss that it
incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive
from the holder, the debtor or any other party.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the
previous reporting period, but determines at the current
reporting date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no
longer met, the Group measures the loss allowance at an
amount equal to 12-month ECL at the current reporting
date, except for assets for which simplified approach was
used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(aa)

(ab)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing
or amount when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is material,
provisions are stated at the present value of the
expenditures expected to settle the obligation.

When it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow is
remote. Possible obligations, whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or
more future events are also disclosed as contingent
liabilities unless the probability of outflow is remote.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial
liability at the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is
initially measured at fair value and subsequently at the
higher of:

—  the amount determined in accordance with the ECL
model under HKFRS 9; and

— the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, the cumulative amount of income
recognised in accordance with the principles of
HKFRS 15.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based
on the present value of the difference in cash flows
between the contractual payments required under the
debt instrument and the payments that would be required
without the guarantee, or the estimated amount that would
be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.
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4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(ac) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period or those that indicate the going concern
assumption is not appropriate are adjusting events and are
reflected in the consolidated financial statements. Events
after the reporting period that are not adjusting events are
disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements when material.

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the directors
have made the following judgements that have the most
significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated
financial statements (apart from those involving estimates, which

are dealt with below).

(a) Deferred tax for investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for investment
properties that are measured using the fair value model,
the directors have reviewed the Group’s investment
properties portfolios and concluded that the Group’s
investment properties are not held under a business model
whose objective is to consume substantially all of the
economic benefits embodied in the investment properties
over time, rather than through sale. Therefore, in
determining the Group’s deferred tax for investment
properties, the directors have adopted the presumption
that investment properties measured using the fair value
model are recovered through sale.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(b) Business model assessment

)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3825 BIfR 2 R e E A R A T

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends
on the results of the SPPI and the business model test. The
Group determines the business model at a level that
reflects how groups of financial assets are managed
together to achieve a particular business objective. This
assessment includes judgement reflecting all relevant
evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance measured, the risks that
affect the performance of the assets and how these are
managed and how the managers of the assets are
compensated. The Group monitors financial assets
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI that are
derecognised prior to their maturity to understand the
reason for their disposal and whether the reasons are
consistent with the objective of the business for which the
asset was held. Monitoring is part of the Group’s continuous
assessment of whether the business model for which the
remaining financial assets are held continues to be
appropriate and if it is not appropriate whether there has
been a change in business model and so a prospective
change to the classification of those assets. No such
changes were required during the periods presented.

Significant increase in credit risk

As explained in note 4(z), ECL are measured as an
allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or
lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves
to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition. HKFRS 9 does not define what
constitutes a significant increase in credit risk. In assessing
whether the credit risk of an asset has significantly
increased the Group takes into account qualitative and
quantitative reasonable and supportable forward looking
information.
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5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Determining the lease term

In determining the lease term at the commencement date
for leases that include renewal options exercisable by the
Group, the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the
Group to exercise the option, including favourable terms,
leasehold improvements undertaken and the importance
of that underlying asset to the Group’s operation.

Generally, periods covered by an extension option in other
properties leases have not been included in the lease
liability because the Group could replace the assets without
significant cost or business disruption. Further information
is set out in note 21.

The lease term is reassessed when there is a significant
event or significant change in circumstance that is within
the Group’s control. During the current financial year, no
lease term has been reassessed.

Classification of equity investments as investment in
associates

The Group signed cooperation agreements to invest in
Shanghai Zhanju Business Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Zhanju”)
and Shanghai Rongshu Business Consulting Co., Ltd.
(“Rongshu”) on 13 January 2020. The Group has 49%
equity interest in each of Zhanju and Rongshu.

According to the terms of the cooperation agreements, the
Group can appoint one director in each of Zhanju and
Rongshu board of directors. Directors of the Company are
of the opinion that the Group has significant influence in
Zhangju and Rongshu, hence classified them as associates.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES 5. FAAMET R EEMEE (B)
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty ERT TR ZE 2 EERR

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key RIEBHRE RN EERE L E M
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting SRR EZEZ EERIR(E T —FEBE
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material ErzEERABEMNEEAEGRKE XA
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities ZERERR)E T ©

within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Fair value of certain assets involves valuation technique (a)

The fair values of certain land and building and investment
properties as set out in note 7(b) and note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively involve
valuation technigues. When applying valuation techniques,
various assumptions and generally accepted
methodologies were used to derive the fair values. Any
changes in these assumptions can significantly affect the
estimate of the fair value of the underlying assets and
liabilities.

The carrying amount of investment properties as at 31

December 2020 was HK$30,000,000 (2019
HK$30,000,000).
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5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b)

Impairment of property, plant and equipment, right-of-
use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is
not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset (including right-of-use assets), the Group
estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit to which the assets belong. Changing the assumptions
and estimates, including the discount rates or the growth
rate in the cash flow projections, could materially affect the
net present value used in the impairment test.

The carrying amount of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets as at 31 December 2020 was
approximately HK$19,203,000 (2019: HK$32,960,000),
HK$48,904,000 (2019: HK$62,520,000) respectively.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

((3)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Initial recognition and subsequent impairment of
exclusive agency rights EAR-1

The Group paid HK$25 million to a company (“BXG”) in
year ended 31 December 2019 as prepayment. During the
reporting period, the Group has reclassified that
prepayment as intangible assets, which represents
exclusive agency rights (“EAR-1") for certain number of
apartments (both furnished and without decoration).

The management of the Group is aware that BXG did not
have ownership nor legal title of the apartments at the time
of granting the exclusive agency rights to the Group. BXG
provided the Group with several formal cooperation
agreements entered into between BXG and the developer
to demonstrate that the developer will reserve a certain
number of apartments (both furnished and without
decoration) to BXG, and BXG has the rights to instruct the
developer to transfer ownership of these reserved
apartments to any party designated by BXG. Therefore, the
management of the Group assessed that the exclusive
agency rights EAR-1 could bring in future economic
benefits to the Group, and so qualified for recognition as an
intangible asset.

The EAR-T's carrying amount at 31 December 2020 was
assessed by management for impairment and written
down to its recoverable amount of HK$8,500,000. The
recoverable amount represented its value in use
determined based on discounted cashflow forecast
prepared by the management of the Group. During the
preparation of discounted cashflow forecast, the
management need to made a number of judgements and
estimations in relation to future sales forecast.
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5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(d) Amortisation of exclusive agency rights EAR-1

(e)

The Group determines the amortisation of exclusive agency
rights EAR-1 based on the allocation of costs corresponds
to the actual number of units sold during the reporting
period over the total number of units with exclusive agency
rights granted under EAR-1. The Group considered this
method is more appropriate to reflect the usage of the
exclusive agency rights as the customers demand varies
from period to period.

Due to the pandemic, the term of exclusive agency rights
EAR-1 were extended and revised after reporting period
and the economic effects of the pandemic could materially
affects sales forecast. At each financial reporting period
end, management will review the forecast of the number of
units that can be sold before the expiry of exclusive agency
rights, and the estimation of residual value. Any changes to
the forecast may result in changes in the unit amount of
amortisation.

The accumulated amortisation of exclusive agency rights
EAR-1 as at 31 December 2020 was approximately
HK$2,392,000 (2019: Nil).

Initial recognition and subsequent impairment of
exclusive agency rights EAR-2

On 18 August 2020, the Group acquired the exclusive
agency rights (“EAR=-2")(note 25) from Ratchaphruek
Global Group Co., Ltd. (“Vendor”) for the rights to sell 77
villa units (“Target Properties”) planned to be constructed
under a project (“Project”) of a developer company
(“Developer”’). The management estimated that the
construction of the Project would begin in the fourth
quarter of 2020 and the handover of the Target Properties
would be taken place at around the fourth quarter of 2022
or first quarter of 2023. The Group has the rights to sell the
Target Properties for a remaining term of not less than 12
months from 18 August 2020, and may be extended by
another 6 months upon expiration.
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(e)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Initial recognition and subsequent impairment of
exclusive agency rights EAR-2 (Continued)

The management of the Group is aware of the findings of a
legal due diligence report issued on 27 July 2020, which
reported that the Developer had not yet obtained (a) the
construction permit for the Project; (b) approval of initial
environmental examination report related to the Project;
and (c¢) approval of land allocation project related to the
Project (collectively, “Relevant Approvals”). The Developer
provided a letter of confirmation issued by its legal counsel
to the Group has indicating that the legal counsel had not
identified any significant risk, obstacles or challenges for
the Developer to obtain land allocation and construction
permit. Therefore, the management of the Group assessed
that the exclusive agency rights EAR-2 could bring in
future economic benefits to the Group, and so qualified for
recognition as an intangible asset.

The EAR-2’s carrying amount at 31 December 2020 was
assessed by management for impairment and no
impairment loss is made. It represents the remaining
consideration promised by the Developer to transfer to the
Group properties of equivalent amount at the expiration of
exclusive agency terms, regardless of the number of Target
Properties sold. The expected future economic benefits of
EAR-2 are dependent on many factors including whether it
is probable that the Developer can obtain the Relevant
Approvals. In light of the foregoing uncertainty, the
management of the Group will review the sales forecast of
the underlying Project to determine whether any further
impairment on EAR-2 should be made at the end of every
reporting periods.

A4 HI i Ko = 2455 (88)
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5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

®

(9)

Impairment of investments in associates

Determining whether investments in associates are
impaired requires an estimation of the recoverable amount
of the investments in associates, when indicators of
potential impairment are identified.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of the
investments in associates was approximately
HK$12,316,000 (2019: Nil) (net of accumulated impairment
losses of approximately HK$10,281,000 (2019: NiD)).

Income taxes

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant estimates are required in
determining the provision for income taxes. There are
many transactions and calculations for which the ultimate
tax determination is uncertain during the ordinary course
of business. Where the final tax outcome of these matters
is different from the amounts that were initially recorded,
such differences will impact the income tax and deferred
tax provisions in the period in which such determination is
made.

During the year, HK$3,323,000 (2019: HK$1,300,000) of
income tax was charged to profit or loss based on the
estimated profit from continuing operations.

5.

A4 HI i Ko = 2455 (38)
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CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Q)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Impairment of trade receivables, other receivables, and
loans to other parties

The management of the Group estimates the amount of
impairment loss for ECL on trade receivables, other
receivables, and loans to other parties based on their credit
risk. The amount of the impairment loss based on ECL
model is measured as the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective
interest rate determined at initial recognition. Where the
future cash flows are less than expected, or being revised
downward due to changes in facts and circumstances,
further impairment loss could be necessary.

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of trade
receivables was approximately HK$165,413,000 (net of
allowance for trade receivables of HK$3,811,000) (2019:
HK$131,052,000 (net of allowance for trade receivables of
HK$1,860,000)).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of other
receivables was approximately HK$18,038,000 (net of
allowance for other receivables of HK$18,165,000) (2019:
HK$8,964,000 (net of allowance for other receivables of
Nil).

As at 31 December 2020, the carrying amount of loans to
other parties was approximately HK$38,695,000 (net of
allowance for loans to other parties of HK$23,735,000)
(2019: HK$51,324,000 (net of allowance for loans to other
parties of HK$60,489,000)).

A4 HI i Ko = 2455 (88)

EEFTHRBRRZ T 2R (E)

(h)

FEWE SR - HMBEURRENR
AEMATERZREE

AEBEEEEREEKE SRR
E@WW%EM&WE@AiE%
ZEERR G REE ZRR -
il FEUS EM&ﬁﬁ@Ai%ﬁZ
EMEEERZRERESHE - &
RIEREEEBRRANNESRS
BIRRBEANENAEENMAE
BRI 2N E B B T R
MRS RENERTE WK
MRS EENERN KR -
WARKBERELNIES - HH=E
ELBEREEHME NHE - MBELE
TR — FREERE -

RZTZTF+=—A=+—H &

WESZERZEEBDBENAR

165,413,000 % 7T (kR FE W & 5 Bk

SREEE381,0008 ) (ZE— N

i 131,052,000 7 7T (0 B fE Uk B
AR U 151,860,000787T)) °

RZEZTF+=-A=+—8H"
mmuﬁzmlﬁzaﬁﬁﬁé’ﬂﬁ
18,038,000 & 7T ( #1 BR H b & 5%
I8 #4%18,165,0008 7T) (ZT— 1,
18,964,000/ 7T (F0BR H A fE Uk
FIERET)) -

RZZE-_ZF+-_A=+—80" M
HMATERZEBEDN A
38,695,000 T (kM E b A £
B AR 8237350008 L) (- &
—FLEE © 51,324,000 7 7T (0% A1 E
fis A + B 3K # #560,489,000%8
JL)) °



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B IR

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

5.  CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY ESTIMATES
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

®

)]

Allowance for slow-moving inventories

Allowance for slow-moving inventories is made based on
the ageing and estimated net realisable value of
inventories. The assessment of the allowance amount
involves judgement and estimates. Where the actual
outcome in future is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact the carrying value of inventories
and allowance charge/write-back in the period in which
such estimate has been changed.

As at 31 December 2020, accumulated allowance for slow-
moving inventories was approximately HK$19,412,000
(2019: HK$17,306,000).

Product warranty provisions

Product warranty provisions of the Group is recognised
based on past experience of level of repairs and returns,
discounted to their present value as appropriate.
Movement of the product warranty provisions during the
year is set out in note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The carrying amount of product warranty provisions as at
31 December 2020 was approximately HK$4,611,000 (2019:
HK$2,059,000).

5.

A4 HI i Ko = 2455 (38)

EEFTHRBRERZ T 2R (E)

0]

@

FHETERE

WHEE %%EMT““M&%#
AERFEREEHE - FHEHEE
S RAE KA - HARZE
BRAERBAINRKMEET ZFER

HEE LAt bR 2 NEE R
AREE R B ER e -

R-E-_ZTF+_A=+—H %
T E 2T BB 4 519,412,000 7
T(ZZF—H%F 17,306,000 7T)

EmRARE

FAEBELRABERABTEER
REKTFREBRERAR - WK
ZHBEGEA) - FRAMNERR
R BENEH GRS B T R M
FE38°

RZZEZEF+_A=+—H &
m iR A EHE 2 IREE 493 4,611,000
B (ZZ — L 1 2059,000%
TT) e

Annual Report %k 2020 199



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

/\‘/T\

B IR

Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

200

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 6.

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign currency risk, price risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and
interest rate risk. The Group’s overall risk management
programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets
and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s
financial performance.

(@) Foreign currency risk

The Group has certain exposure to foreign currency risk as
most of its business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in the functional currencies of the
Group entities. The Group currently does not have a foreign
currency hedging policy in respect of foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group monitors its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

The following table indicates the instantaneous change in
the Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have
been arisen if foreign exchange rates to which the Group
has significant exposure at the end of reporting period had
changed at that day, assuming all other risk variables
remained constant.

MR EE
AEEEXBEHEIE Eﬁﬂ‘%ﬁwﬁ L4
KRk EREAR- EERER RBE

& &b & F & & Z’»‘E@mﬁ'@ﬁfﬂﬁ
EEIAB E)FRE /TSR] TER
RECBREE A S BB B RIBAELT
-z

(@ HMNERMR

AEBEFAZE TIINERRE - REA
RAHBOEBRS  BERAEE
ZUASEERZNEERIIE -
R 62 [ 3R B 3F 4 5 TE B R EL A NS
?&% CBENBENINE SRR
c ARBEIEREINERR
EH% ZREHPERNNINE R

G o
N

BREMEEMEAREEHFTE
REBMPNREPHRAAEEERR
WEIWQEWE“EvﬁﬁIE
EEE LR IR MBS
WTRERAR

Foreign

currency Increase/
strengthened/  (decrease) in
(weakened) consolidated
by loss after tax
BRBi%
SNEFHE REER

(B2fE) & Om2)
HK$000
FET

Year ended 31 December 2020 BE-_ZE_-EF
+ZA=+—HLFE

Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TAR®])

Year ended 31 December 2019 HE_ZT—NF
+ZA=+—HLFE

Renminbi (‘RMB”) ARE(TAR®])

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

5%/(5%) 2,600/(2,600)

5%/(5%)  4,274/(4,274)
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6.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(b)

()

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly through
its investments in equity securities. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investments with different risk and return profiles. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on equity
securities quoted on the Stock Exchange.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to equity price risk at the end of the
reporting period.

If equity prices had been 10% higher/lower (2019: 10%
higher/lower), other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2020 would increase/decrease by
HK$Nil (2019: increase/decrease by HK$1,340,000) as a
result of the changes in fair value of equity investments at
FVTOCI.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its
obligations under a financial instrument or customer
contract, leading to a financial loss. The Group is exposed
to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including
deposits with banks and financial institutions, foreign
exchange transactions and other financial instruments.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from cash and
cash equivalents and derivative financial assets is limited
because the counterparties are banks and financial
institutions with high credit-rating assigned by
international credit-rating agencies, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

6.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(©

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each business unit
subject to the Group’s established policy, procedures and
control relating to customer credit risk management.
Individual credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit over a certain amount. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s past history of making
payments when due and current ability to pay, and take
into account information specific to the customer as well as
pertaining to the economic environment in which the
customer operates. Trade receivables are due within 30-
120 days from the date of billing. Debtors with balances
that are more than 3 months past due are requested to
settle all outstanding balances before any further credit is
granted. Normally, the Group does not obtain collateral
from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables
at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which is calculated
using a provision matrix. As the Group’s historical credit
loss experience does not indicate significantly different loss
patterns for different customer segments, the loss
allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer
bases.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UKREREE(E)
(c) Credit risk (Continued) © f=ERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
The following table provides information about the Group’s TREINEEAEBR_Z_ZF
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at +Z—A=+—HAENEERR KX
31 December 2020: EWESERTBHREERENE
B

2020
—2-FF

Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FHEER KREAE BEREG
% HK$°000 HK$’000
FET THET

Current (not past due) BNER (R HA) 0.00% 152,580 3

1-90 days past due #HP1ZE 90 H 0.30% 10,289 31

91-180 days past due #HEANE180H 2.27% 2,590 58

More than 180 days past due #HA180 H A + 60.09% 116 70
165,575

Specific provisions (note) YR (B AE) 3,649

169,224
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Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 3% oo BX B3 B8

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) PR ERE (&)
Credit risk (Continued) © f=ERRE)
Trade receivables (Continued) EWE SRR (&)
2019
—E-NF
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
TEHAE IR X M E EiE R
% HK$'000 HK$'000
FAETT FAETT
Current (not past due) BIHA (R HA) 0.07% 108,817 81
1-90 days past due HEA1ZE 90 H 0.78% 15,430 127
91-180 days past due #HI1E180 H 1.50% 4,216 66
More than 180 days past due #HI180 BIA 1.78% 1,917 36
130,380 310
Specific provisions (note) 5 BB (B at) 61% 2,532 1,550
132,912 1,860

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
period over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.

Note: For trade receivables relating to accounts which have known insolvency,
they are assessed individually for impairment allowance in order to
determine specific provisions.

The Group has certain concentration of credit risk, as the
Group’s largest three debtors account for 56.4% (2019:
451%) of trade receivables as at 31 December 2020.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

©

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance account in respect of trade
receivables during the year is as follows:

6.

M ERERE (B)
© (EEER(5)
P I 6 52 BR K ()

R REKE S RFEREER
ZEEMT

2020 2019

—E-EF —T-hF

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

At 1 January w—A—H 1,860 444

Impairment losses recognised F IR ERE

for the year 2,099 1,550
Bad debt written off SR (k7)) -
Reversal of allowance for bad debts — ZEBR#E #53@ (16) -
Disposal of subsidiaries HERB AR = (134)
At 31 December Rt+t—A=+—H 1,860

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

All financial assets measured at amortised cost other than
loans to certain other parties are considered to have low
credit risk, and the loss allowance recognised during the
period was therefore limited to 12-month expected losses.
For loan to certain other parties, lifetime expected losses
were recognised if credit risk has increased significantly
since initial recognition.

BBERAIIRNERMEE
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BE (RS EEMALTERRIN K
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

()
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Credit risk (Continued)
Financial assets measured at amortised cost (Continued)

Movement in the loss allowance for financial assets

R EIR (4)

SERER (&)
BRBHERATIROERMEE (F)
FR - RBHERAIIRNEREE

measured at amortised cost during the year is as follows: EERHB o EEHT

Loans to

other parties
mEAMAL
BX
HK$000
FAET

At 1 January 2019 R=-—ZE—Nh—HA—H 5,929
Impairment losses recognised for the year FRNERRBEEE 54,560
At 31 December 2019 R-E—-NF+=-_A=+—H 60,489
Impairment losses recognised for the year FRERBEREE 23,471
Amount written off MiEeE (60,225)
At 31 December 2020 RZE_ZEF+-_A=+—H 23,735

Certain cash deposits and equity investments at FVTOCI

The Group has equity investment at FVTOCI and certain
cash deposit placed in the margin accounts of brokerage
firms. The brokerage firms are subsidiaries of Hong Kong
listed companies hence the directors consider the credit-
rating is acceptable. The margin account enables the
brokerage firm to re-pledge the Group’s securities
collateral (if any) in the margin account and use it as
collateral to secure borrowings for the brokerage firm’s
use. If the brokerage firm becomes insolvent, the banks
may liquidate the securities collateral re-pledged to it by
the brokerage firm in order to discharge the brokerage
firm’s indebtedness. As a result, the Group may not be able
to recover all the securities in the margin account. This is
commonly known as “pooling risk” associated with the
margin account. As at the end of reporting period, the
Group is not exposed to any pooling risk as the Group’s
investment securities and cash deposits held by the
brokerage firms have not been re-pledged.
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. UKEREE(E)
(d) Liquidity risk (d) RBELRR

AEBEBRR AT RERRE LA
HORBDESFE - UEERAEE
R RPN HBARMNERER

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

AEESRBEENAHIFERERE
MEIMBESFAT

The maturity analysis based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows of the Group’s financial liabilities is as follows:

Less than
lyear Between Between
and on 1land 2and
demand 2 years 5 years
10T
RREH NF N
BXE 122 2Z5F BASHE #ct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
TET TET THERT THERT FTET
At 31 December 2020 R-ZB-%F
+=B=+-H
Trade payables EHEZER 87,353 = 87,353
Accruals and other payables BIRE R R EMEMNFIE 147,438 = 147,438
Lease liabilities MERE 21,800 11,403 60,981
Borrowings BE 18,920 - 18,920
License rights payable T RE TR 8,099 - 8,099
At 31 December 2019 R-B-h&
tT=A=+-H
Trade payables ERE SRR 54,422 - - - 54422
Accruals and other payables BREAREMENRIE 157,360 - - - 157,360
Lease liabilities HEGE 27,228 29,851 13,401 - 70,480
Armount due to a director [EN—%EEFE 204 - - - 204
Borrowings BE 27,241 - - - 27,241
License rights payable T HEIE TR 5,968 - - - 5,968
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6.

208

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6. HBRRER(E)
(e) Interest rate risk (e) FI=E[E P
The Group’s loans to other parties and borrowings bear REBEEMALTERREERE
interests at fixed interest rates and therefore are subject to EAEFE - EEERAFENE
fair value interest rate risks. kg o
The Group’s exposure to interest-rate risk arises from its AEEFAKEIRITE R F ER
bank deposits. These deposits bear interests at variable R o REFRIRZEIFIERTE - F
rates varied with the then prevailing market condition. RIZERTRME o
At 31 December 2020, it is estimated that a general RZZE-ZEF+-_A=+—H" &
increase/(decrease) of 100 basis points in interest rates, F H A & SR TERNERT
with all other variables held constant, would have EEtFIREEE FF(NBE) 100 &
decreased/(increased) the Group’s loss for the year and B AEENFEEERRTES
accumulated losses as follows: BB
Increase/(decrease) in interest rates FIR EH (&) 2020 2019
—EZEHF —NF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FAET
100 basis points 100 fEE 25 1,315 1,694
(100) basis points (100) {E Z 24 (1,315) (1,694)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the impact on the S BURRE DT EI TR 2R R 2 B
Group’s loss for the year and equity that would have arisen TEFELRNBWA NS - M
assuming that there is an annualised impact on interest HAEBEFEEENMERERNY
income and expense by a change in interest rates. The Zo. MR EF R —EEE
analysis has been performed on the same basis throughout 17 °
the year.
Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited BB EIER 2 Em B R BB R A
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6. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 6.

(f)  Categories of financial instruments at 31 December

)

Financial assets:
Financial assets measured
at amortised cost
Financial assets measured at FVTOCI

Equity investments

Financial liabilities:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

ETRMEE :
REHRATTENEREE

B ERAH MK E
M5 R E
P A

ETEMEE :
REHERAS RN SR AE

(g) Fair values

The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and
financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate their respective

fair values.

€¢))

MBERERE (&)
Rt=A=+—AMSRTARS

2020
—g-%%F

—_

HK$’000
Fi#

400,418

315,178

A

AEERGEMBEIRRRAE B
BERGBRAGENERERESS
B RFEMEE °

2019
—T-hnF
HK$'000
FIT

442,618

13,397

238,512
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FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS 7.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between
market participants at the measurement date. The following
disclosures of fair value measurements use a fair value hierarchy
that categorises into three levels the inputs to valuation
technigues used to measure fair value:

Level Tinputs:  quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities that the Group
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs:  inputs other than quoted prices included within
level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3inputs:  unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers
out of any of the three levels as of the date of the event or
change in circumstances that caused the transfer.

AT (EHE

AFEAMBELEEZHNGTERESR
FREFPHEEEMFILERRERMN
XHZER - ARERAUATAFES
MRBEBELFESE  HERARE
NFENGEERTNEABRRD R=E
F

FIBBAER : AEERFEBRAR
BzHEREEXARE
Z RIS HRIE CRE
HE) ©

F2EBBAEBR : F1EMEREZHREN
Sh LEESKEBER
ERAHEEEREGD
ZBAER o

FIBBHAEFR  EEXABIAERE
ZBAER o

ZIK% EOBRRESESHERNEELS
MEHHARER=—EZAEBNEA
&%ﬁ
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7.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

(a)

Disclosures of level in fair value hierarchy at 31 December:

7. RHEFEE)
@ R+-A=+—ARTFESREE

B
2020 —ECERE Fair value measurements using: Total
DR EFEFRANER : et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2020
E1E E2E %3E —E-EF
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TERT THET TET TET
Recurring fair value ERMATEE:
measurements:
Investment properties REWNE
Commercial units — [SE X2k
Hong Kong (note 22) BB (Mat22)
2019 —E-hEF Fair value measurements using: Total
NEEFEFRHSE f@Et
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 2019
F1E F2E 3B ZT-NF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET FHET FHET
Recurring fair value EREMATEE:
measurements:
Investment properties RENE
Commercial units — [SE i
Hong Kong (note 22) BB (Hat22) - 30,000 - 30,000
Financial assets EREE
Equity investments BAHEF AEMEENE
at FVTOCI (note 28) BRI E (H1iE 28)
— Equity securities listed —REB LM ZRAES
in Hong Kong 13,397 - - 13,397
13397 30,000 - 43397
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7.

212

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS (Continued)

®)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ op B[R &

Disclosure of valuation process used by the Group and
valuation techniques and inputs used in fair value
measurements at 31 December 2020:

The Group’s financial controller is responsible for the fair
value measurements of assets and liabilities required for
financial reporting purposes, including level 3 fair value
measurements. The financial controller reports directly to
the Board of Directors for these fair value measurements.
Discussions of valuation processes and results are held
between the financial controller and the Board of Directors
at least twice a year.

For level 2 fair value measurements, the Group will
normally engage external valuation experts with the
recognised professional qualifications and recent
experience to perform the valuations.

Level 2 fair value measurements

Valuation technique

RERT

7.

Inputs

WAER

N EFEE)

(b)

WEAEBRR -_ZE_TFE+_A4
=+ —HEANHERR - HE
B EAFEFEMRANEAE
g

$$IWW%IEE A TSR

EITPIREE M ARNAFER
BE(BREFIEQATFENE) - UK
TERZEATENEERNES
ﬁﬁﬁoﬁﬁiﬁﬁ§$ﬁiiz
DR A G ERF R

HE2ERFEFEMS  A%H
%%%%%ﬂﬁ%wTﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ
BIIHEELRNIMNEEEER
17418 »

E2BAVESE

Commercial units located
in Hong Kong
R BEBHEESN

Market comparable
approach
MG & L%

During the two years, there were no changes in valuation
technigues used.

mHER

Market prices

SEMBREEERA

Fair value
AP

2020 2019
= —TAF
HK$’000 HK$'000
THERT FET
Assets Assets
BE BE
30,000

RAEFER - FERNMKERD
W E L -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRM R
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8. REVENUE 8.
Disaggregation of revenue

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products or service line for the year from continuing
operations is as follows:

YA
WA
AEEREFELE

EBRIBERK

RIGIRE DIFRNEFAHBADTFOT

2020
—

HK$°000
TET

Revenue from contracts with customers B&EB IR E LA FE155%

within the scope of HKFRS 15 HEANEFEHWRA
Disaggregated by major products EEXEERIRBIEE DT

or service lines

— Sales of goods —HEEm

— Provision of catering services — REEHRSE

— Provision of real estate supply — R EHE R EERE

chain service

580,214

14,155

594,369

Revenue from other sources kB HARRAKA
Rental income e WA

654

595,023

2019
—E-NF
HK$000
FHT

618,978
10,916

629,894

54

629,948
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Marketing and
distribution of
communications
products
EHRABBARER

2020

S
HK$'000
7

35,939

2019
“T-NF
HK$'000
FAT

8.  WAUE)
WARHF (&)

AR BNE T 51 3 B2 an AR M b B [ I 9R
R-KRMEREE M ERGELE K

Securities and other Real estate supply
assets investment chain services Total
BEREAMEERE FEHEHEERY st
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
==l CToNF SR CT-NF RS CT-F
HK$000 EGTSYUCM  HK$’000 HK$000 LICOOON  HK$'000

THET e

TR

THT -

87,507 [EREESY)
- 43,384
- 229,847
- 72,292
- 2,259
- 25,709
- 136,718

66,358
242,053
56,800
3231
26,460
135,058

597,806

643,502

- (AL  (13,554)

36,476

10,970 AN 629,948

36,476

10,970 594,369 YRR

- 654

36,476

10,970 A 629,948

8. REVENUE (Continued)
Disaggregation of revenue (Continued)
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and
services and at a point in time in the following major product
lines and geographical regions:
Electronic
manufacturing services
EFHERE
2020 2019
“Eo2F ek
LIEINR  HK$000
TEx FAT

Primary geographical markets ~ FEEHE
— The People’s Republic of —hEARLME

China (the "PRC") (ThE ) (BEER)

(including Hong Kong) 72,735 102,487
— The United States of America ~ — £HIBRARE

(the "US.A.") (I%E)) 11,266 31934
— Switzerland -t 229,847 242,053
— France — 5B 72,292 56,800
— Poland — 2,259 3,231
— United Kingdom - ®E 25,709 26,460
— Others —HEfh 132,950 133,091
Segment revenue PEBA VAN 596,056
Intersegment revenue PERERA
~The USA - %H (2,783) IOREST
Revenue from external customers  RENREFHA TRV 582,502
Timing of revenue recognition K AR 2B %
Products and services transferred B B ARSI K — BRI 2

ata point in time &7 544,275 582,502
Products and services transferred  F&R I EH H0E A RIRH
over time -
Total @it LRV 582,502
214
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group has four (2019: three) operating segments as follows:

EMS — Electronic manufacturing services

Distribution of — Marketing and distribution of
Communications communications products

Products

Securities and Other
Assets Investment

Equity investment, property agency
service and other operations

Real estate advisory service and
real estate purchase service

Real Estate Supply
Chain Services

A new operating segment, Real Estate Supply Chain Services has
been formed during the year.

Two operations from securities and other assets investment
(Provision of Catering Services CGU and Sales of Medical
Equipments) were disposed of in the prior year. The segment
information reported does not include any amounts from the
operation Sales of Medical Equipments that is classified as a
discontinued operation, which are described in note 17 and note
43(¢c).

The Group’s reportable segments are strategic business units
that offer different products and services. They are managed
separately because each business requires different technology
and marketing strategies.

o EBE R
AEBUE(ZZE—NF: @) EED
E‘IZZZDT

EFRERY — BTRERY

DIEAER — FHEROHBHER

& e E Al BERE - MENRE
BERE RS e Lt 8

FHEHREE — BHERARENMFE
AR#%5 W EERE B AR

RER - ARBKIL—BFHLED
BN 55 3t EE L FE 8 AR TS5 ©

BHERHMEERE D EBOMIBET (IR
T @ﬁﬁ%ﬁi%iﬁh& SR
BIEREFHE - ZHMHHOBERTE
BEoHAERIIKENBRERERESR
BEEHFMRN 2B WEIW&WE?
43(c) frat) o

REBA IR E D B R R AR E @ MR
BHORBUERBEML - EOMBILE
B REAREEBTE RN LS
FHERES
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

The accounting policies of the operating segments are the same
as those described in note 4 to the consolidated financial
statements. Segment profits or losses do not include interest
income on loans to other parties, gain on disposal of a subsidiary,
interest on loans to other parties and unallocated expenses.
Segment assets do not include unallocated bank and cash
balances, unallocated prepayments, deposits, other receivables
and other assets, loans to other parties and deferred tax assets.
Segment liabilities do not include borrowings, unallocated
accruals and other payables. Segment non-current assets do not
include loans to other parties, equity investments at FVTOCI and
deferred tax assets.

The Group accounts for intersegment sales and transfers as if the
sales or transfers were to third parties, i.e. at current market
prices.

RED e SRR AR A B 7% R MY
FEARTALE AR - D EIEE L A B R

H ALTERZMBEA - HE—FRHEH
BREzWE  REMATERZHE

ABRARDERS - DEHMEELTBEIER
DERITMRSESR  ROEBNXK
B EE - HiBUGAREMEE
RMEMALTERLBEERBEE - 088
BEYTEEREE  ROERREER R
HMENFKIEA - DEERBEELTE
BREMALTER  mAFEFAHAM
EHEHEENOBEREEERIREE -

AEELE R ELD B EEE LB R
AR BN E =TT E R -
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9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DIER(E)
(a) Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets (@ EHEREBBESEERNRES
and liabilities from continuing operations: A EIE c EEMBENER:

Distribution

of  Securities Real Estate

Communi-  and Other Supply

cations Assets Chain
EMS Products Investment Services Total

EHER

EFHE oHBER  HttEE EHE
R Em RE {tEERK st
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
TET TET TET TET TET

Year ended 31 December 2020 HE-E-EF

TZA=t-HLEEE

Revenue from external customers R BMEEFE M A 544,275 : 14,155 595,023
Intersegment revenue SEREAA 2,783 - - - 2,783
Segment profit/(loss) HEbEH/ (BR) 33,661 (18497)  (70,627)  (108,972)  (164,435)
Interest revenue M BHA 944 1,948 3,021 5,913
Interest expense FIEBAX (2,033) (32) (2,863) (4,928)
Depreciation nE (18,965) (368) (26,414) (156) (45,903)
Amortisation B - - (2,392) (2,392)
Other material non-cash items: ~ EfEAFIREAR :
License rights payment TR (2,712) (2,712)
Impairment losses for loans to REMATETNRESE

other parties (3,063) (20,408) (23,471)
Impairment losses for trade EAE ZEFRERBREE

receivables, net (2,083) (2,083)
Impairment losses for other BN EREER

receivables (1,800) (16,100) (18,165)
Impairment losses for investments  AEE& A BB RIEFE

in associates (10,281) (10,281)
Impairment losses for intangible A ERIERRE

assets (14,130) (14,130)
Additions to segment non-current S ERIERENE ELA

assets y 52,779 55,312
As at 31 December 2020 RZZZZF+ZA=+-H
Segment assets NHEE 482,529 : 75,598 : 676,996
Segment liabilities NHaE 281,392 . 33,914 : 375,746
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9.
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(a)

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) DERE R (E)
Information about reportable segment profit or loss, assets @ ARRERELLERNBREDE
and liabilities from continuing operations: (Continued) mASKEE BEERBENER
(&)
Distribution
of Securities  Real Estate
Communi-  and Other Supply
cations Assets Chain
EMS Products  Investment Services Total
EFRE olEEM  HHEE FEHE
% Em BE HERRE @ir
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FET FET
Year ended 31 December 2019 HE=-E-hE
+ZR=+-HLEFE
Revenue from external customers  REINEEF KA 582,502 36,476 10,970 - 629,948
Intersegment revenue AEEBA 13,554 - - - 13,554
Segment profit/(loss) PEEF/ (BB) 29,289 (10,487)  (101,961) - (83,159)
Interest revenue B A 1,210 4 499 - 1,713
Interest expense FERY (1,581) (45) (2,766) - (4,392)
Depreciation e (25,515) (354) (25,991) - (51,860)
Other material non-cash items: HEAFRLER -
License rights payment RETENR - (2,713) - - (2,713)
Impairment losses for trade JEWE S ERFUREBEFE
receivables, net (1,550) - - - (1,550)
Impairment losses of other HioEUTERESE
receivables (1,800) - - - (1,800)
Additions to segment non-current 3 BIEREN A E LR
assets 8,146 - 1,058 - 9,204
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ-h&+-A=+-H
Segment assets NEEE 411,877 20,487 236,408 - 668,772
Segment liabilities AHEE 237,663 32,015 41,599 - 311,277
Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited BB EIER 2 Em B R BB R A
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9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DIER(E)
(b) Reconciliations of segment revenue and profit or |oss: () D EBUA Fim F Sk 5B R 18R -
2020 2019
i T 7
HK$7000 HK$000
THET FAET
Revenue WA
Total revenue of reportable segments  #4E5 SFUL A 4258 597,806 643,502
Elimination of intersegment revenue 49> ZR U A K 54 (2,783) (13,554)
Consolidated revenue from REFECEERZ
continuing operations A WA 595,023 629,948
2020 2019
i T F
HK$7000 HK$000
FHET FAETT
Profit or loss BRI EE
Total loss of reportable segments WEDELEIERER (164,435) (83,159)
Intersegment elimination PaR= Tk 1] 707
Unallocated amounts: IO EEE
Interest income on loans to mEMmATERZ FEWA
other parties 6,631
Interest on loans from independent KEBLE=HNERFE
third parties (2,417)
Other unallocated head office and Ht R DA ER &
corporate expenses NG (85,050)
Consolidated loss before tax from REFECEER 2B
continuing operations SLAEE (163,288)
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9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. DIER(E)
(c) Reconciliations of segment assets and liabilities: © HHBEERBERER:
2020 2019
=—E= qE :?—j‘[}f‘f
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Assets BE
Total assets of reportable segments  FHEDEPEELEE 676,996 668,772
Elimination of intersegment assets e E E R (23,459) (21,435)
Elimination of unrealised profits R IR s T4 8 (905)
Unallocated amounts: AOBLEEE
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS 45k 33,568
Prepayments, deposits and AR FIE - ek
other receivables E b jE W GRIE 26,693
Loans to other parties mEMATER 26,209
Deferred tax assets BEFRIBEE 1,938
Consolidated total assets EEERE 657,405 734,840
2020 2019
—EZEHF —E-NF
HK$7000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Liabilities aE
Total liabilities of reportable RENHaEERE
segments 375,746 311,277
Elimination of intersegment liabilities 9 2FE & EH £ (23,459) (21,435)
Unallocated amounts: AOBLEeRE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M E A B 3R 9,184 13,985
Borrowings TER= - 20,000
Consolidated total liabilities e BEER 361,471 323,827
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. NEPER(E)
(d) Geographical information: (d) HEEE :

AEBERBFBELEEBNIIRE
PR H i &l 0 e U A LA R iz
PRI & D 2 IER B B AR E R

The Group’s revenue from continuing operations from
external customers by location of operations and
information about its non-current assets by location are

detailed below: ESI RN
2020 2019
—ECEF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
The PRC (including Hong Kong) FE(BEEE) 87,597 113,542
The U.S.A. E3E 40,601 52,804
Switzerland 4 229,847 242,053
France JEE 72,292 56,800
Poland B 2,259 3,231
United Kingdom HE 25,709 26,460
Others Efb 136,718 135,058
Consolidated total LRE KRR 595,023 629,948
2020 2019
—EEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Non-current assets FRBEE

The PRC (including Hong Kong) RE(BEEE) 145,901 134,139
Consolidated total REHEEE 145,901 134,139
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9.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 9. HHER(E)
(e) Revenue from major customers: () REFERFHWA :
An analysis of revenue from major customers which HAREBRAIO% KA LN TER
account for 10 percent or more of the Group’s revenue is as FRASTHOT
follows:
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
EMS segment BETRERED
Customer A ZEA 216,633 257,649
Customer B ZFEB 65,569 117,363
Customer C ZFEC 88,606 24,572
Customer D ZFED 80,159 58,037
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10. OTHER INCOME 10. Embig A
2020 2019
g St 223 —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Continuing operations BEKEEK
Interest income on: AT FIBASHFEHA -
Bank deposits BITIER 122
Bank fixed deposits RITEHTR 1117
Loan to Individual D (note 32(iv)) M{ERADER(HaE320v)) -
Loan to Company B (note 32(ii) MR a BE(MEE32¢0)) -
Loan to Independent third party C EBMEZHCER
(note 32(iii) (Bt 5% 32Gii)) 473
Loans to other parties mEMATER 6,632
Total interest income MBI A LA 8,344
Government subsidy (note) BT & Bh (BaE) 250
Reimbursement from suppliers Ak P2 R 5 3R IO E T ) R B
for testing defective products 1,658
Sale of scrap materials SHE RER 166
Service fee income AR B WA -
Written off of trade payables e & 5 BR SR 88 455
Other Hth 1,518
12,391

Note: The amount mainly represents Employment Support Scheme under the Anti-
epidemic Fund of the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region. The Group had to commit to spending the assistance on payroll
expenses, and not reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. The directors of the Company confirmed that the Group
did not have any unfulfilled conditions relating to the grant during the year.

Hfet : ZFETEEEBEITRERNNZIRE
SHETHRLENE - AREEAZ R EHED
REFEMAX  NMEERBATEEES ALRHE
REERFEKRF - ARREEER  AEER
FRWBEFEZEADE B REITIRI -
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1. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

H s N 518

2020
—g-%%F

—

HK$°000
Fi#

Continuing operations

Gain on bargain purchase of a subsidiary
(note 43(a))

Gain on derecognition of financial
liabilities

Gain on modification of tenancy
agreement

Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains

BFREERRE
AEBERBEMNBARZKE
(B3t 43(a)

BURRER TR B B2 W
ERTHE W 2 W

B3 (B518), Wt F 7R

12. FINANCE COSTS

LE=NBN

330/

2020
—g-8F
HK$7000
TR

Continuing operations

Interest expenses on lease liabilities

Interest on loans from financial
institutions

Interest on loans from independent
third parties

Other

FREEXRK
HEAEZHEAX
KB EREEZERME

KEBILE=T 2 EFHE

HAt

3,266

1,109

553
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—T-hnF
HK$000
FIT

2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
TET
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

13.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE

Income tax relating to continuing operations has been
recognised in profit or loss as follows:

FSB R X

ARARBRERGOMEHE B
AT

2020 2019
—EC-BF —T-NEF
HK$°000 HK$000
FHET FAT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax BNHARE I — BB TSR
Provision for the year FEBE 1,192 2,225
Under/(over)-provision in prior years BAFEBETR(BE) 191 (1,218)
1,007
Current tax — Overseas BNEARIIE — 8 5h
Provision for the year TR 292
Under-provision in prior years BEFERENT 1
293
Deferred tax (note 39) EIEFRIE (M5 39) -
1,300

Under the two-tiered profits tax regime, profits tax rate for the
first HK$2 million of assessable profits of qualifying corporations
established in Hong Kong will be lowered to 8.25% (2019: 8.25%),
and profits above that amount will be subject to the tax rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%). For the other Hong Kong established
subsidiaries, Hong Kong Profits Tax has been provided at a rate
of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits.

PRC Enterprises Income Tax has been provided at a rate of 25%
(2019: 25%).

Tax charge on profits assessable elsewhere have been calculated
at the rates of tax prevailing in the countries in which the Group
operates, based on existing legislation, interpretation and
practices in respect thereof.

BREMEHFERGE - RE BT
BB M E 2,000,000 T &R
m AR FIS R R AEIE8.25%(— T — N -
825%) ML R ET - MEBBZSENE
M AE12165% (=T — NF 1 16.5%) W
EER - REMBFEXZOMBARM
T BABNGH IR ERY G N8
16.5% (ZZ—J1LF : 16.5%) aT IR #4E o

B 23 05% (ZF — NLF : 25%) B
T RETIRFTIS R o

Hip i 77 R DS M R IBE A TR

SEKEMEBRREMME  RIFEH
RITED - 2B RBHFE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

13.

226

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

The reconciliation between the income tax expense and the
product of loss before tax multiplied by the Hong Kong Profits

Tax rate is as follows:

FrSE RS (48)

PRGBS R TR AT B IR RIA B B IS
BB R Prat B BEEm R YR T ¢

2020
S8

HK$°000
TET

2019
—E-NF
HK$000
FHET

Loss before tax
(from continuing operations)

BRI AT B 1R
(RERBELEEDR)

(163,288)

(169,747)

Tax at the Hong Kong Profits Tax rate of
16.5% (2019: 16.5%)
Tax effect of income that is not taxable
Tax effect of expenses that are
not deductible
Tax effect of temporary differences
not recognised
Tax effect of tax concession
Under/(over)-provision in prior years
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses
not previously recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries
Others

BEBNEHBE6.5%

(ZZ—NF 165%)stE 2 HiE

BRRGMANREZE
TRHEEAORB T E

AEREREZENVNBEE

BEMEOBBZE
BEFERETR/(BE)
B ABERERRBERD
MBEE
RERRBBEONGEEE
MEARMEERNTE
Hitp

(27,107)
(1,903)

24,668

586
(2,002)
(1,218)

(772)
12,936
(3,428)

(460)

Income tax expense
(relating to continuing operations)

PRSI
(BB L)

1,300
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

14.

FEREXBZFEEBR

AEERBECEEB 2 FEBEET
B GEA)V AT BBEREIIAT

2020
SE L
HK$°000
FHR

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING 14,
OPERATIONS
The Group’s loss for the year from continuing operations is
stated after charging/(crediting) the followings:
Auditor’s remuneration = EREM N &
— audit services — BZR
— other services — EM AR
Business entertainment E S
Cost of goods sold (note (i) %N I0),
Cost of inventories sold BEEFEKA
Allowance on inventories GFERE
Reversal of allowance on inventories GEBEER (M)

(note (i)

Amortisation of exclusive agency right
(EAR-1) (note 25(b))
Depreciation on property,
plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use assets
Legal and professional fee
Other gains and losses:
Gain on modification of
tenancy agreement
Gain on bargain purchase
of a subsidiary
Other operating expenses:
Loss on disposal of property,
plant and equipment
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries
(note 43(b)&(c))

Research and development expenditure

(note (i)
Operating lease charges
Land and building
Selling and distribution expenses:
Technical support services fee
(note 31(iv))
Administrative expenses:
Consultancy fee (note 31(0))

BRAIERE (EAR-) 2 K
(Bt 25(b))

EREEENE
FRERERER
Ho A et b B8 -

ERT A& ek < Wz

FHERE—HENEAR
pd &
Hine e &R
LEME - BEREE
pd) =
HEMB AR ZEIE
(Ftat43b) % (©))
WRRFAES
(K% Gin)
KeHEER
T RIEF
HERDHAX
B E RIS B
(KL 316v))
TERER
BRI B (M 310))

1,600
266

1,866
1,921

428,169
12,999

(11,125)
430,043

2,392
17,714

28,189
14,328
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2019
—T-hF
HK$'000
TET

1,567
250

1,817
7,608

480,764
14,256

(10,038)

484,982

24,792
32,461
10,149

2,178

19,193

17,664

6,647

3,750
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14,

228

LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

OPERATIONS (Continued)

Notes:

0] During the year ended 31 December 2020, cost of goods sold includes
approximately HK$82,539,000 (2019: HK$110,979,000) relating to employee
benefits expense and depreciation, amounts of which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above and note 15 for each of
these types of expenses.

(i The Group makes allowance on inventories under respective aged criteria in
different segments. The reversal of such allowance represents the amount of
inventories subsequently used in production or sold.

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, research and development
expenditure includes approximately HK$13,904,000 (2019: HK$17,437,000)
relating to employee benefits expense, amounts of which are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

(i)

(iii)

BE_Z-TF+-_A=+—HILFE &K
RBIER R E B8 X R I8 482,539,000
TT(=F— A4 : 110,979,000/ 7T) * ZES B
Ihat A SR MRS (E B BR & AR 2 e ARsR -

AEBMEERAE B EHMNRRENNFEER
B - BEEDEERANEERNENTFES

HE-_Z-ZTF+-A=+—HILFE  HIER
FE X B iR A R IR B A8 IR 2 4713,904,000 7
TL(ZE—NE 117437000/870) « 4SS EH
RERE I RE M TS o

BERHAFHX

Employee benefits expense
(including directors’ emoluments):
Salaries, bonuses and allowances

Ret

BRERMAX
(BREFEME)
¥ JEALRORRE

irement benefit scheme contributions — 3RRIEFEHEI4 20
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2020
—BoRF
HK$’000
FERT

2019
—T-hnF
HK$'000
FAT

176,312
2,498

199,353
12,977

178,810

212,330
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

15. EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (Continued) 5. EBE®AMHEZ(E)
Five highest paid individuals: hEg&sHAL:

AEE  AEERAESHEALTTHE
“E-NEFTR)EF HMERH
Fe@AO MNP 2 - B THB(ZF

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included none (2019: none) directors whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis presented in note 16(a). The emoluments

of the remaining five (2019: five) individuals are set out below:

—hE AR ALTHBEHIIMT

2020 2019

—EEFE —E-NF

HK$°000 HK$000

FET FET

Salaries, bonuses and allowances e LA NERL 21,250 32,492
Retirement benefit scheme contributions 3R RIS &I 20 276 287
21,526 32,779

The emoluments fell within the following band:

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to HK$4,000,000
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000
HK$6,000,001 to HK$6,500,000
HK$8,500,001 to HK$9,000,000

HK$12,000,001 to HK$12,500,000

2,000,001 7L % 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001/ 7% 3,000,000 4 7T
3,000,0017# 7L % 3,500,000 /& 7T
3,500,001/8 7L % 4,000,000 8 7T
4,000,001/ 7L = 4,500,000 7T
6,000,001 7CE 6,500,000 87T
8,500,001/& 7L E 9,000,000 87T
12,000,001 87T £ 12,500,000 87T

BN THIEE

Number of individuals
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 6. EBHEMNER
(a) Directors’ emoluments (@) EEHN
The remuneration of every director is set out below: BZEFHMEHMT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking
PERES (BRRNALAREKBARER)
WEAREC S RER N EH
Employer’s
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary benefit
Fees Salaries bonus scheme Total
EEEHK
ER ¢  BETL BAFEER o
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TiEx TiEx TiExn TEL TiEx

Name of director E=fF
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WRELE(TE)
Mr. Duan Chuanhong B4
Mr. Xia Xiaobing BNEEAE
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEELE 0]
Independent Non-executive BUHHITEE
directors
Mr. Bao Jingiao HERTE
Mr. Li Huiwu FENEE
Mr. Yang Weidong BERLE (i)
Total for 2020 —ECEEM
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16. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued) 16, ZE&H Mgz (&)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (@ BEFRH(E)

The remuneration of every director is set out below: BEEFMEWOT

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s
services as a director, whether of the Company or
its subsidiary undertaking

SMEREZ(ERNALTAAMBLRRER)

WEARBE N RN E]
Employer's
contribution
toa
retirement
Discretionary benefit
Fees Salaries honus scheme Total
EERIK
ER ¢ WETD BAGEER @t

HK$000  HK$000  HK$O00  HKS000  HK$O000
TR TR TR TR TR

Name of director BEEns
Executive directors HITEZE
Mr. Lin Dailian (Chairman) WRE L () - 941 - - 941
Mr. Duan Chuanhong BTk - 1,000 - - 1,000
Mr. Xia Xiaobing BNEEAE - 2 - - 2
Mr. Gong Shaoxiang EOELE

(Former chairman) (BIEEE) - 582 - - 582
Mr. Lee Chi Hwa Joshua TRELL - 1,455 377 - 1,832
Mr. Shi Xinbiao btk - 83 - - 83
Mr. Li Wuhao FRIFEE - 1,167 - - 1,167
Non-executive director FHiTEE
Mr. Cao Yuyun EMnLAE 1,167 - - - 1,167
Independent Non-executive BUHHTEE

directors
Mr. Bao Jingiao E v 480 - - - 480
Mr. Li Huiwu TEREE 52 - - - 52
Mr. Wang Guozhen TEERE 0) 44 - - - 44
Mr. Wong Chun Hung ERIELE 148 - - - 148
Mr. Leung Pok Man DEVEE 231 - - _ 231
Total for 2019 —E-hEEH 2,122 5,250 377 - 7,749
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16.  BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS (Continued)

232

(a)

()

©

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 38 2o BRI 2 Rl R 2 B B BR A 7

Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Redesignated from independent non-executive director to executive
director on 3 April 2020.

(i) Appointed on 24 April 2020.
None of the directors waived any emoluments during the
year (2019: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate and
connected entities

The information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings entered into by the Company or subsidiary
undertaking of the Company in favour of directors is as
follows:

Outstanding
Total amountatthe  Outstanding
amount  beginning of amount at the amoul
Name of director 3 payable the year end of the year
FzHx  FRZHEA
EfARE ®iERE BERE  HE
HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TR TR TER
As at 31 December 2020 g - 223
tZR=+-8
Quasi-loans or EEFTEAEERS
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian R4
As at 31 December 2019 R=B-hE
tZB=1-8
Quasi-loans or ERFEAEERS
credit transactions:
Mr. Lin Dailian WRELE Nil & Nil & Nil &

Directors’ material interests in transactions, arrangements
or contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company was
a party and in which a director of the Company and the
director’s connected party had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at
any time during the year.

16.

Maximum
outstanding
nt during

the year
FRRE
BEHE
HK$'000

TR

Nil &

EEmN s (8)
(@ EEHHE)
et -
) KoP-BEMAZAEEYHRGE

(o)

Amount due
but not paid
EEEGE
XAHE
HK$'000
TR

Nil &

(©

FHERPTES -

(i) REZZ_TFNA T NBEEZRE -
FA-MEREEHREAWUH2(Z
T—NFE) e

BRARES XEHZENREEER
BHANER EEFLEMEER
HE R
BERARBLMBARIINES
REBAZER  EEFRREME
BZERMT

X H Jul

Provision
for doubtful
debts made

fit

RIS

HK$'000
TER

Term Interest rate

il
HK$'000
TER

NE
HK$'000
TRR

Nil & Nil & Nil &

RHAANNEAE

pFay

BERNFRLFAEAKEFER
ARRBEPITOT RARRES
MREZRZHENERLIREREE
AESNBRARBEBNEME
ARP ~ RHRBH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

17.

DISCONTINUED OPERATION

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a sale and RZE
purchase agreement to dispose of interests in Anhui Huayuan
Guoyi Medical Investment Management Limited ( Z &R 14
BRI EEE AR AR (“Guoyi”), which is significant in the
Group’s securities and other assets investment segment
operations. Details of the assets and liabilities disposed of, and

RIS —

—NFF+ZA=+—H"  A2Q7
NEEBZEALEZRERE S
BEEREEEARAA(TENE D ME
o WEARERESZREMEERED
BHEEBEXN ARLEEERAR
AR EHEFREBS

S H) R BRI

the calculation of the profit or loss on disposal, are disclosed in ¥ 43(0) °
note 43(c).
2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
FATT
Loss for the year from discontinued operation: EAR MRS 7 FE B8
Revenue A 58,204
Cost of Sales THERK AR (53,114)
Other income E A 451
Selling expenses HERX (1,529)
Administrative expenses ITHE A (3,824)
Other operating expenses k=] (14,684)
Finance cost & KA (1,283)
Loss before tax B B A e 18 (15,779)
Income tax credit Fristid & 286
Loss after tax BB EE (15,493)
Gain on disposal of discontinued operation HEBRIEEEER 2 W
(note 43(c)) (Kiat43(c)) 754
Loss for the year from discontinued operation BRI EER 2 FEEE (14,739)
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17.

234

DISCONTINUED OPERATION (Continued) 7. BRIFEEER (]
2019
—T-NF
HK$'000
FAETT
Attributable to: AT &5 Mg
Owners of the Company KREEB A (7,147)
Non-controlling interests IR = (7,592)
(14,739)
Loss for the year from discontinued operation PR IEEEER  FEEE
include the following: BIENTEIA
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment ME - BEMBRETE 98
Cash flows from discontinued operation: BRIMEEER ZRERE
Net cash outflows from operating activities EEEENR R FERE (23,264)
Net cash inflows from financing activities RMEEHE T RAFEE 5,500
Net cash outflows RERHFE (17,764)
DIVIDENDS 18. BB

No dividends have been paid or proposed during the year ended
31 December 2020, nor has any dividend been proposed since

the end of the reporting period (2019: Nil).

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ op B[R &

$EE%E/JE§§?IT%%/)E§§HX/%

EE#&%E@

RARMERKEEARSE(ZFE—N
FE)

SEMBREEERA
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

19.

LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing operations and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share is based

on the following:

T ER
HEHEEE LB RO TR LT
SIREARREEEBE T A AL

Loss

Loss attributable to owners of the
Company, used in the basic loss
per share calculation

3

AR EESREAERZ
RRRHRE AEIGEE

(a) Basicloss per share

Number of shares — Basic

(a

Weighted average number of
ordinary shares for the purpose of
calculating basic loss per share

ARG ESRERNEERZ
DFEF 3 s A A R

The comparative figure has been re-represented to reflect

the implementation of share consolidation on the basis that
every 20 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.001
each to be consolidated into 1 consolidated shares of

HK$0.02 each on 29 May 2020.

(b) Diluted loss per share

No diluted loss per share was presented as the Company
did not have any diluted potential ordinary shares for the
years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019.

(b)

2020 2019
N el T \F
HK$°000 HK$'000
F&T FHT
(171,735)

BREXERE

ARE — B

2019
—T-hF
(re-presented)
(Z&E7)
375,230,709 297,265,570

HEHEFEEINARRR -ZE-F
FRAZTNBERBF20RER
[E{E0.001/8 TTH) 2 31T MR AT
EBERAHARIREREEOCO2E
AR EEE RN E 6 -

BREBEER

HRARBRE-_S_TFR_F
—NFF+ZA=F—HILFELE
S BT T RR  WIEES
BREEEE -
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19. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 19. ZBREEGE)
From continuing operations REFBEEER
The calculation of the basic loss per share from continuing ATERECEER C ERANBETIE
operations is based on the following: RATEIE :
2020 2019
—E-EF —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FATT
Loss B8
Loss attributable to owners of the ARsTEgRERBEZ
Company, used in the basic loss NARIHE AELEE
per share calculation (171,735)
Less: loss for the year from B BRI EER
discontinued operation FEEE (7,147)
Loss attributable to owners of the FARETEISEREER
Company, used in the basic loss FREXREE AR T
per share calculation from wEAELEE
continuing operations (164,588)

From discontinued operation

Basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operation
are not applicable for the year ended 31 December 2020. The
basic and diluted earnings per share from discontinued operation
for the year ended 31 December 2019 are 2.405 HK cents and
2.405 HK cents respectively. Basic and diluted earnings per share
calculation is based on the loss for the year ended 31 December
2019 from discontinued operation attributable to the owners of
the Company of HK$7,148,000 and the denominator used are
the same as those set out above.

KEDRIEEERD

ERIEERBOGRERREEAT
FTTAEBRARBE-F_FF+A
St-HUEFE-BE-_T-NFTZ
A=+ RLFEERLIEEXBKZE
RN e 5 A R 99 Bl 75 2.405 78 1 &
2405784l » FRCEA R #E RN TIRIE
BE-_Z-NAF+-A=+—BILFE
ARAHAEANBECRIEEEXBZE
HB#71480008 LAt H - MATA D FH
L SREAREBEMFHLEER -
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20. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 20. M - BENMKEG
Plant,
machinery, Furniture
Leasehold moulds and and Motor
improvements tools equipment vehicles Total
s - s
HEXEIR  EARIA BRRRE "E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TAT FHT FAT FAT
Cost %N
At 1 January 2019 RZZE—NE—HF—H 29,927 143,527 11,911 1,315 186,680
Additions BE 1,245 7,576 383 - 9,204
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMBAR
(note 43(b) & (¢)) (Hizt430) % () (1,078) - (573) (332) (1,983)
Disposals HE - - (114) - (114)
Written off s (1,055) (27,746) (4,554) - (33,355)
Exchange differences fE 5 =58 (327) (1,340) (63) 4) (1,734)
At 31 December 2019 and R-ZB-AE+-A=+—18
1 January 2020 r_Z-_ZF—-F—H 28,712 122,017 6,990 979 158,698
Additions BE 295 1,080 1,158 779 3,312
Acquisition of a subsidiary Wi — B AR
(note 43(a)) (st 43@a)) - - 1 - 1
Written off i 8 472) (18,344) (387) - (19,203)
Exchange differences fE 5 =58 1,150 4,795 246 14 6,205
At 31 December 2020 R-E-_TFE+-F=1—H 29,685 109,548 8,008 1,772 149,013
Accumulated depreciation ZiHiNE
At 1 January 2019 R-_ZE—-hF—HA—H 15,297 109,405 8,989 1,085 134,776
Charge for the year FEER 7,610 16,585 559 136 24,890
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRA
(note 43(b) & (c)) (Hf:£430) % (c) (738) - (309) (238) (1,285)
Disposals HE - - (25) - (25)
Written off ke (1,044) (25,683) (4,539) - (31,266)
Exchange difference fE 5 = 74) (1,018) (56) 4 (1,352)
At 31 December 2019 and -z HEJF_H*‘F =
1 January 2020 —E-TF—A—H 20,851 99,289 4,619 979 125,738
Charge for the year iE%Fﬁ 5,454 11,041 1,063 156 17,714
Written off bkc! (118) (18,339) (383) - (18,840)
Exchange differences fE 5 =% 1,082 3915 188 13 5,198
At 31 December 2020 “F-TET-A=t-H 27,269 95,906 5,487 1148 129,810
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 —E-FF+-A=+—H 2,416 13,642 2,521 624 19,203
At 31 December 2019 R-E—hE+-A=+—H 7,861 22,728 2,371 - 32,960
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20.

21.

238

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group changed
the estimated useful lives of certain plant, machinery, moulds
and tools from 3 years to 2 years. As a result of this change in
accounting estimate, the depreciation charge increased by
HK$3,638,000 for the year and will decrease by HK$303,000
and HK$3,335,000 for the following year and the year after
respectively.

20. W% - B KR ()

HE-Z-—hF+ZA=1T—HLHF
B AEBEBETHE  #F BHAK
TEZHFAFEAFHBIFERA2
FoBHRLESIETEE FRAFE
£ 103,638,000 70 © WA RE R
T 1% F E 9 Bl R 2303000% 7T &
3,335,000 7T °

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 21 EAREE
Leasehold Leased
lands properties Total
HELHh HERTF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$ 000
FHET FHET FHET
At 1 January 2019 —hF—H—H 1,912 75,813 77,725
Additions N 20,367 20,367
Depreciation e (635) (31,826) (32,461)
Modification EH - (411) (411)
Disposal of subsidiaries HE T E A A - (2,512) (2,512)
Exchange differences PE 5 ERE (26) (162) (188)
At 31 December 2019 and RZFE—NF+=A
1 January 2020 =t+—HERZZEZZTF
—H—H 1,251 61,269 62,520
Additions BN 14,662 14,662
Depreciation e (625) (27,564) (28,189)
Reassessment (note) BEHarh (Hfat) - (1,122) (1,122)
Exchange differences PEH Z%E 42 991 1,033
At 31 December 2020 RZEZFTF
+=ZA=+—H 668 48,236 48,904
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21, RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued) 2. EREEEE)

Depreciation expenses on
right-of-use assets
Interest expense on lease liabilities

HEREZHEMAX

(included in finance cost) (BT ABE R AN)
Expenses relating to short-term lease ERAEBEENRY
(included in cost of goods sold (GTAEERANITHER)

and administrative)

COVID-19 Related rent concessions received 2 4¢H a9 COVID-191HEE S E

ERREEEZTERX

2020 2019
—ECRHE —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET THET
32,461

4,390

6,647

LR

Note: As disclosed in note 3, the Group has early adopted the Amendments to HKFRS
16: COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions, and applied the practical expedient
introduced by the Amendments to all eligible rent concessions received by the
Group during the period.

Lease liabilities of HK$51,599,000 (2019: HK$59,605,000) are
recognised with related right-of-use assets of HK$48,904,000
(2019: HK$62,520,000) as at 31 December 2020. The lease
agreements do not impose any covenants other than the
security interests in the leased assets that are held by the lessor.
Leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
pUrposes.

Details of total cash outflow for leases is set out in note 43(f).

For both years, the Group leases various offices, factories and
staff quarters for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to ten years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the
length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the
definition of a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

BizE - BRI - AREERERAT BN
WEERLGHRISETA : COVID-19MEBHE R
T MG RAERT AT AR THEE A IR AR
SERABHENBENAEEERBELER

RZT_TF+-_A=+—H BE®ER
FE B {E51,599,0008 T (—E—NE:
59,605,000 7T ) R BRI F AEE E
48904,000% L( = T — N F:
62,520,000 7T) - BRI AR AHAE
BEFOERERSIN %ﬂ‘ﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬂ@ﬁu
FRIEMEL - HEEETBSRARER
AR o

HER MR BENMEEA3E)

RRFEHE ARERELEEREZ [
WMAE - IBREIES HEAHR
—E2TFENEEFHFIL - BEGKIR
BRI EEER - WEESETRAEK
KAt - REEE L HI R A8 T mT e B8
RARER AEEERANNERLE
TE B AI AL 58 FI TR HAR]
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22.

23.

240

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 22.

REME

2020 2019
—ECRHE —T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET THET

At 1 January and 31 December R—A—BE+=-A=+—H

30,000 30,000

Investment properties were revalued at 31 December 2020 and
2019 on the open market value basis by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties by Savills
Valuation and Professional Services Limited, an independent firm
of chartered surveyors. For commercial properties and offices,
the Group used market comparable approach.

PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 23.

The Group’s interests in prepaid land lease payments represent
prepaid operating lease payments and their net book value are
analysed as follows:

KEMER BB FTAEMELEME
—ARFEAENEEINEXEMERAQA
ﬂ%*ﬂ%@%ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁﬂ XA MIBEEBRA
RMEEER _T_TFER_FT-NF
TZA=+—HEMR - ABEWENB
REME  ARERABTIGAELEE ©

TR HEERE

AR E BRI 078 B 0B R R T
SRR R EEE - EA
mT

HK$'000

FAETT

At 1 January 2019 —h%F—A—H 1,912
Reclassification due to adoption of HKFRS 16 I%m%/%ﬂﬂ%#& B E 16 MEF DA (1,912)
Restated balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE—NFE— A —HWEEYEH -

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited BB EIER 2 Em B R BB R A
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24,

GOODWILL 24. BHE
Catering
Services CGU
EZ AR
BEEEEN
HK$'000
FAT

Cost and carrying amount BAREREE

At acquisition date and 1 January 2019 RUEBHRE - E—NF—F—H 18,814
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 43(b)) HEMB AR (BaF43b)) (18,814)
At 31 December 2019 RZE—hEF+=ZA=+—H -

Goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGUs that are expected to benefit from that
business combination. The Group acquired 100% equity interest
of Pride Review Group on 17 July 2018. The goodwill arising from
the acquisition is allocated to the Catering Services CGU included
in the Securities and Other Assets Investment segment.

The recoverable amounts of the Catering Services CGU has been
determined on the basis of their value in use calculations using
discounted cash flow method. The key assumptions for the
discounted cash flow method are those regarding the discount
rates, growth rates and budgeted gross margin and revenue
during the period. The Group estimates discount rates using pre-
tax rates that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the Catering Services
CGU. The growth rates are based on long-term average
economic growth rate of the geographical area in which the
businesses of the Catering Services CGU operates. Budgeted
gross margin and revenue are based on past practices and
expectations on market development. On 31 December 2019, the
Group has disposed of the entire equity interest in Pride Review
Group.

EA—IE¥WA1#THQE%E’W]@EAWE§E%
DEEBRRUZEHAHIBZNREE

HBi - AEBR_Z—NFLtA++
B Uz B Pride Review £ B #9100% & # -
WHEREEANEESREEESFLEM

BERENBANERREREELE

fif o

BERRBREEESEM 2 PIREISEETY
ﬁﬂ%Hﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%?ﬁﬁﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ%

cHRMBRBEREEPELCEER
axﬁ&ﬁﬁiﬁt CEREUKREBANEEE
MR R - AEBRABRB AR EMG
STREIRE - ZAERMTIGEHEEEEE
NEEECHTHRESRRSELAS M2
FERR - EBERETDUBRRBEE
EBNEEEBTHE 2 RAFHE
ERRRRBEE - HEERERATY
NBTEAREMZER CERAR
EoRZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 =&
&£ B B H & Pride Review & B /) 2 2B %
1 -
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25.

242

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

25. EVEE

License Customer
rights relationship EAR-1 EAR-2
(note (a)) (note (b)) (note () (note (d)) Total
e EFBEE BRAEE BRAEE-2 @t
(K7t (@) () (Hizt () (Hizt ()
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FAL FHEL FAT FAT
Cost %N
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 R —ZE—HFE—F—H -
and 1 January 2020 “E-hE+=-A=+—H
k_Z-TF—-HF—H 32,458 13,707 - - 46,165
Additions BE - - 25,000 27,000 52,000
Written off s (32,458) - - - (32,458)
At 31 December 2020 —E-FF+-A=+—H - 13,707 25,000 27,000 65,707
Accumulated amortisation and R B AESE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 R—E—h&E—A—RH -
and 1 January 2020 :T; n$+—ﬂ_+ =
—E-TF—A—H 32,458 13,707 - - 46,165
Amortisation for the year ﬁﬂgfﬁ - - 2,392 - 2,392
Impairment loss for the year FENEBRE - - 14,130 - 14,130
Written off s (32,458) - - - (32,458)
At 31 December 2020 —E-FF+-A=+—H - 13,707 16,522 - 30,229
Carrying amount REE
At 31 December 2020 ZCTE+T-A=+—H - - 8,478 27,000 35,478
At 31 December 2019 —E-AF+-R=t+—H - - - - -
Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited BB EIER 2 Em B R BB R A
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25.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

Notes:

(@)

(b)

©

(C))

License rights represent the right to use the “RCA” trademark in trading of
certain manufactured business phones in the U.S.A. and Canada. The license
rights expired on 31 December 2018 and was further extended to 31 December
2020.

Customer relationship represents the future economic benefit to the Group
arising from regular contact between individual customer and the business
entity before business combination. The amortising period of customer
relationship was 3-6 years.

The Group paid HK$25 million to a company (“BXG”) in FY2019 as prepayment
(note 31). In FY2020, the Group has reclassified that prepayment as intangible
assets, which represents exclusive agency rights (“"EAR-1") for certain number of
apartments (both furnished and without decoration). Due to the effect of the
pandemic, the terms of the EAR-1 were extended and revised after the reporting
period. Further details are set out in note 5(c)&(d).

On 18 August 2020, the Group acquired the exclusive agency rights (“‘EAR-2")
from Ratchaphruek Global Group Co., Ltd. (“Vendor”) for the rights to sell 77
villa units (“Target Properties”) planned to be constructed under a project
("Project”) of a developer company (“Developer”). The management estimated
the Project to commence construction in the fourth quarter of 2020, and it was
expected that the handover of the Target Properties would take place in around
the fourth quarter of 2022 or first quarter of 2023. The Group has the rights to
sell the Target Properties for a remaining term of not less than 12 months from
18 August 2020, and may be extended by another 6 months upon expiration.
Further details are set out in note 5(e).

25.

/\\\H/ §}Z (:-E)
(@ FRTEEEER R MEREEE THBEHELM

(b)

©

()

BB A [RCAI IR ER - BRI RCS R =F
—N\F+-A=+—RER LE-—FLERE—
Z-TE+-A=t—H-

EFHAGRIEEEBAHIEARP REBEREE
HEEH AR EELNRREENS - FPAE
I RIE6F o

AEER T NABBRFEA—RAF ([BXG])
3 £+25,000,000% 7T 1E A 7B 1+ 5k 38 Md%zzw) °
RZZ_THRFE AEBECHLBMAHRE
%ﬁ“* REMEE ?‘“FF%Q%(E&WA&M
HE)NBRNIEE(TEAR-T]) - HNEIFFE -
EAR-1EV SR s BRf 81T T IE R B 5T - #
— B ERM R S(C) R (d) °

RZZ_ZTF)\A+N\NB A£EHEAE
Ratchaphruek Global Group Co., Ltd. ([ & 7 |) EX
BERAIEE ([EAR-2]) - AREHEE—HERRQ
B(#EF)EE ((ZEB DBETREERN
TTENESM((BEYE]) - EREMSZE
BRR-_Z_TFENFERARR  BHEZ

%%H%#:;:‘i%@ifé‘i_ﬁ_zi%’*
FELARE - AEBEERE-Z-ZTFN\A

+AR t?;zT\ﬂ RREAMFBFRHE R
Y - WNE W R BEHINEA o S
HARHIES(e) °
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26.

244

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

26. REBRARIMIEE

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2020 are as A\ZEZEF+A=+—HWEAR
follows: BRFBAT -
Place of Issued and Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ paid up share capital/ interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
FEMAL 2RTR EEEaRER BERE/
WEARERE BRI B BERA/EMEX HERABEAIL TEER
Direct Indirect
EE i
Charm Year International Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
EIFBIRERD A KBRS of US$1 each REER
100 REREEIET
LBk
China Khan Limited B.V.IL 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
ZRERAT KBRS of US$1 each REER
100 REREE1FTH
Tk
Natural Perseverance Limited B.V.IL 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
REBRAT RBRLHE of US$T each BEER
100 R EREE1ETH
Lk
Powerled Limited B.V.I. 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
EBERAT HBREUHES of US$1 each REER
100 SRAEIETH
LRk
Power Trump Investments Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
5 of HK$100 REER
100 B i8R
Sheer Victory Limited BV 100 ordinary shares 100% - Investment holding
KBRS of US$1 each REER
100 REREEIET
LRk
Dayshine Global Investments Limited ~ B.V.I. Tordinary share - 100%  Inactive
HBRELES of US$1 each TEER
TRERERIZTA
TRk
Ever Billion Industrial Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$ - 100%  Investment holding
BEEXZERAF N 1BTH L AR REER

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥R 2s IR B BRI EFE AR A A
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26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RMIBRRIMIIZE (8)
Place of Issued and Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ paid up share capital/ interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
HEMAL 2RTR ElEEaREES RER/
WEARERE BRI B BERA/FEMEL HERABEAL TEEY
Direct Indirect
=8; ] i
Link-Asia International Cell Technology Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$ - 100%  Investment holding
Group Limited (Formerly known &5 1B LR E B BELRR
as Idea Perfect Holdings Limited)
REBEFEBREEEERAR
(RIBEEERERLF)
Keenpro Investments Limited B.V.IL Tordinary share - 100%  Investment holding
BRBEABRAA EBRUES of US$1 each REER
1RERAEEIETH
LBk
Link-Asia Medtech Investment Limited  Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$I - 100% Inact\'ve
(Formerly known as Sheer Victory &7 1B TRE B UmER
Company Limited)
ROEBENEEEERA
(BIFESheer Victory Company Limited)
Sino Achieve Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding
REERAR & HK$5,000,000 and trading
5,000,000 7T A0 % A% REZEREES
Space Wisdom Limited B.V.I. Tordinary share of - 100%  Inactive
BMBRLA EREZES US$1 each BmER
1R EREEIETH
LBk
Talent-Asia Holdings Co. Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding and
(Formerly known as Talent-Asia 0 HK$1,000,000 provision of real estate
Real Estate Ho\dings Co. Ltd.) 1,000,000/8 TR & B advisory service and real
AERTERERA estate purchase service
(A1 %ﬁﬂﬁtfﬂéﬁtﬁ BRBERLDA) REZRRRREE
BRBNEE
BERE
Talent-Asia GC Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 51%  Provision of real
ROABERAA N HK$1,000,000 estate advisory service
1,000,000 A LA LR and real estate purchase
service
REEHEDARBEN
FHEEERS
Telefield Holdings Limited BV 410,000 ordinary shares - 100%  Investment holding
EBEZEE of US$1 each RAZK
410,000 R ERAEEIET
RS i)
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246

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RMIBRRIMIIZE (8)
Place of Issued and Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ paid up share capital/ interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
MR/ 2RTR ElEEaREES RER/
WEARERE BRI B BERA/FEMEL HERABEAL TEEY
Direct Indirect
=8; ] Gk
Telefield Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding,
FEHRANA At HK$20,000,000 and electronic manufacturing
non-voting deferred services for
shares of HK$5,000,000 telecommunications,
20,000,000 & LA LB security, car electronics,
%.5,000,000/& 706 home appliances,
EEZRETRH other consumer and
industrial electronic
products
REER - Bl f%ziz ’
/ELE EE?FEDD
HiwE %&I%%%
EmRNETRERE
Telefield Medical Devices Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Trading of personal
hERBESEVERDLR ) HK$1,000 care products
1,000 i @R HAANEBERE
Telefield Universal Limited Hong Kong Ordinary shares of - 100%  Investment holding and
BRKARDA 0 HK$15,600,000 trading of
15,600,000 BT H) & Bk telecommunication
products
REERNEAERE
Telefield NA Inc. USA. Share capital of - 100%  Trading of business
xE US$2,000,000 telephone system
782,000,000 7T HEBEZNES
Well Dragon Electronics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of - 100%  Manufacturing services of
REETERAT EN0 HK$1,000,000 home appliances, other
1,000,000 % T AR consumer and industrial
electronic products
& HMEERIE
EFEMMBERY
Sota Acoustics Limited Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$I - 100%  Sale of audio equipment
HESEERAR 5 1B EER BIRRBREE
Link-Asia International Assisted Hong Kong Ordinary share of HK$ - 100%  Investment holding
Reproductive Technology Group BB 1B TR B BEER
Limited (Formerly known as Wise
State Investment Ltd)
ROBEHEENBEERERAA
(AIBEABREBRAR)
Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited (22 IR B BRI EE AR A
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26. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued) 26. RMIBRRIMIIZE (8)
Place of Issued and Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ paid up share capital/ interest/voting power/
Name of subsidiary establishment registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
BT BETRK EhEEREES RERE/
WEAREHE R 2 BRBA/BAMER HERFEAL TEEE
Direct Indirect
B Gk
BNPESTERAR([EMNFE]) PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacture of
Guangzhou Telefield Limited (“GTL")* S$8,060,000 telecommunications
& 748,060,000 % T and other products
EMREMERNLE
BNHEEFERAT PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Manufacture and sale of
Guangzhou Zhong Sui Limited* F US$1,500,000 consumable electronic
FEE7K1500,000 % T products
HBETEMRMEER
e
BMELBHERERAT PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Inactive
Guangzhou Zhuo Feng Plastics F S$2,000,000 TmER
Co., Limited"* FMEA2,000,000% 7T
EEEEE R ERAF PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Inactive
Huashi Management Consultancy F RMB300,000,000 o
(Shenzhen) Limited* AMERARE
300,000,000 7T
SHEE BN BRAF PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Investment holding
Ding Cheng Investment H RMB200,000,000 KB
(Yangzhou) Limited* AERARE
200,000,0007C
EREEHPHITCEINEBRLE  PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Investment holding
(ArEZERBEER ORI BRAR) + RMB500,000,000 RAZK
Huashi Medical Assistive technology AERARE
(Shenzhen) Co,, Ltd* 500,000,000 7T
(Formerly known as Healthcare
Holdings (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd)
FEREMEESABREA PRC Registered capital of - 100%  Provision of consultancy
Shanghai Fu Mian Management H RMB100,000,000 service
Consultant Limited* AMERARE REZARE
100,000,0007C
* English names for identification purpose.
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20.

27.

248

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

Except for Guoyi, all subsidiaries established in the PRC are
wholly foreign-owned enterprises. Guoyi was disposed of during

the year.

As at 31 December 2020, the bank balances of the Group’s
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately
HK$13,208,000 (2019: HK$45,273,000). Conversion of RMB into
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

26. PHBARKIKE (8)

BREIGSN - FrA R BRI BB R A
BRIEBEELE - BRERFARE -

WNZZ-_TFE+-_A=+—H KEH
B AR B R A B AA R EHE RF R
HR B R ER 1T MY ER 1T 45 82 73 £913,208,000
BEIL(ZZ— NLF 1 452730008 L) °
AR H RN AR BISMNE B IR 5
Bl 5EE - BIERSEEIEHRTERRR

27. PR RRINRE

2020 2019
—z-z5 LIV
HK$°000 HK$ 000
FiBT T

33,402 -
(10,281) -

23,121 -
(12,622) -

Unlisted investments in the PRC: FEIFEEMIRE -
Net assets of associates B N e EEFRE
Impairment losses FEEE

Share of losses of associates LB E N R E 1A

Exchange realignment IE i

10,499 -
1,817 -

12,316 -
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27. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 27. REtENRINEE (8)
Details of the Group’s associates at 31 December 2020 are as AEER_ZE-_ZF+_A=+—HHK
follows: BERRFBOT
Place of Percentage of ownership
incorporation/ interest/voting power/
Name registration Registered capital profit sharing Principal activities
FrERER RER/
£ MR BERNE  EMER BHNAMEED TEEE
HERERBSAEEAR(RE]) PRC RMB31,000,000 49% Consultancy service
Shanghai Zhanju Business Consulting e (not fully paid up) AR
Co., Ltd. (“Zhanju”)* AR 31000,0007T
(REHHR)
PERERBSIRAERAR([HBE]) PRC RMB30,000,000 49% Consultancy service
Shanghai Rongshu Business i (not fully paid up) HHRRE
Consulting Co., Ltd. (“Rongshu”)* AR#30,000,0007T
(RBEHR)
BN 2EI£REERAA([ER])  PRC RMB5,000,000 48% Investment holding
Suzhou Wangquan Venture Capital i (fully paid up) RERK
Co. Ltd. (“Wangquan”)* AR 50000007
(FFEgaR)

*

English names for identification purpose.

On 2 September 2020, Zhanju reduced its registered capital
from RMB200,000,000 to RMB31,000,000.

Wangquan is a substantial equity investment of Zhanju. Pursuant
to a court order on 12 October 2019, Zhanju share of Wangguan’s
equity was frozen until 11 October 2022.

The following table shows, in aggregate, the Group’s share of the
amounts of all individually immaterial associates that are
accounted for using the equity method.

RZEBE_ZTFHLA_H - BEKEZMH
E AR B\ AR 200,000,000 7T HRE A
¥ 31,000,000 7T °

HEAREZIERERE RE_-F
—NE+AT-_BHEERRES  RER
H2zBRERREEEZE_T__F1+A
T—RARIE-

TRIRR AR A ARR 2 P A {513

BEAFEZBERRRAEENENS
FEEE
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27. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (Continued) 27. REEENTRRE (B8)
The following table show information on the associates that are TRINTEAEEMEBEANEEAQ
material to the Group. These associates are accounted for in the AIME R - ZEWE R R A RIERER
consolidated financial statements using the equity method. The B BHRERAR - FTEF R E R
summarised financial information presented is based on the DAL R R BB GRS R B
HKFRS financial statements of the associates. WERABELE -

Zhanju Rongshu

Name & BIE BE

2020 2020
=L Sy ¥ =L 3 5

— ey Sy —

Principal place of business/ ¥ ELiE 2~ PRC/PRC PRC/PRC
country of incorporation AT B HE,H HEHE

Principal activities E Consultancy Consultancy
service ; service

o o R 3% o o AR 3%

% of ownership interests/  ANEEFTHEATAE 49%/49% NA 49%/49% NA
voting rights held R (%), R ERE TiEH TiE A
by the Group

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHBT FHET FHExT FHT
At 31 December: R+=A=+—8:
Non-current assets ERBEE =
Current assets MEVEE 18,753
Current liabilities mEIAE (11,873)
Net assets BESE

Group’s share of net assets 7~ B (5 & &5 E
Exchange realignment PE W%

Group’s share of carrying  ANEEE(FEZR 2
amount of interests BRHEE

Year ended 31 December: BEZ+=-B=+—H

IHEE
Revenue WA
Loss before tax KR EE

Other comprehensive income  E fh 2z

Total comprehensive income 2 Eiz542%8
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28. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FVTOCI

28, RAFER AR 2 W /AR
wE

2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET

Equity securities, at fair value fEARFES - AT E
Listed in Hong Kong REB L™ 13,397
13,397

Analysed as: i N

Current portion BIEAER > 3,789
Non-current portion JEBNERER 5> 9,608
13,397

The fair values of listed securities are based on current bid prices
at the end of the reporting period. All equity investments at
FVTOCI are denominated in HK$.

During the year, fair value changes in respect of the Group’s

equity investments recognised in other comprehensive income
amounted to HK$12,212,000 (2019: HK$9,353,000).

29. INVENTORIES

EHESFZAFEDREREHRZE
TEABME - 28R A FEFTAHEM
2EREHOBERE S LETTAHE ©

FRN- BESAREMEZERREREA
EERBERENATEEDSER
12,212,000 7L (=& — JL4F : 9,353,000
HBIT) °

M

29. 1xE

\

2020 2019
—z-zs LI
HK$°000 HK$ 000
TR T

Raw materials R
Work in progress F M
Finished goods IR
Goods in transit EEE R

33,808 36,163
19,637 15,280
32,373 22,554

6,833 5,930

92,651 79,927
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

30. TRADE RECEIVABLES 30. RIWE SRR
2020 2019
—EBEF —T-hnF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Trade receivables FEUE 2 AR IK 169,224 132,912
Allowance for trade receivables (note 6(c)) FEUL Z 5 BR 28 (A1:+ 6(c)) (3,811) (1,860)
165,413 131,052
The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on credit. AEBHREFTENUEEFANETE
The credit terms generally range from 30 to 120 days. Each EoZEH—MNTI0ERK > FF
customer has a maximum credit limit. For new customers, EEHYAEEREERE IXFP—REA
payment in advance is normally required. The Group seeks to TETFRIE o AR BT 8 18 R Uk [0 e UL
maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables. Overdue FRIB M B B o B B B2 R a0 B
balances are reviewed regularly by the directors. ko
The aging analysis of trade receivables, based on the invoice HEHEHBNEWE SR (N EE)
date, and net of allowance, is as follows: BREROITAT -
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAET
0 to 90 days 0Z 90k 136,286 108,667
91 to 180 days 91E180K 27,616 22,142

181 to 365 days 1812 365K 672 133
Over 365 days 365 KA 839 110

165,413 131,052

252 Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited 825 BIFX B BRI R EE B AR A 7



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

30. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Reconciliation of allowance for trade receivables:

30. EBRBSEH(E)
FEE 5B BB HIRBII0 T

2020 2019
—EBCEF —T-hF
HK$’000 HK$'000
F& T FET
At the beginning of year REH 1,860 444
Impairment losses for the year FEREERE 2,099 1,550
Bad debts written off HisE R (132) -
Reversal of allowance for bad debts AR RO (16) -
Disposal of a subsidiary HE—MEHEBAR - (134)
At the end of year RER 1,860

The individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers
that were in financial difficulties or were in default in payments
and the receivables are not expected to be recovered.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

18 5311 6% 1 FEE LA 28 55 P K 2 T Wl 7 705 TR 8
S RERNTR 2 EF LBHEXKE
FEW KRB RS -

AEEEKE SRR EREEERNAT
EHEEHE -

2020 2019

i T T

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET FET

United States dollars (“USD”) ES(E D) 160,051 127,490
HK$ BT - 29
RMB AR 5,362 3,533
Total b 165,413 131,052
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B mRM R

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

31, PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

3. FENFIE - RE MHEHMEUGKIA

2020
S8

Note
Ktat

HK$°000
Fi#

Prepayment for marketing and
distribution of real estate
projects consulting services

Prepaid consultancy fees

Prepayment for provision of
comprehensive consultancy
services in biomedical field

Prepayment of service fee

Prepayment of technical
support services

Other prepayments

Other receivables — refundable
deposit paid for services

Other receivables — refundable
deposit paid for procurement

Other receivables — refundable
deposit paid for services

Other receivables — refundable
deposit paid for conference
services

Other receivables

Deposit for acquisition of
exclusive agency right (EAR-1)

PSR B & 86 & 0 sH R
BR#% 2 FEFRIA

BN &
hEft Y BRI R E R
BR#% 2z FE 5RIA

BB E
BT SR R #% 2 TR 30R

H B FIR

Ho At FEUFR IR — BLARTS S
ZARIER] &

HAtb U TIR — BEEREE A
ZARER] &

Ho At FEURIR — BEARTES A
ZARIER] &

HAb EUFIR — Bl &R IR
X2 RERT &

Hofth FE UL IR
B R IR (EAR-D Z
BrE

®

(i

(i)

(iv)

W)

(vi)

(viD)

(viiD)

()

Purchase deposits REEe
Rental deposits Hekse
Other deposits Hhize
Analysis: DE
Current portion BVEAER 75
Non-current portion JERNEREL o

254  Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥z 25 BIFR B BRI R EE B AR A 7

2019
—T-hnF
HK$'000
FAET

23,250
5,478

11,386
2,439

1,500

8,064
25,000
1,841

8,659
2,155

89,772

81,113
8,659

89,772



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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EhELE EdE:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

31.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes:

@

(in

(i)

@)

)

On 12 August 2019, the Company engaged a consulting company to prepare
written research report on Singapore real estate market, advisory on positioning
and distribution of real estate projects, and to help establish downstream sales
distribution channels. The consulting service fee of HK$27,000,000 was paid
upfront in August 2019. The Company recognised service fee expense based on
completion of work approved by the Company, and the consulting company
rendered all contracted services prior to the date of these financial statements.

On 4 August 2020, a wholly owned PRC subsidiary of the Group engaged a
consulting company to provide comprehensive consultancy services in the
biomedical field, including but not limited to project recommendations, industry
research preparation, pre-launch project promotion, legal due diligence, and
assistance in drafting agreements. An advanced payment of RMB3,000,000
inclusive of VAT (equivalent to approximately HK$3,576,000) was paid in 2020.
The Group recognised service fee expense based on completion of work
approved by the Group. As at 31 December 2020, the consulting company has
not yet commenced providing services.

During April 2020, the Group has entered into two service contracts with a
company (“Company R”) for Company R’s provision of services to assist the
Group to obtain exclusive sales rights of certain properties in 2 Asian countries.
The total prepaid service fees under these two service contracts were
HK$9,500,000 as at end of reporting period.

On 18 October 2019, a PRC subsidiary of the Group engaged a service provider
to provide technical support for maintenance of the Group’s website and
information system, produce promotional videos and publish them through new
social media, and provide customers diversion service. The contract service fee
was RMB20,000,000 inclusive of VAT (equivalent to approximately
HK$22,350,000), and an advanced payment of RMB14,400,000 inclusive of VAT
(equivalent to approximately HK$16,092,000) was made on October 2019. The
balance of contract service fee was paid in accordance with the agreed payment
stages over FY2020. The Group recognised service fees expense based on
completion of work approved by the Group, and the service provider has
rendered all contracted services prior to the date of these financial statements.

On 23 July 2019, the Company signed a Memorandum of Understanding with a
service company to obtain exclusive agency right for certain properties in
Manila, Philippines. The Company paid a deposit of HK$1,500,000 on 25 July
2019. Such amount will be refundable if they fail to enter into a formal
cooperation agreement. Up to the date of these financial statements, no formal
cooperation agreement has been entered into, and the management provided
an allowance of HK$1,500,000 for this deposit.

31.

B
(8&)

Wit -

0]

(i)

(iii)

@v)

W)

KIE - 12 N H A R WROR

—T-AENATZR  ARREE-EHEAQ
AREFINEEHETSARREE - KibAR
HEEB TG - BT T ES L
B ARABR T —NAFEN AR AHAR
7 # 27,000,000 7T ° AR A AR TEM TK
KBS RERRSEL L - MZARRRER
ZEW K B AT AT L R -

—ECTFENANA  ARES-RHPBEZER
BAREE-—HM@#AXRRREBEREN S

EAHARTY - REETRRIERHERE  ITEHE
% HERBAEE  AERBAT RGN

i o AARER - ZE_ZFERIIMTARE
3,000,000 7T (& EH) (FHE R 43,576,000
To) o ANEERE T RN TR K BRI R IR R

BBEIH R-ZZ-TF+-A=+—8 &#&
AT HARFIR IR IR
RZZZZFNA AEEBE-HAF(RA

A ETLMHRIEEH - BRARIREART - U
BB AREBEEA R 2EEMNERNE TOED
BRIFEE - RMEHR - ZMERBELET
H)TE A AR 75 £ 4258 5 9,500,000 B 7T ©

—NE+A+HN\B - NEBK— B EHE
NAEE—ZRGHER - AREENMLRIE
BEFELRERIT TR - SHES ERETRGB
AL AR RS R - AR IR BB RS AR - &4
RTS8 2 B AR 20,000,000 7T (B I1LER) (8%
7 #922350,0008 L) - ARRRZZE—NEF+
AFEM ARE14,400,000 T (B1BEF) FHER
#716,092,0007%7T) « FHENIRBEEE R =
—THFERBHENFER I - REEBET
ER TR KR IE R ER RIS B L - W AR
R RZSUBHREBHMARENEHTR
f%o

ZZ-hELA-+=A AXFE-ERER
RIFRERMBETE  URBUIRIFEER RN
ETWENBRNIEE - XAARR T NEFL
A=+ HBE44£1500,0008 7T © KL%
RIERXAEHZ - MERER TRE - BEEZF
BEHmMEAE - MR IEREERE - BEE
B AZ SRS HER#E1500,000 87T ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

31.

256

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

Notes: (Continued)

i)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ op B[R &

On 25 March 2020, the Group appointed a procurement agent for the trading of
medical products or equipment, and provision of related logistics services. An
advanced payment of HK$4,800,000 was paid on March 2020 to secure supply
of goods. The advanced payment will be refundable when no purchase order
was placed by the Group before 31 December 2021. Up to the date of these
financial statements, the Group has not yet placed any purchase order with the
procurement agent, and the management provided an allowance of
HK$1,800,000 for this advanced fund.

On 3 March 2019, the Group signed a service agreement with a service company
for provision of service in assisting the Group to become exclusive sales agent
for certain properties in Bangkok, Thailand. An advanced payment of
HK$18,000,000 was made on March 2020. The service terms lasted for 6
months effective from the date of service agreement. The advanced payment
will be refundable if the service company fails to facilitate the Group to become
the exclusive sales agency of the target project upon expiry or termination of
service terms. As at 31 December 2020, the management provided an allowance
of HK$14,600,000 for this advanced fund.

On 21 January 2020, the Group engaged a service company to organise 2
conferences in Beijing and Shanghai during February 2020 to March 2020. An
advanced payment of RMB4,500,000 inclusive of VAT (equivalent to
approximately HK$5,310,000) was made on January 2020. The conferences
were not successfully held due to COVID-19 pandemic, and the Group signed 2
supplemental agreements on 30 June 2020 and 24 February 2021 to extend the
service period to 31 December 2021.

On 24 March 2021, a termination agreement was signed and the advance
payment of RMB4,500,000 was repaid in full to the Group.

The Group paid HK$25 million to a company (“BXG”) in FY2019 as prepayment.
In FY2020, the Group has reclassified that prepayment as intangible assets,
which represents exclusive agency rights (“EAR-1") for certain number of
apartments (both furnished and without decoration). Due to the effect of the
pandemic, the terms of the EAR-1 were extended and revised after the reporting
period (note 25(c)).

31.

SEMBREEERA

B
(8&)

KIE - 12 N H A R WROR

Hfat - (&)

i

(vii)

(viii)

@)

E/*\:gfzi AZ+HB  AEEGRERER
BEE S RREERYRREEE -RRER
EE AEBMER T T F = A7E114,800,000
BITUEREMHE - WAEER_T=_—F
TZA=T—HAIE T ERER E - AlZER
MRIBRETRE BEZSUHREAL &%
B AR MR B IR R RERT 8  mER
[BEBZEIENRIAFT IR 1,800,000 8 7T

—NFZAZ=R - NEEFRERE T
REERARUNFEREANE TYENBRHE
RIEME—RRB AR REHE - AEED
W ZZ T = A3E1418,000,000 7T o RIFHA
BB RS HE B MRER  AH6EA - %R
TR RIARBE RS HIIR JE A Sk A% LE AT (R PR AR 52
KR BEEEMBREERE - AIRNFREST
RE -M-T-TFT-A=1t—R EEECD
W% E TR FORFHE B 14,600,000 87T ©

RZZZZTF-A=-+—H AEEZE—RHR
BARR_E_TF_RAE-_T-_TF=AnNi
RREBEB2I5EE - ARRER T _ZF
— ATER AR# 4,500,000 7 (21 ER) (BE
R #5,310,00047T) ° ZCOVID-19ZBEFE &
EARBERINERN  AEER-_T-TFRA=1
AT —F-A=+MBEF 2D
FOBBRBHEEE-_T-_—F+-A=+—
E|u

RZB-—F=ZA-+HA - EHHEITRLER
# - TR ERIE AR 4,500,000 T B ABEGR B A
EYE

REER TN FR—MAE([BXG])ZfF
25,000,000 TAERIETHRIE - RZT T
FAEBEESZERNREET D EABLE
E W ZEBRNREAETAS(HRMETEE
E)NBERRER(BRREE-1]) - ZEBEY
2 BRAEEOGETNREREELTR &S
=1 (M5 25(0)) ©



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

32. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES

The Group has engaged external independent valuers to assist
the management to assess the expect credit loss (“ECL”) rates at
end of reporting period.

H-g-es
t=B=t-A +=B=t-A
2reth

Name Terms of loan
e/ 48 LELE
Independent third party A Unsecured, repayable on (i)
BUE=RA 12 September 2020 and
bears interest of 12% p.a.
EEA ER-Z-ZFAR+ZA
ERREFHE%:E
Company B Unsecured, repayable on (il)
7B 31 December 2020 and
bears interest of 10% p.a. (‘Loan Y")
®ER ER-E-TESTCR
= T-REEREENZI0%HE
(T&zyl)
Independent third party C~ Unsecured, repayable on (iif)
BUE=HC 21 February 2021 and
bears interest of 5% p.a. (‘Loan Z")
BER ER-Z--F-AC+-R
BERRER= %2 ([ERZ))
Individual D Unsecured, repayable on (iv)
FAD 28 February 2021 and
bears interest of 8% p.a. (“Loan X")
EER AN -E--E-F-+)\B
BERRERIZ 8% 2 ([BRX))
Individual E Unsecured, repayable on (v)
AR 5 Apri 2019 and
bears interest of 12% p.a.
&R ERZZ-NERARA
ERRIEENRDR%:E
Total @t
Current portion ENERER
Non-current portion FENEHS

Principal Accrued
balance at interest as at
31 December

31 December
2020 2020
R=B=%%

b gl

HK$'000 HK$'000
T Tin

57,000

57,000

57,000

A E Al A L E K

REB D INEB I EER A BB EIRE
AR IR E RN RREEER (RS
FEEBR X -

Balance at

Cumulative 31 December

ECL rate allowance Total 2019
R=B-NE

BHEE TZA=t-A
K EE @t &8
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

% 47 47 A7

= = = 21,139

(3,063)

21.52% (5,980) 21,814

(14,692)

(23,735) 38,695

(23,735) 38,695

(23,735) 38,695
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32.

258

LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued)

Notes:

O]

@D

(i)

v

)

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ op B[R &

Lifetime ECL is recognised as the loan was deemed default and considered
credit-impaired.

Loan Y was originally due on 30 June 2020, but Company B had failed to repaid
the principal and interest on that day. On 20 July 2020, Company B rescheduled
payment by monthly instalments and the last payment date would be 31
December 2020 with all other terms remained unchanged. Up to the date of this
report, a total amount of HK$14.88 million was recovered. Lifetime ECL is
recognised as the loan was deemed default and considered credit-impaired.

Loan Z was originally due on 21 February 2021, but subsequent to year end,
Independent third party C had failed to repaid the principal and interest on that
day. On 11 March 2021, Independent Third Party C rescheduled payment by
monthly instalments and the last payment date would be 30 June 2021, with
interest calculated at 10% p.a. for the extended period, and was secured by
personal guarantee given by the sole director and sole shareholder of
Independent Third Party C. Lifetime ECL is recognised as credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition.

Loan X was originally due on 30 June 2020, and Individual D had failed to repay
the principal and interest on that day. On 30 June 2020, Individual D
rescheduled payment by monthly instalments and the last payment date would
be 28 February 2021 with all other terms remain unchanged. Up to the reporting
date, Individual D had not made any repayment. The Group temporarily lost
contact with Individual D between January 2021 to March 2021. A legal letter of
repayment was served to Individual D contact address on 9 March 2021. Lifetime
ECL is recognised as the loan was deemed default and considered credit-
impaired. On 2 April 2021, the Group signed a repayment agreement with
individual D to agree the loan amount to be settled in full on 30 April 2021.

Lifetime ECL is recognised as the loan was deemed default and considered
credit-impaired.

32. MEMALTERGE)

0]

@i

(iii)

@iv)

()

SEMBREEERA

HRNZEERERIEEORERBEERE - &
ERZHRHEEESE -

BERYRERZZ_ZFA=THIH HEQ

AIBRAENZBERARSRAE - RZT-FF
+tAZ+B  ARIBEMHE TRADBHERN
Kk - B RE-ENROEHER-Z-%
FTZRA=+—H A EMGERERTE -

EARHEEH - Uk [E114,880,000 BT © R X
El-¢& %&@J’Eﬁﬁﬁ&?ﬁ RREERE  MEtEE
HrEdEERE -

BRZRER-T-—F-A=-+—B5H H#
AEEREBUE=FH CRERZAEERS R
FE -RZTZ—F=A+—H BIFE=HC
BRI TIRADBHERNREER  Hh5E—
ENFNEPEA-Z-_—FRA=TH TE
HARIR B E10% T EF BB 58 =75 CRE
—ERZRE-RRBHAOEABRER - ARE
BRRE VR EREREELN  WERSHES
EE®IE -

ERXRER-_Z-_ZFA=THIH HE
ADKRBERZBEEARNEKFE - RZT_FF
NA=TH  EAADEHMRITTIZAHE
ik - HPRiE - SNRNOAHER -
FZAZHN\E - EEMIERESTE - BE
WEBE - EADMKREEEMKIE - REER
SR -AZE-T - —F= AHFESEEAD
ERRELE - ARBR _Z-_—F=ANAMA
fELA D 8O BSE £ 35 B FRAR AT - (ARNREE
FERIEBPRERBEERE - WEHR2HE
HMEEEE R-Z-_—FHA-H AEEH
EADEERBZE HER T =—FMA
ST HESEEERSHE -

HRNZEEFERIERNORERBEERE - &
REMAHEEESE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

32. LOANS TO OTHER PARTIES (Continued) 32. MEMATZERE)
Principal Accrued
halance at interest as at Balance at
31 December 31 December Cumulative 31 December
Name Terms of loan 2019 2019 ECLrate allowance Total 2018
RZF-NE  RZE-N%E ‘ RZE-N\E
TZA=t-B +ZR=t-H BHEE T-A=1-H
2,/ %% B LAeEH IS Bl ZitBfh @i LEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 % HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAR FEL % TAR TAR TAR
Independent third party A Unsecured, repayable on (i) 45,000 9,750 61.39% (33,611) 21,139 44797
BUE=RA 12 September 2020 and
bears interest of 12% p.a.
EEA ERZE-SENATCA
ERREFHNER%:E
Individual E Unsecured, repayable on (il) 27,000 3,590 87.00% (26,614) 3976 27,982
EAE 5 April 2019 and
bears interest of 12% p.a.
EFF BER-T-NENARA
BRREEFRDES
Independent third party C~ Unsecured, repayable on (iif) 26,000 473 1.00% (264) 26,209 -
BUE=HC 20 February 2021 and
bears interest of 5% p.a.
EEA ERZZ--F5ZF=1A
BRRRFNZ%HE
Employees Unsecured, repayable on demand (iv) - - - - - 2,649
(3 and interest free
EER REREERSE
Total st 98,000 13813 (60,489) 51,324 75,428
Current portion AEER 72,000 13,340 (60,225) 25,115 30,631
Non-current portion FHES 26,000 473 (264) 26,209 44797
98,000 13,813 (60,489) 51,324 75,428
0) Lifetime ECL is recognised as the loan was deemed default and considered @ HRZEERRE BB RERAEERE - &
credit-impaired (2018: Lifetime ECL is recognised as credit risk has increased HREHBEHEESE(ZZ—)/\F: AR EE
significantly since initial recognition). [EBE B VA TR AR N - R 2 EATEER(E
EEE) -
(i) Lifetime ECL is recognised as the loan was default and considered credit- (i) ARZEEFWRIERORERBEERE - &
impaired. HREHEHEERS -
(i)~ 12-month ECL is recognised as there was no significant change in credit risk i) ANMEERR B VIR ME KBS - B
from initial recognition. HR12EAEEERE -
(iv)  ECL for employees’ loans are considered minimal. (v) [EEERNEHEEBEFRBBH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

33. BANK AND CASH BALANCES 33, SRTTMIR @ 46k
2020 2019
—EBEF —T-hnF
HK$’000 HK$000
FET FET
Cash on hand EFEE 70 105
Cash in transit F e b A 7 15 15
Fixed deposits THITER 18,000 85,250
Cash at bank RITIRE 149,572 155,961
Cash and cash equivalents in the RizeRERERNREE X
consolidated statement of cash flows NEZEBEY 167,657 241,331
Cash in margin account of brokerage firms R4 TIREFEEF 2T S - 33
167,657 241,364
The bank and cash balances of the Group are denominated in the AEBRITRIBEERTIEAT EEET
following currencies: & :
2020 2019
— 7 — qE :%—j‘LﬂE
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
usD ETT 81,593 162,138
HK$ BT 72,474 24,598
RMB AR 13,252 45,348
Euro (“EUR”) ot (& o)) 291 -
Singapore dollars gt - 9,279
Others Hih 47 1
167,657 241,364
As at 31 December 2020, the bank balances of the Group’s AR -ETF+_RA=+—8 ~&EE
subsidiaries in the PRC denominated in RMB and deposited with Bh BB AT A REHERFRR
banks in the PRC were amounted to approximately F B AR 1T BV SR 17 45 84 /3 £913,208,000
HK$13,208,000 (2019: HK$45,273,000). Conversion of RMB into BIL(ZZE— N5 452730008 7T ) °
foreign currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange AR M B NS B & rh B N E B IR (IE
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and B} 45T - EME RNETIERTEIRE -

Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

34. TRADE PAYABLES

The aging analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, is as

34, EBINESER

AEBEREZAMAENENE SRR
RERER DT T

2020 2019
—z-=z5 L IVE
HK$’000 HK$000
FiBT SR

follows:

0 to 90 days 0F 90X
91 to 180 days 91E180K
181 to 365 days 1812 365K
Over 365 days 365 KA

80,690 46,675
6,289 6,601
59 234

315 912

87,353 54,422

The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

AEEE A E B R REEERAT
W EHE

2020 2019
e el T F

HK$°000 HK$'000

TEx AT

usD £7T 48,650 22,986
HK$ BT 30,940 25,500
RMB ARE 7,763 5,827
EUR BT = 109
Total &t 54,422
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

35. ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 35 FEREAKHAMENFIE
2020 2019
—ECERF —ZE-NF
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAETT
Accrued salaries TEIRE & 128,870 111,892
Accrued expenses TEIER 38,164 31,770
Accrued borrowing interests TEIRBEER S 43 6,144
Customer deposits EFR&e 15,197 21,833
Other payables H b A FIE 4,992 7,554
187,266 179,193
36. LEASE LIABILITIES 36.
Minimum lease Present value of
payments minimum lease payments
RIEEERE REEEREZRE

2020 2019 2020 2019
e il T T gl T NF
HK$’000 HK$ 000 HK$°000 HK$ 000
FET FETT FET FATT

Within one year —FR 21,800 20,677

In the second to fifth years, F_EZXFHE
inclusive (BIEEEMF) 27,956 24,345
After five years HELA 11,225 6,577

60,981 70,480 51,599
Less: Future finance o RIREIE A
charges (9,382) (10,875) B4 G ELE
Present value of HEETZIRE
lease obligations 51,599 59,605 51,599

Less: Amount due for W12 8 A AR HA
settlement within FERTSRIE
12 months (Rn#aE
(shown under HI7R)
current liabilities) (20,677) (26,359)

Amount due for settlement 1218 B 14 Z| 8B pE 1

after 12 months B 30,922

All finance lease payables are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. AN ERESUETTE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

37. BORROWINGS

Loan from an independent REBIBE=ZHCHER
third-party G (note (i) (Kia @)

Loan from an independent REBULE=FFNER
third-party F (note (i) (K ain)

Bank loan (note (iii) TE R (M i)

Notes:

@

(i

The amount represents loan from an independent third party, which is non-
interest bearing, unsecured and repayable on demand. As at 31 December 2019,
independent third-party G was a related company of the Group.

The amount represents loan from an independent third party, which bears
interest at 12% p.a., secured by charges over the shares of the Company’s
subsidiaries (China Khan Limited and Telefield Holdings Limited).

On 21 October 2020, the Company has been served a writ of summons issued by
the Court of First Instance of the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region by the lender as the Plaintiff against the Company as the
Defendant. The Plaintiff claims against the Company for a sum of
HK$20,000,000, being the loan principal under a facility agreement, plus
interest and costs (the “Legal Proceedings”).

On 24 March 2020, the Company has entered into a settlement agreement in
respect of the Legal Proceeding, pursuant to which, amongst others, to settle
the full loan amount and cumulative interest payable (total of HK$26,696,000)
by way of assignment of the rights of two loans due to the Company, namely,
the loan to independent third party A and individual E (set out in note 32) and
cumulative interest receivables (total of HK$25,824,000), and the Plaintiff has
unconditionally and irrevocably agreed in writing to waive its right to claim
again the Company. As a result, the Company recognised HK$872,000 in profit
or loss.

At 31 December 2019, the aforementioned subsidiaries held non-current assets
of HK$59,577,000 and current assets of HK$356,367,000. At 31 December 2019,
the accrued interest of HK$6,144,000 is included in accrued borrowing interest
as set out in note 35.

(i)

2020 2019
—z-%; LIV
HK$°000 HK$000
FBR T
558

20,000

20,558

ZEBRRARE—BBILE=TNER - BEES
EIERRRERERNER - R _F-F+=
A=1—R BYE=7CARKENEBAR

ZEBEARE BB E=FMER  ZERIE
FERR2%:HE - BARRNEBRE(EBER
A7)} Telefield Holdings Limited) &9 % 7 1 50 &
R e

REZBZFFEHAZ+—R - ARRKEIHEE
FRTRESEERFEREEEHAER - 5K
AMERRERAAR AR EREFAD - RER
ARA R AR A 20,000,000 7T - BIRELE 3%
ETHERAE  SMHERKA(EEF
BN

RZZE-TF=A-+WMA  KARREEFAR
TEFF AT SLANER ook - R UL (HLAR B48) AR ™
BRENARAER(AETBLE=HARMAA
ERE R (BN M E32) REW Rt 8 (AR
25,824,000/ 7)) EFIM A N EER ﬁﬁ‘ﬁz"
R EN Rt FIE (& 2266960008 7T) -
%LA%EREWMM#&TTE&%MHEb’&lﬁﬁﬁ
AABREORER - At - AARNIBHETER
872,000 87T °

—hWE+=A=+—8  LEKBARE
B R B L ES577,00008 T R R B B BE
356,367,000 - R-E—NFE+-A=+—
A - FEETF 26,144,000 8 T aT A M E 35 BT LAY
TBIRIEEFIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ=ZT-TF+-A=+—HBILFE

37. BORROWINGS (Continued) 37. @8 (#)

Notes: (Continued) Biat - (48)

(i) During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Group obtained mortgage loan (i) BE-ZT-TF+-_A=1+—HLFE 58
amounted to HK$17,000,000 (the “First Loan”) granted by Lei Shing Hong EFETEEBRA TF%}R%E?’EW 000,000
Credit Limited. The First Loan was drawn on 18 February 2020. The First Loan is B #E—BER]) - E—FEREN=Z=F
secured by the Group’s investment properties (note 22) with a carrying amount FZA+N\BRE - FE— %ﬁ KA B AR E &
of HK$30,000,000 and corporate guarantee executed by the Company. The %84 30,000,000 7% 70 89 3% & ¥ 2 (T 5 22) e AR
First Mortgage was interest bearing at 11% and repayable on or before February AN A A FIERIEE - E—FRBIRN%AT
2021. B EARZEZ—FARZAIEE -
On 7 July 2020, the Group obtained a new banking facility of HK$18,000,000 R-ZZTE-TELA+A AEBMEFHERT(F
(“New Loan”) from Bank of China (Hong Kong) Limited to refinance the First ) AR A F1518,000,000 8 TTH H IR1TE
Loan. Part of the advance of the New Loan is used to repay the principal amount (THER])  RE-—FZEXHERE - HERNI
of the First Mortgage and the cumulative interest payable, in total of APRLSEANEES —SRBNASRENZ
HK$17,159,000. FHFLE - H5H17,159,000 7T ©
As a result of the refinancing, the effective interest rate of the loan changed HRERE  BEREEFERHANE5H275% 5
from 11% to 2.75% and the maturity date was extended to on or before August HRAEEE T -_—F)\ALZAl
2021.

Certain borrowings are arranged at fixed interest rates or non- A TEERETEFET BN T A

interest bearing thus expose the Group to fair value interest rate AR SEEREBRAFENERR - f‘??ﬁ

risk. Except for the loans from related companies which are NEIERAARESTEIN - HWEFY

denominated in RMB, other loans are denominated in HK$. The LABTTEHE - EERFAEER T =

directors estimate the fair value of the Group’s borrowings at 31 ZERZZE-NFF+A=1+—HNE

December 2020 and 2019 approximate to their carrying ENATEEEREERS

amounts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

38. PRODUCT WARRANTY PROVISIONS 38. EmRARE

The movement in the Group’s product warranty provisions are AEBERRBBEEEHSTOT
analysed as follows:

2020 2019
N e T \F
HK$°000 HK$000
FET FHET
At 1 January w—A—H 2,059 2,498
Provisions used [N (2,059) (2,498)
Additional provisions REONEEAE 4,611 2,059
At 31 December Rt+-A=+—8 4,611 2,059
The Group has committed to repurchase its products from or EETHHEEATAEREPWERE
offer replacement of its products to certain distributors when B AEEABRZESHEBELRESR
these distributors receive returned goods from unsatisfied NERER ZBEERRABBEREES
ultimate consumers. Such kind of provision for product BRREKTHATLRER  WHTH
warranties are recognised based on past experience of level of FHRAE(WEA) -
repairs and returns, discounted to their present value as
appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

39.

266

DEFERRED TAX 39. EERIE
Accelerated License
tax rights Land and
depreciation payable buildings Others Total
MEBENE HIERELSR tiREFR Hitr Fohy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FAL FHL FAL FAL
At 1 January 2019, 31 December 2019 R —ZE—h&E—A—RH -
and 1 January 2020 —E-hE+-A=1t—8
k—Z-FF—-H—H - 866 - 1,072 1,938
Charge to profit or loss for the year BBz AER
— origination and reversal of -BRERELRED
temporary differences - (866) - (1,072) (1,938)

At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-FTFE+-_A=+—H - - - - -

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
consolidated statement of financial position purposes:

AT RIS B ISR R IR B IR 45
BT

Deferred tax assets FERIEEE
Deferred tax liabilities BEFRIEEE

2020 2019
il = F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TAT

1,938

1,938

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax
losses of approximately HK$234.4 million (2019: HK$11.1 million)
available for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset
in relation to unused tax losses has been recognised due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. Included in
unrecognised tax losses are losses of approximately HK$1.5
million (2019: HK$0.2 million) that will expire within 5 years.
Other tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited BB EIER 2 Em B R BB R A

RBER AEEBESRDARES
B %) 5234,400,0008 L (=T — L4 :
11,100,000/ 7T) » A] AREHARICEF)
R PA 7R B TBRE R 2R I SRR+ B 4 1
REAAPABEEBENECHESR
Eo AERTEBERERLESNAFTANRE
W EES 18 %) 51,500,000 0 (T — A,
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

40. SHARE CAPITAL

Authorised: EE
Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each BREE2BTLER

(31 December 2019: HK$0.001 each)

(ZB-NE+ZA=t-8:

HREE000ET)

40.

2020
b St 33
Number of
shares

K&

At the beginning and the end of the year ~ REFIRER 1,500,000,000,000
Share consolidation (note (b)) RIAEH (B b)) (1,425,000,000,000)
At the end of the year REXR 75,000,000,000
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR:

Ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each SREE0.02B LR

(31 December 2019: HK$0.001 each)

(CE-NF+-A=1-8:

EREE0.001ETT)

At the beginning of the year RER 5,945,311,400

Issuance of placing shares (note (a)) BIRERD (Wit @) 1,189,060,000

Share consolidation (note (b)) R & (K w) (6,777,652,830)

Issuance of consideration shares (note (¢))  E1TRERM (HE () 71,240,000

427,958,570

Notes: B -

(a) On 19 February 2020, an aggregate of 1,189,060,000 shares of the Company a)
with a nominal value of HK$0.001 each has been substantially placed at
HK$0.035 per shares. The net proceeds from the placed shares (after deduction
of commission and other expenses of the placing) amounted to approximately
HK$41,513,000.

(b) On 29 May 2020, the Company implemented a share consolidation on the basis (b)
that every 20 issued and unissued ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each to be
consolidated into 1 consolidated share of HK$0.02 each.

©) On 28 July 2020, the Group entered into a transfer agreement with the Vendor ©)

to acquire EAR-2 (note 25(d)) at a consideration of HK$27,000,000 (the
“Consideration”), satisfied by allotment and issuance of 71,240,000
consideration shares to the vendor at issue price of HK$0.02 each. The fair value
of the shares of the Company at the date of agreement is HK$0.379 per share
and amounted to approximately HK$27,000,000, of which HK$1,425,000 and
HK$25,575,000 was credited to the Company’s share capital and share premium
accounts, respectively.

RN
2019
“IT-NF
Number of

Amount shares Amount

8 e &

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET TAT

1,500,000 1,500,000,000,000 1,500,000

1,500,000 1,500,000,000,000 1,500,000

5,945,311,400 5,945

5,945,311,400 5,945
RZZZFTF=A+hB - 4&31189,060,000 &EFRE

fB0.0018 TTH AR B 12 B AR 0.035 78 T A B AR AR T
Bl o Bl &SRR 1D BTSSRI F A8 (bR H AL & ¥R (D /9
e REMFSZ1%) 494 41,513,000 & T ©

REZZZZTFRA-+TNE - ARFRE20REREE
0.001BTLE BAT RARBITE BIXA 0T RIREREE0.02
BITARDNELEE RN A G

AT ZEFLAZ+N\B . AEBEETHFINER
W WEBRREE-2(M F25) R1EA
27,000,000 7T ([R{E]) - #REITEER0.02BTME
75 B8 & 847 71,240,000 R BAR D X AF » A AR AR
R AR AFEEATROIIGET  ENA
27,000,000 7T E 11,425,000 % 7T & 25,575,000 % 7T
B9 RIFT AR R AR A R 5% B R o
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40.

268

SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to
maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to risk. The
Group manages the capital structure and makes adjustments to
it in the light of changes in economic conditions and the risk
characteristics of the underlying assets. In e capital structure, the
Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new shares,
buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing debts or sell
assets to reduce debts.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
adjusted capital. Total debt comprises borrowings (except for
bank overdrafts). Adjusted capital comprises all components of
equity (i.e. share capital, retained profits/accumulated losses and
other reserves) except for non-controlling interests.

During 2020, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from
2019, was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at
reasonable level. The debt-to-adjusted capital ratios at 31
December 2020 and at 31 December 2019 were as follows:

40. A (48)

AEBEEREANBEREHELAEEDN
%Za%“%ﬁ%j] WiB@ER(cEERER
RS RIRREREAOR - AEEE
%Bu,\t FEIWmAE -

AEEZARLIEETEASER - AK
B A B AR B ) M ARRE B E R R
BRUEEEANEBLELFE - ﬁé
REEBME - ARBE A ABRERA
BT BEKD  E5HE BE
BABRIHEEERE -

AEERBEGHEHBEN L RER
B - R RBEFBRALRHEE
AHAE - REGEREEE(RITEXRK
5N o RFEBEARBIETA #ERR D (A
BeA - REEM,RATHEE R E M)
(FEfERAEERRR D) ©

R-F_TF AREZRBE_TF
—hilﬁﬁ@b F%Hﬂfi*’zﬁ,@ﬁﬁ%éﬁ
RERGFNEEKF R-_FB_FTF

T-A=+t—RBARk=-F— ﬂ¢+:ﬂ
=T BENEBHERRERLRMT

Total debt BB
Adjusted capital KRB A

Debt-to-adjusted capital ratio B TR E AN =

2020 2019
el T F
HK$°000 HK$'000
TBx AT
18,595 20,558
295,462 411,013
6.3% 5.0%

The only externally imposed capital requirement for the Group
to maintain its listing status on the Main Board of Stock
Exchange is that it has to have a public float of at least 25% of
the shares. Based on the information that is publicly available to
the Group and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Group
has maintained sufficient public float throughout the year ended
31 December 2020 as required under the Listing Rules of the
Stock Exchange.
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

41, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 41, ANATZ BN K R iE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(a) Statement of financial position of the Company @ ARARZFBRRER
2020 2019
i T T
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
Bt FET FET
ASSETS gE
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment % - [BE R EE 6,686
Right-of-use assets FREEE 31,116
Investments in subsidiaries KB R AR E 26 27,854
Equity investments at FVTOCI A FEAEMEE S
MRS & 9,607
75,263
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries  FEUTE A B FRIE 41(c) 177,593 121,896
Amount due from a director e —REEFIE 600 -
Prepayments, deposits, other TERFRIE ~ e - AU
receivables and other assets IR EME E 9,097 35,870
Loans to other parties mEAM A TRENER 38,695 26,209
Equity investments at FVTOCI 2 A FE AEMEE
MR IS & - 3,789
Bank and cash balances RTINS EHR 1,372 53,856
Total current assets REBEEHAE 227,357 241,620
Total assets EEHAE 266,674 316,883
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41, STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 4. ARB2WBRRAER R EREE S
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
(a) Statement of financial position of the Company (Continued) @ AREZEHBARRE(E)
2020 2019
—EZEF —E-NF
Note HK$°000 HK$'000
KtaE F&T FHT
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES EEkEE
Equity xR

Equity attributable to owners KARVHEE AEGER
of the Company

Share capital f& A 8,559 5,945
Reserves s 41(b) 225,533 243,318
Total equity EREE 234,092 249,263
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 9,144
Total non-current liabilities ERBEERAE 9,144
Current liabilities REBAE
Accruals and other payables TEIRE A M E MBI RIR 17,535
Lease liabilities HEBE 20,940
Amounts due to subsidiaries JER B R B FUA 41(c) 1
Borrowings B 20,000
Total current liabilities FREBEEAE 32,582 58,476
Total equity and liabilities EnhkaEHE 266,674 316,883
Approved by the Board of Directors on and are signed on sxelN _E-_—FNWAE+-_A#t
12 April 2021 its behalf by: AR TINATRAEERSE -

Lin Dailian Xia Xiaobing

PRAC B EhE
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41,

()

©

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND RESERVE 4. KABZ2HBHRAREEEE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Continued) (%)
Reserve movement of the Company (o) ARBZ{HHEE
Equity
Share Investments
premium Merger  Accumulated at FvTOCI Capital
account reserve losses reserve  contribution Total
BRATEHA
Hfb2E
W RE
RABER SHRE 2HFR RERE EALE @i
HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
THEr TiEx TR T THEL THETL
At 1 January 2019 WZZE-NE—-A—H 603,750 3171 (155,520) (53,861) 11,280 408,820
Total comprehensive income for the year  FE 2 EME £ - (174,855) 9,353 - (165,502)
Disposal of equity investments HERERE - (7,949) 7,949 - -
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-NF+ZA=1-A
1 January 2020 kZZE-TF-A—H 603,750 3171 (338,324) (36,559) 11,280 243,318
Total comprehensive income for the year  FE2ER&HEE - (TLAT2) (12.212) - (83,684)
Issuance of placing shares BORERD 40,324 - - - 40,324
Issuance of consideration shares ERERD 5575 - - - 25,575
Disposal of equity investments hERERE - (48,771) 48,771 - -
At 31 December 2020 WZE-TF+-A=1—H 669,649 3171 (458,567) - 11,280 225,533
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries are unsecured, (o) FEU(Feft) M B A B 518 A MK
interest free and have no fixed terms of repayments. e RERERTENRD -
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42.

272

RESERVES 47,
(@) Group

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and movements
therein are presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income and
consolidated statement of changes in equity.

(b) Nature and purpose of reserves
() Share premium account

Share premium represents the amount of the excess
of issue price of the Company’s shares over its par
value.

(i) Mergerreserve

The merger reserve represents the difference
between the nominal value of the shares issued by
the Company in exchange for the nominal value of
the share capital of its subsidiaries arising from the
group reorganisation.

(iii) Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of foreign
operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance
with the accounting policies set out in note 4(d)(iii)
to the consolidated financial statements.

(iv) Equity investments at FVTOCI reserve

The equity investments at FVTOCI reserve comprises
the cumulative net change in the fair value of equity
investments at FVTOCI held at the end of the
reporting period and is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy in note 4(1) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A
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47, RESERVES (Continued)

(b)

Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)

)

(vi)

(vii)

Contributed surplus

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of shares of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a group
reorganisation in 1997, over the nominal value of
shares of Telefield Holdings Limited issued in
exchange therefor.

Statutory reserve

The statutory reserve, which is non-distributable, is
appropriated from the profit after taxation of the
Group’s PRC subsidiaries under the applicable laws
and regulations in the PRC.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents gains/losses directly
reflect in equity resulted from change of equity
interests in subsidiaries without change of control.

(viii) Capital contribution

The amount represents the difference between
inception fair value and proceeds of non-interest
bearing loan from shareholder, which regarded as
capital contribution.

42.

& (&)
(b) REBEMLERE®E)
V) BARER
AEBOBANRRER

—NNEFREBEESEAHK
BH B QR RN MEER®
Telefield Holdings Limited A&
BRZERMDFETHROE
B2ERERE -

i) EERE
EEREBEBETADIR IR
BERBEAEEMERER
EEFEBRARGEE G
F A &5 o

(vii) BERHE
NSRS
R B R B RSB 5B
BEEERAETARBRAK
=,/ 8518 -

(viii) ERHE
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43, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, #realma&ns kM
FLOWS
(a) Acquisition of a subsidiary — Sota Acoustics Limited @ WE-—FENEBAR —HEZEE
LRG|
On 4 January 2020, the Group acquired the entire equity )‘5§\_ T -TFE—ANH - KEER
interests in Sota Acoustics Limited at a consideration of ERARATIWEREZES
HK$1 from Noble Treasure Holdings Limited. Noble BE AR IR REAIETT -
Treasure Holdings Limited is controlled by a former HEIERERARRAER 2B
director of Telefield Holdings Limited, a wholly owned bt & /A 7] Telefield Holdings Limited
subsidiary of the Group. The fair value of the identifiable ZHEIESIES c RIKERE] - B
assets and liabilities of Sota Acoustics Limited as at the PR AR AT Z A SR EEREE
date of acquisition were as follows: ZAFENT
HK$'000
FET
Property, plant and equipment YIEE - RS KRR 1
Inventories FE 22
Bank and cash balances RIT MRS K5k 70
Accruals and other payables TERB A& EMmENFUE 24
69
Gain on bargain purchase (note 11) BEWE s () (69)
Total consideration REBZ -
Consideration to be satisfied by cash IR e &R E -
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition: YRS 2= £ B3R 7 0 F R
Cash consideration paid BWEReRE -
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BWEREMREEED 69
69
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43, NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43, %44
FLOWS (Continued)

®)

Disposal of Pride Review Limited and its subsidiaries: Nice (b)
Merit Limited, Ace Wealthy Limited, Chief Hero Limited,

Excel Limited, Easy Time Limited and Earn King

Corporation Limited (collectively, the “Pride Review

Group”)

On 31 December 2019, the Company entered into a sales
and purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Company
agreed to sell its 100% equity interests in Pride Review
Group to an individual at a total consideration of
HK$100,000. The disposal was completed on 31 December
2019. Net assets of Pride Review Group at the date of
disposal were as follows:

£ Pride Review Limited & £ Fif /&
NA B ARAFR - Ace Wealthy
Limited EEBRAR - ZBAER
/J\ﬁlzﬁ AREZERA

( %ﬁ% [Pride Review £ & |)

F:E—ﬂ¢+_ﬂ_+—l§| VN

NEEE T —NEEHZ Kt
A A &R B # Pride Review £ & 2
HEZLETEA BREA
100,000 L HEZTHEHEN -Z
—hWE+_A=+—8%mK - ¥
£ B Hi » Pride Review £ [# 7 & &
FERWN

HK$000
FAETT
Property, plant and equipment ME - BE KRG 604
Right-of-use assets FREEE 2,512
Goodwill EES 18,814
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 45k 686
Inventories FE 215
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TENFIE - e M EMEW A 2,057
Tax assets HEEE 969
Trade payables JETE SRR an
Accruals and other payables TERRBRA M EMENFUE (4,246)
Lease liabilities HEB®E (2,241)
Amount due to the Company JES AR R BFRIE (12,754)
Net assets disposed of EHEAEFS 6,539
Sales loan HEER 12,754
19,293
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries (note 14) HEWB AR 2 BE (K1) (19,193)
Total consideration KRB 100
Consideration to be satisfied by cash URS&EMHRE 100
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: RHEELNRSRAFRE
Cash consideration to be received BUWReRE 100
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERSMNREEEYD (686)
(586)
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EhELE EdE:

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43,

FLOWS (Continued)

©

Disposal of a subsidiary — Guoyi

e
%4 i3

BREMEBRME (E)

(© HE—RHMBAR-BEfA

On 31 December 2019, the Group entered into a sales and —T-AF+TZA=+—A &
purchase agreement, pursuant to which the Group agreed . FA T ERRE - B

to sell its 51% equity interests in Guoyi to an individual at a
consideration of HK$616,000. The disposal was completed
on 31 December 2019. Net assets of Guoyi at the date of

disposal were as follows:

REEREZHIGHI%ERSHE
FEAA - R{B 56160008 T ° &
EEFBEER-_ZE—NLF+=A
=+t—HEK - REERE - BEE

ZEEFENT

HK$'000

FAETT

Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MR 94
Trade receivables JEWRE Z IR 11,607
Bank and cash balances RITRIRE 45k 1,695
Inventories FE 1,185
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables TERFRIE ~ iR REAMEKFUE 19,551
Amount due from non-controlling interests FEURIEIE AR REZS T I8 2,143
Trade payables e E SRR (184)
Tax liabilities HEasE (4,688)
Accruals and other payables TERB A& EMmEMNFUE (9,608)
Borrowings B (19,709)
Net assets disposed of BHEEESE 2,086
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR AE = (2,436)
Release of foreign currency reserve R INERE S 212
(138)

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries (note 17) HEWB AR 2 W= (KaFi7) 754
Total consideration R{EsE 616
Consideration to be satisfied by cash PR & SR (E 616
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: EEEELIE S H5E

Cash consideration to be received BWEeRE 616
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERENREEEY (1,695)
(1,079)
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Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH 43,

FLOWS (Continued)

(d

(e

Major non-cash transaction

Additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities during
the year of HK$14,662,000 (2019: HK$20,367,000) were
due to effective of new lease agreements.

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and

non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s consolidated

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing

AR RERMEE)

() EBIHFRERH

FREATRABEEELMEESE
14,662,000/ 7L( = & — L F -
20,367,000 70) JhE R FHE W
REBATE -

() BMERDELEZBEYER

AEEEREESMELEZBER
2E) BERASMFREED B
AOIRTR - BRERDHELENA
B AAZAEEREXHKNRE
e NAKENGARERER

':F' ;tgﬁﬁﬂéq/ﬁﬁziﬁﬁﬂwi °©

activities.
Lease
liabilities Borrowings
HESE BE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&T FET
As at 1 January 2019 R-E—NF—H—A 75,813 40,267
Addition IR 19,949 -
Cashflows Behe (38,102) -
Interest expenses FMEREZ 4,390 -
Disposal subsidiary HEMB AR (2,241) (19,709)
Exchange difference MEH Z5E (204) -
As at 31 December 2019 and RZZE-NF+ZA=+—H
1 January 2020 T _FTF—H—H 59,605 20,558
Addition IR 14,662 -
Reassessment Eb R (1,122) -
Cashflows REnRE (27,450) 17,840
Interest expenses AR 3,266 160
Settlement (note 37(ii) B8 (HaE37a)) (20,000)
Exchange difference PE 5 Z=%E 2,638 37
As at 31 December 2020 A\ —_EB_FEF+=-A=+—H 51,599 18,595
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

43. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH

43.

reaRenERMEGE)

=
FLOWS (Continued)
(f)  Amounts included in the cash flow statements for leases (Hh HEBRSRERTHNSHEBEUT
comprise the following: E=Si=
2020 2019
St = s
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FET
Within operating cash flows TEEEREN 3,266 474
Within financing cash flows MERSTEN 24,184 37,628
38,102
These amounts relate to the following; ZECHENTSEEAR -
2019
—T-hF
HK$°000 HK$'000
FBT FHT
Lease rental paid ENEERS 27,450 38,102
44, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 44, RBIE
The Group and the Company did not have any significant RER KRN R EASAREE °
contingent liabilities.
45. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 45, BARIE

The Group’s capital commitments at the end of the reporting
period are as follows:

REBERRERRNERALENT -

2020 2019
—z-zs LI
HK$°000 HK$000
FEx T

Plant and machinery 5 iR
Contracted but not yet incurred BRIYMERESE

96
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For the year ended 31 December 2020 HE=ZZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

46. FINANCIAL GUARANTEE CONTRACT

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Group had an outstanding
guarantee (the “Guarantee”) with one of the suppliers of an
overseas subsidiary (the “Disposed Subsidiary”), which was
disposed on 7 October 2015, for payment in relation to a sum of
US$2.6 million (equivalent to approximately HK$20.3 million),
which represents a trade balance under dispute between the
Disposed Subsidiary and the supplier. The supplier subsequently
sold the trade balance to a third party.

During 2017, the Disposed Subsidiary agreed with the third party
for a final settlement by instalment of US$650,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$5.1 million). In this regards, as at 31
December 2020, the Group had an outstanding guarantee of the
sum limited to US$650,000 subject to the full payment of the
final settlement effected by the Disposed Subsidiary.

The Disposed Subsidiary had issued a counter guarantee to
indemnify the Group for any loss in relation to the Guarantee.
The management of the Group after taking legal advise are of
the opinion that it is highly unlikely that liabilities will be brought
against the Group on the above matter.

47. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In addition to those related party transactions and balances
disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial statements, the
Group had the following transactions with its related parties
during the year:

406.

47.

MBERELD

R-E_ZER_ZFT-ALF+_-A
=t—R AKEHER-_FT-—ALF T+
ALtAHEEZEHIMERE(EHEM
BAR) z2EP—BH F*‘Fﬁ*ﬁ‘f‘ﬂiﬁﬁ
ERIZER]D EEBEXNA A
2,600,000 7T (18 & 7 %920,300,000 &
TC) Z R - T E HE M E QR E
ERZFHREDEH BRHERC D
’%fé%%ﬁ%%%_ﬁo

RZZT—+F DHEKHBAREHESE
=HERZENEE - o B 650,000
%ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁswum%ﬁwﬁ%ﬁ
CTRZZEZEF+ZA=+—H K
EEEAMKRENEREELRA
650,000 7T RFELHEMBRARE
BB MR TR SR IB I E ©

/.

nll\

EHEMBRRIERARRELRE
® URZERZ EFBERRRRFE
HBERE - AKEZEREREIVE
EERERRR  AEBAKAgER Lt
SIEAREERE -

BEAMBREAR b RESMES
25 RAHI - AEBRENEBES
BATRS

FEl — R EEFA
e —RESFA

Amount due from a director
Amount due to a director
Interest on loans from a related company

owned by a substantial shareholder RE N RIME TS

XE-F?E-%I%H&%%EE’U

2020 2019

—_ 7 — ﬂi —j‘l_}f‘f
HK$°000 HK$ 000
THERT FHET

204

1,332

The details of remuneration of key management personnel,
represents the emoluments of directors of the Company paid
during the year and set out in note 16.

TREREREBNFMH(ANEARREER
FRENOME) FIEHNHE6
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48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

280

®

Placing of new shares of the Company (the “Placing™)

On 30 December 2020, the Company and China Tonghai
Securities Limited (the “Sole Placing Agent”) entered into
a placing agreement (the “Placing Agreement”), pursuant
to which the Company has conditionally agreed to place
through the Sole Placing Agent, on a best endeavour basis,
in aggregate of up to 85,580,000 new shares of the
Company to be allotted and issued pursuant to the terms
and conditions of the Placing Agreement (the “Placing
Shares”). On 11 January 2021, the condition precedent set
out in the Placing Agreement had been fulfilled, and
completion of the Placing took place on 11 January 2021 in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the Placing
Agreement. An aggregate of 85,580,000 Placing Shares,
which represents approximately 19.67% of the issued share
capital of the Company immediately after completion of
the Placing, has been successfully placed to not less than
six Placees, at the placing price of HK$0.035 per Placing
Share. The net proceeds from the Placing (after deduction
of commission and other expenses of the Placing) are
approximately HK$29.2 million.

Details of the Placing are set out in the announcements of
the Company dated 30 December 2020 and 11 January
2021.

48. MEHIR =M

M

Link-Asia International MedTech Group Limited ¥ras B B BRI EB AR A

RERRBFRN (TREEE])

RZZZZEF+—A=+H £2Q
AEPEBEEFERAA ([ BR
BRERE DI VRS ([REH
B Bt AAFEHERERE
BRBRMEERERE - BEARE
1h ek B R AR I8 AR ) B
Mo & K 3974 A% % 85,580,000 %
RABFRG ((BERD]) - N
T —F—R+—RH BEHEAm
BESRGG B EER - BIBELE
haE A R R - Be B BIEA T
KER=ZZE=_—F—F+—8%
& o & ££85,580,000 (% & & I 15
(HHERARAREELESFHETK
% B EITIRA4919.67%) BEIRE K
A& J5 15 0.035 B LB EE A
REFRIONNEBEEA - BBESE
R FTE B S (K HNREES
EMAekHEMAZ®B)OA
29,200,000 7T °

BEREEERNFE  F2HALQ
AAMAR—F_FTHFE+_A=1H
R—ZF_—F—A+—BHRE-
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Far the year ended 31 December 2020 HZE=—ZT=TF+=-A=+—HIFE

48. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD (Continued)

)

(i)

(iv)

Granting of share options to certain directors and
employees of the Group

On 28 January 2021, 35,671,850 share options to subscribe
for the ordinary shares of HK$0.02 each in the share capital
of the Company were granted to certain directors and
employees of the Group (the “Grantees”), subject to
acceptance of the Grantees, under the share option scheme
adopted by the Company on 10 March 2020. The share
options granted shall vest with the Grantees in accordance
with their respective vesting periods.

Details of the grant of share options are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 28 January 2021.

Disposal of investments in associates

On 23 March 2021, the Group entered into two share
transfer agreements to dispose of all equity interests in the
associates, Zhanju and Rongshu, to the respective
controlling shareholders of the associates with
considerations of RMB15,300,000 and RMB15,000,000,
respectively.

Amendments to terms of exclusive agency rights EAR-1

On 17 March 2021, BXG extend the appointment of the
Group as its exclusive agent for Level Condominium
("EAR-1") from 17 March 2021 to end of 4th (fourth) months
from the date on which the government of Thailand and
China resume the leisure travel and cancel the quarantine
arrangement between both countries.

48. MEHIREM (B)

)

(i

(iv)

MARAATEEREERLER
jé

RZEBZ—F—HA=Z+/\AB  RE
AARINZZEZZEF=A+HME
4N ED R IR i R - 35,671,850 10 fE
W%éi%ﬁ%%$§$&$%l1§a

(TERAL  ARBBARRRASH
HQETEO.OZ/’FSTEEI’\J A - MR
AR AZEMNR - TAMEE - B

TRIIEEREESANRER
BT HEFEA

FRARLERENFBINAQT
HHRA-_Z-_—F—A_-+N\HH

NI

pos
/N

EH
/E

=
=

Z

—FZA=+=8 A&
M7 AR B2 e 7 vk LA 1 5 g
f&kﬁmg RS T &
AZERRR - RESBA
A B #15300,0007T B A R ¥
15,000,000 7T °

&

Xs

el

Wy B
t) palll ||
_I H TH
I
&

[
T

Ban

BR R IEHE EAR-MERRZER]

RZZEZ—F=A++H BXGZ%
£ X £ & AlLevel Condominium
(TEAR-1)) 2 BRRIENTHH &
—E—F-AttHERESRHE
R Hp B KA 1R AR ) i 2 B XU R
Bz A bR B S ie s B AR5 (A
AIK -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

HFHBEE

The consolidated results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2020 and the consolidated assets, liabilities and equity of the Group as
at 31 December 2020 are those set out in the audited financial

statements.

The summary below does not form part of the audited financial

statements.

RESULTS £

Revenue WA

Cost of sales SHER AR

Gross profit EF

Other income HlA
Selling and distribution expenses  $4& B9 ER Y
Administrative expenses THER

Other operating expenses H e &8
Loss from operations TREER

Share of loss of a joint venture
Finance costs

DE—HEELEER

Loss before tax BREAEE

Income tax (expense)/credit ek (FX) /B

Loss for the year from BELEEK Y
continuing operation FEER

(Loss)/profit for the year from BRIEEEEK Y
discontinued operations EE(BR)B5R

Loss for the year FEEER

282

2020
—E-BH

—<—=

HK$°000
TERT

595,023
(440,311)

154,712
10,005
(56,317)
(178,158)
(82,439)

(152,197)
(12,622)
(4,928)

(169,747)
(3,323)

(173,070)

(173,070)

B A

2 =]

AEEHE—

XBERAEER

= —=

— = —

— =

F+-A=1+—HILEE
ZTF+ = A

=t BENEGEREE AEMEaRINEEZ
BATEHREA ©

ATEMEY TERERZIBHRERAOEND

2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-NF ZE-)N\F ZT—+F —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT TET FAT TET
629,948 681,482 662,208 748,749
(494,106)  (534208)  (497,793)  (598,835)
135,842 147,274 164,415 149,914
16,327 24,878 19,524 34,419
(28,829) (27,527) (45,578) (49,943)
(179,414)  (182,509)  (151,934)  (131,420)
(100,405) (25,095) (94,789) (74,637)
(156,479) (62,979) (108,362 (71,667)
(6,809) (2,778) (13,049) (4,297)
(163,288) (65,757) (121,411 (75,964)
(1,300) 566 (9,898) (11,074)
(164,588) (65191) (131,309 (87,038)
(14,739) 15,891 - -
(179,327) (49,300) (131,309 (87,038)
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Attributable to: UTEHREN:
Owners of the Company V/NETE Y =DN
Non-controlling interests JEIERR R

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON- &% - AERIFERER
CONTROLLING INTERESTS

TOTAL ASSETS EELE

TOTAL LIABILITIES EELE

NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ~ FEiZMrigs

2020
—E-FH

—<—=

HK$°000
TR

(173,052)
(18)

(173,070)

657,405

(361,943)
472

295,934

2019 2018 2017 2016
“E-NF ZE-)N\F ZT—+F —T—RF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET FAT TET
(171,735) (57,984)  (128,428) (82,646)
(7,592) 8,684 (2,881) (4,392)
(179,327) (49,300)  (131,309) (87,038)
734,840 930,862 960,588 800,284
(323,827)  (348,030)  (306,586)  (336,647)
- (10,028) 543 11,210
411,013 572,804 654,545 474,847

Note: The Group disposed of certain subsidiaries and associates during the year ended 31 Kt AREERBE-ZT—NF+-A=+—HLEFEHLES

December 2019. The results of the disposed subsidiaries and associates for the year
presented have been reclassified for separate disclosure as discontinued operations

above.

IR S—FS

THEARREE AR - BHEMER R REE QR
2HFENFECREN SR UREXBIHRBEREK
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